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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND
CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL
REPORT

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed in the Annual Report is consistent with the annual financial statement
audited by the Auditor General.
The Annual Report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the Annual Report as issued by
National Treasury.
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the GRAP standards applicable to the
Public Entity.
The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparedness of the Annual Financial Statement and for the
judgments made in this information.
The Accounting Authority is responsible for the establishing and implementing a system of internal control has
been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information,
the Human Resources information and the Annual Financial Statements.
The External Auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.
In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the Operations, the Performance Information, the Human
Resources information and the Financial affairs of the Public Entity for the Financial Year ended 31 March 2019.
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INTRODUCTON TO THE NATIONAL YOUTH DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) was established in 2009, following a merger between
the Umsobomvu Youth Fund (UYF) and the National Youth Commission (NYC).
The NYDA was formally launched on 16 June 2009, as pronounced by His Excellency, President Jacob G Zuma in
2009 State of the Nation Address. The launch formed part of the National Youth Month events championed by
the Presidency.
The Agency derives its mandate from the legislative frameworks, including the National Youth Development
Agency Act, 2008 (Act 54 of 2008) (NYDA Act), the National Youth Policy (NYP) (2009 – 2014) and the draft
Integrated Youth Development Strategy (IYDS).
The Agency assumed and improved the operational platform developed by both the UYF and the NYC, which
rendered the Agency operational with immediate effect. In addition, the staff component of its predecessors
was also incorporated into the NYDA.
The Activities of the NYDA could be summarised as follows:
a) Lobbying and advocating for integration and mainstreaming of youth development in all spheres of
Government, the Private Sector and Civil Society
b) Initiating, implementing, facilitating and coordinating Youth Development Programmes
c) Monitoring and evaluating youth development intervention across the board and mobilising youth for
active participation in civil society engagements.
The NYDA is a South African-based agency established primarily to address challenges faced by the nations
youth. The Agency was established by an Act of Parliament (Act 54 of 2008). The institution was established to be
a single, unitary structure addressing youth development issues at National, Provincial and Local Government
level. The Agency should be see within the broad context of South Africa’s development dynamics.
According to Statistics South Africa (2016), young people constitute 36,2 percent of the country’s population.
This represents a powerful resource of the country, provided the youth are supported and able to become active
members of society. The National Development Plan (NDP) states the following:
“Having a relatively young population can be advantageous, provided the majority of working-age individuals
are individuals are gainfully employed…The challenge is to convert this into a demographic dividend. This will
only be possible if the number of working-age individuals can be employed in productive activities (2012:98).
Yet, social norms continue to sideline young South Africans, treating political and economic participation as the
prerogative of older people, which is why there is a continued need for policies and implementation frameworks
that are deliberately aimed at youth concerns.
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Given the youthful nature of the South African population, many of the socio-economic challenges faced by the
nation, for example, poverty, inequality, joblessness and poor health, are borne by the youth.
The gravity of the challenges requires multipronged efforts that simultaneously promote the development of
sustainable livelihoods; reduce poverty and inequality, and prioritise the formulation of policies which create an
enabling environment for youth development.
The NYDA plays a leading role in ensuring that all major stakeholders, i.e. Government, the Private Sector
and Civil Society, prioritise youth development and contribute towards identifying and implementing lasting
solutions which address youth development challenges.
Furthermore, the NYDA designs and implements programmes aimed at improving the lives of youth and the
opportunities available to them. These programmes may be clustered as follows:
•

At an individual level (micro-level), the NYDA provides direct services to youth in the form of providing
information, career guidance services, mentorship, skills development and support, and Grant Funding as
well as Health awareness programmes and involvement in sport.

•

At community level (meso –level), the NYDA encourages young people to be catalysts for change in their
communities through involvement in community development activities, social cohesion activities, National
Youth Service (NYS) programme and dialogue.

•

At a provincial and national level (macro-level), through its policy development, partnership and research
programmes, the NYDA facilitates the participation of youth developing key policy inputs which shape the
socio-economic landscape of South Africa.

National Youth Service (NYS)
The NYS aims to reconstructed South African society by developing the abilities of young people through service
and learning. The organization builds character and enables young people to give back to society. In addition,
it addresses past racial segregation by enabling young people to share common space in such a way that they
recognize a common humanity in eachother.
•

Unemployed youth

•

Young women

•

Youth living with disabilities

•

In-school-youth

•

Out-of school youth

•

Youth at risk

•

Youth heading households

•

Youth in conflict with the law

•

Youth abusing dependence-including, narcotic based substances, including alcohol.
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Beneficial and Target Audiences
•

South African youth aged between 14 and 35 years

•

South African youth, irrespective of race, gender, colour, creed, geographical location or

		political affiliation.
The Agency has a predisposition towards:
•

Youth in rural areas

•

Out-of-school youth

•

Youth with disabilities

•

Young women

•

Unemployed youth

•

Youth in conflict with the law.

VISION
A credible, capable and activist development agency that is responsive to the plight of South Africa’s youth.
MISSION
•

To Mainstream youth issues into society and

•

To facilitate youth development with all sectors of society

VALUES
•

Integrity and Honesty

•

Excellence

•

Respect and Humility

•

Professionalism

•

Accessibility

NYDA Key Performance Areas
The NYDA smartly continues with its business of implementing youth development programmes directly, The
focus of the NYDA’s business will still be informed by imperatives of youth development as contained in the NYP,
2015 -2020, which are:
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Economic Participation: To assist and facilitate youth participation in the economy, leading to improvement of
their livelihoods through NYDA grants as financial support and non –financial support interventions.
The aim is to respond to the challenges of youth unemployment and low total entrepreneurship activity among
youth.
Education and skills development: To promote access to quality education and skills, to both school-going and
out-of school youth, through targeted interventions. The NDP outlines South Africa’s education vision to ensure
that, by 2030, South Africans have access to education and training of the highest standard possible, producing
significantly improved learning outcomes.
Nation –building & social cohesion: To promote the implementation of the NYS across all race and class groups.
Policy and research: To create and produce youth development information and knowledge that informs the
public sector, private sector and civil society on developing policy, and the planning, implementation and
review of all (100%) of their programmes related to government priorities.
Governance and administration:
•

To provide effective IT systems, business processes and human resources (HR) capacity development, as well
as improving the operations of the NYDA.

•

To ensure that all NYDA systems and processes support NYDA products.
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OVERVIEW OF THE PUBLIC ENTITY PERFORMANCE
SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT
The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) is a South African based agency established primarily to tackle
challenges that the nation’s youth are faced with. The Agency was established by an Act of parliament, Act No
54 of 2008. The institution was established to be a single, unitary structure for addressing youth development
issues at national, Provincial and Local Government level. The Act instructs the Agency to promote a uniform
approach to youth development by all organs of state, the private sector and Non-Government Organizations.
The NYDA Act (2008) mandates the NYDA to develop an Integrated Youth Development Strategy (IYDS) for South
Africa and initiate, design, coordinate, evaluate and monitor all programmes that aim to integrate the youth
into the economy and society in general. These initiated programmes should aim to alleviate poverty, urban
and rural development, combating of crime, substance abuse and social decay amongst youth. NYDA should
lobby other organs of state to consider national priorities in respect of youth development when planning their
activities and submit, in the prescribed manner, Annual Reports to the Agency regarding their implementation
of youth development priorities. The NYDA should continue to monitor and evaluate youth development
interventions across the board and mobilising youth for active participation in civil society engagements.
NYDA Catalytic Role
The IYDS has been designed as a strategy that any role-player could get involved in at any point in time.
The primary role within this strategy is for the NYDA to act as a catalyst. The NYDA, with the support of the Office
of the Presidency, is in a position to create the political will and momentum within Government, to allow the
Integrated Youth Development Strategy to gain the traction that is required for successful implementation.
The opportunity to influence what other Departments are doing in the youth development space, must be
driven quite strongly by both the NYDA and the Presidency. The main aim is to make youth development part
and parcel of what other line departments are delivering, to the point where organizational and individual
performance agreements include youth development as a clear area of focus. The role is, therefore, to remove
barriers to success and to assist with the development and delivery of critical success factors. Our role can
broadly be described as to:
•

Provide planning and decision making information for projects.

•

Coordinate key engagements.

•

Facilitate critical discussions and to ease projects through conceptualization into design and ultimately
implementation.

•

Establish key partnerships with private sector organizations at national, provincial and local levels.

•

Monitoring, evaluation and reporting requirements of the liaison function.
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The IYDS should be understood in the context of the policy and legislative frameworks that have been developed
in the country and with particular reference to the youth. This has been further informed by the IYDS process of
development, one which has been characterized by research, synthesis, engagement, consultation and finally
consolidation championed by the Presidency. In moving into implementation, it should be seen as a national
strategy that encourages on-going engagement and participation by all partners: Public, Private and Civil
Society. The success of the strategy lies in the collective efforts of key role players, working together to ensure
an empowered and enabled youth in South Africa. The Presidency is the custodian of the Integrated Youth
Development Strategy and provides oversight role for implementation.
The gaps in the policy environment which need to be addressed includes amongst other things enabling the
organization to have provincial structures, so that provincial governments are legally compelled to prioritize
and budget for youth development unlike the current status where National Treasury is the sole funder of NYDA.
The National Youth Service (NYS) aims to reconstruct South African society by developing the abilities of young
people through service and learning. The organization builds character and enables young people to give back
to society. In addition, it addresses past racial segregation by enabling young people to share common space
in such a way that they recognize a common humanity in each other. The National Youth Service Unit (NYSU)
located in the NYDA has been tasked with the responsibility of overall coordination of the NYSP in all spheres
of Government, Civil Society and the Private Sector. In the quest to reposition the National Youth Service Unit
(NYSU) as a flagship programme of government, the NYSP National Coordination Framework was developed
to provide clear institutional and implementation mechanisms. The development and approval of the National
Coordination Framework involved consultations with key Government Departments, Youth Formations, as well
as Civil Society Organizations.
Organization Environment
The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) is a South African based agency established primarily to
tackle challenges that the nation’s youth are faced with. The Agency was established by an Act of Parliament,
Act No 54 of 2008. The NYDA Act (2008) mandates the NYDA to develop an Integrated Youth Development
Strategy for South Africa and initiate, design, coordinate, evaluate and monitor all programmes that aim to
integrate the youth into the economy and society in general. The Act instructs the Agency to promote a uniform
approach to youth development by all organs of state, the private sector and Non-Government Organisations.
The review process of the NYDA Act will result in the Legislation tagged from Section 75 to Section 76. Youth
development remains a global phenomenon and South Africa like many other countries, have policy prescripts
and implements legislative framework that govern how youth development occurs. This strategy has therefore
considered all approaches as guided by the Policy. The Integrated Youth Development Strategy (IYDS) takes
into consideration all the priorities of the NYP (2020). It presents a practical plan on how these priorities will be
implemented through programmes and focuses on ways to measure the success of the NYP (2020). It is believed
that the Integrated Youth Development Strategy currently awaiting approval by Cabinet will resolve most gaps
in the legislative environment.

12

www.nyda.gov.za

Therefore, while legislators and policy-makers have been cognizant of international practice with regards to
youth development, they have needed to design an approach which addresses the specific, and at times, unique
circumstances of South African youth. The Integrated Youth Development Strategy (IYDS) is therefore a national
response to youth development, taking into account both specific, historical imbalances, as well as the general
challenges of global growth and sustainable development.
NYDA as a Thought Leader
This element characterizes one of NYDA strategic objectives. As a thought leader, we need to understand
where our clients are in the spectrum of new ideas in order to influence or support them with innovative and
impactful content. The Integrated Youth Development Strategy (IYDS) is located within a rich legislative and
policy framework, defined by the South African Constitution (Act Number 108 of 1996) as the supreme Jaw of
the country and guided by an internationally informed rights-based approach to growth and development.
Thereafter, the IYDS responds to a number of pieces of legislation and policy, some more influential than others.
The IYDS should be seen as a National Strategy that encourages ongoing engagements and participation by all
partners in Public, Private and Civil society. The success lies in the collective efforts of partners working together
to ensure an empowered and enabled youth in South Africa. The Presidency is the custodian of the policy and
provides oversight role for implementation and the NYDA should play a catalytic role and provide the support to
the Office of the Presidency to allow the IYDS to gain the traction that is required for successful implementation.
As an idea generator and thought leadership organisation, NYDA’s should invest on innovative research and the
creation of the Knowledge Hub for information storage and dissemination in the sector. Finally, as a thought
leader, the NYDA should be able to challenge the existing norms and establish an alternative way of thinking
and impactful solution provisioning, as long as these are supported with credible and fact-based research.
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STRATEGY MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
Strategic Outcome-oriented Goals and Key Performance Areas
Strategic Outcome Area 1: Improved and sustainable livelihood opportunities for young people in
south Africa
This Strategic Outcome Area focused on providing a comprehensive suite of interventions that leads to decent
employment, skills development, education, and entrepreneurship for all young people in the age group
14 to 35.
Strategic Outcome Area 2: An enhanced enabling environment that promotes youth development in all
sectors of South African society
This Strategic Outcome Area focuses on fostering a mainstreamed, evidence based, integrated and result
oriented youth development approach, through and monitoring and evaluation services, lobby and advocacy
to bring on board key stakeholders to implement youth development programmes.
Strategic Outcome Area 3: Social Cohesion and Nation building
This Strategic Outcome Area is defined as “the degree” of social integration and inclusion in communities and
society at large, and the extent to which mutual solidarity finds expression among individuals and communities”.
Participation of young people in their communities shows the extent to which they are empowered, engaged
and have a voice in the development of their communities and society. Participation promotes social integration,
combats exclusion and promotes youth development, by giving young people a stake in their society. Youth is
building social cohesion through participation in sport and community organisations, however, more needs to
be done to increase youth participation in order to improve race relations and civic engagement.
Strategic Outcome Area 4: Develop and enhance a credible and Capable Youth Development Agency
This Strategic Outcome Area is defined as efficient and effective utilization of resources through provision
of judicious governance, technology and systems, business operations systems, human capital, financial
management systems that adhere to relevant legislative requirements for public funded entities.
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Key Programme Area 1: Economic Participation
The main goal of the Economic participation is to enhance the participation of young people in the economy
through targeted and integrated programmes. Programmes implemented by the NYDA aim to facilitate and
provide employment opportunities for young people; to enhance the participation of young people in the
economy, geared at increasing job creation, entrepreneurship participation and to provide business support to
young people and programmes geared towards youth development.
Implementation is at the following Strategic Objectives:
•

To provide Socio-economic empowerment interventions and support for young people in South Africa

•

To provide increased information and universal access to young people

•

To lobby key stakeholders to support and implement youth development programmes.

Key Programme Area 2: Education and Skills Development Programme:
The main goal of the Education and Skills Development Grogramme is to promote, facilitate, and provide
education and skills development opportunities to young people and to enhance their socio-economic wellbeing, with the objective of facilitating education opportunities and community participation activism. To
engage young people in service activities geared towards fostering patriotism. The aim is to improve access to
quality education, to facilitate and implement Skills Development Programmes and offer scholarships assistance.
Implementation is at the following Strategic Objectives:
•

To facilitate and implement skills programmes for young people

•

To facilitate and implement education opportunities in order to improve the quality of education 		
attainment for the youth.

Key Programme Area 3: Research and Policy
The main goal of this Key Programme Area is to create a body of knowledge and best practice in the youth
development sectors and to inform and influence policy development planning and implementation of
the fundamental aim of this area is to ensure that knowledge that inform and drive youth development are
developed based on facts that are relevant to the developmental needs of the youth of South Africa, as well as
giving South Africa a competitive edge, globally. The Key Performance Area is also geared towards promoting
lobbing of key stakeholders to support and implement youth development programmes.
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Implementation is at the following Strategic Objectives:
•

To create and produce information and knowledge for better youth development planning and
decision making.

Key Programme Area 4: Enhanced Participation of youth in National Youth Service
The main goal is Promote and maximize initiatives for the active participation of young people through Social
cohesion, Sports& Recreation and Community participation activism for improved social conditions of young
people in South Africa (14 – 35) fostering patriotism, social cohesion and nation building.
Implementation is at the following Strategic Objectives:
•

To engage young people in service activities geared towards fostering patriotism, social cohesion and
nation building.

Key Performance Area 5: Governance and Administration
The main goal is to achieve efficient and effective utilization of resources through provision of functions
governance, human capital and financial management systems that adhere to relevant legislative requirements
for public funded entities.
Implementation is at the following Strategic Objective:
•
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FOREWORD FROM THE MINISTER

I am pleased to present the 2018/19 Annual Report for the National Youth Development Agency (NYDA).
The NYDA is mandated by the National Youth Development Agency Act (2008) to implement strategies
and programmes that integrate youth into the mainstream economy.

As we celebrate 25 years of democracy and the NYDA celebrates its 10 years since it was established in 2009
(as a result of a merger between Umsobomvu Youth Fund (UYF) and National Youth Commission (NYC), it is my
pleasure to present this report on the work of the NYDA which is critical in responding to priorities of government
in realising a transformed society.
I am also proud that the National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) has achieved its 5th clean audit and
achieved 100% of its annual performance targets as declared by the Auditor General of South Africa.
In the financial year under review the NYDA had two Annual Performance Plans, where the first approved APP
was applied from April to September 2018 whilst the amended APP was applied from October 2018 to March
2019. In the financial year under review, 2018-2019 the NYDA had 22 KPI’s and all achieved.

The agency under the current Board spent the entire budget allocation with 70% of the budget going directly
to projects and achieving all targets. These governance and performance achievements are against numerous
multi-layered and faceted challenges that young people face, principally youth unemployment.
The most recent statistics on youth unemployment paints an uncomfortable picture, however, the NYDA
continues to work with partners for youth development to ensure that we support as many young entrepreneurs
as possible, place youth in jobs and enrol them in the National Youth Service Programme. The NYDA also
continues to promote the diverse interests of youth, particularly youth with disabilities.
The NYDA’s interventions to ensure a better tomorrow for our youth are visible through their products and
services which present multiple opportunities for the youth.
A total of 33 public and private key stakeholders were lobbied to implement youth development programmes
and it is indeed pleasing to note an increased interest from stakeholders who are willing to partner with the
NYDA in programmes and/or projects which will continue to benefit the youth of South Africa.
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During the financial year under review, 2018/2019:
•

A total of 1103 youth owned enterprises or youth received NYDA grant funding, where individual
entrepreneurs, enterprises and cooperatives benefited.

•

A total of 825 enterprises were supported through the NYDA Grant Programme

•

181 individual youth were supported and 97 cooperatives were supported.

•

A total of 23 942 beneficiaries were supported with business development support services offered by the
NYDA. The KPI covers programmes such as; Market Linkages, Mentorship, Business Management Training,
BBBEE and Sales Pitch, Voucher Programme and Governance Training.

•

A total of the 5025 jobs were created and sustained through Grant Programme, Market Linkages and Business
Consultancy Voucher Programme.

•

A total of 5474 jobs were facilitated where young people were placed in various job opportunities.

As you can see, the NYDA is working to change the lives of young people across South Africa.
The NYDA has also been extending its footprint across the country by establishing full service branches and
district offices as well as increasing its number of mobile offices to enable access.
A total of 30 service delivery channels were established and operationalised for young people to access NYDA
information.
•

2 full service branches were opened in Sedibeng and Ekurhuleni;

•

4 information kiosks were opened;

•

6 outreach vehicles were purchased to cater for access to NYDA products and services;

•

18 satellite or district offices were opened across the country.

Indeed, the agency is moving from good to great and it remains our shared vision that the resources allocated
to the National Youth Development Agency be used optimally to ensure that young people across the country
have access to these services.
As government, we remain committed to the realisation of a better world for all and we continue in re-affirming
our commitment to tackling challenges that young people are facing, The NYDA will be supported to ensure
that young people that come through its service delivery channels reach their full potential, become active
participants in the economy of our country and enhance their livelihoods.
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I am confident that the NYDA’s 5th consecutive clean audit shows the ability to do more, more than advocacy to
maximise the participation of youth in the economy. Government remains committed to focus on the status of
the youth of South Africa and we recognise the important role that young people play in the economic growth
of South Africa.
The NYDA’s work remains central to realising this vision of a South Africa for all, and this report allows you the
opportunity to share in that vision through the agency’s implementation trajectory.
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FOREWORD FROM THE DEPUTY MINISTER
Deputy Minister in the Presidency: Women, Youth and Persons and Disabilities

In a year which has seen the global economy struggle, slowing down South Africa’s economic growth,
more young people have turned to the NYDA to support their dreams of being unskilled, and being
funded to grow their business ideas into actionable plans which in turn can support others.

The realities facing young people remain a major concern due to issues such as crib, poverty, gender-based
violence, unemployment and drug abuse. The youth of our country must be given access to opportunities
to become active citizens in the communities in which they live and work, be trained in volunteerism under
programs such as the National Youth Service, public and private sector in order to drive positive in South Africa.
Youth, an in particular, youth with disabilities, youth in the LGBTQIA+ Community, as well as young women
feel marginalized from work opportunities, or being able to pursue their entrepreneurial spirit in the hopes of
building a future for themselves.
South Africa is a country alive with multiple opportunities for those who live in it. Young people can realise
their potential through an inclusive economy and promoting partnerships for youth development throughout
society.
Robust monitoring and evaluation of youth interventions is required to enable us to forge partnerships for
youth development, generate evidence for role -players in the public and private sector to change the lives of
young people in our country.
We further need to acknowledge and celebrate young people across all sectors who are doing good in South
Africa. Throughout the NYDA’s South African Youth Awards, we have managed to show appreciation for the
efforts of young people in the creation of a better country, continent and the world.
During the 2018 awards ceremony, some of the incredible young people who were celebrated included:
1. 		

Dumisani Chauke (Sports, Health and Well-being) who also took home the Presidential Award

2. 		

Valentine Sassa (Science, Technology and Innovation)

3. 		

Nkosinathi Ndlovu (Extraordinary Champions)

4.		

Nokubonga Mnyango (Environment)

5. 		

Kyle John Cato (Social Cohesion/Civill Society)

6. 		

Botlhale Boikhanyo (Arts and Entertainment)

7.		

Siphumelele Fortune Madladla (Entrepreneurship)

8. 		

Tebatso Mope (Academic Excellence)
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Furthermore, throughout the NYDA’s products and services we began to write a different story since 2009.
Ten years later, challenges are still there and we still have a lot of work ahead of us, however, the young people’s
narrative is that go hope and determination. There are the limitless youth who see beyond their circumstances.
The NYDA Act (2008) mandates the NYDA to develop an Integrated Youth Development Strategy (IYDS) for
South Africa and initiate, design, coordinate, evaluate and monitor all programs that aim to integrate the young
people into mainstream economy.

The NYDA and government will continue to put young people at the forefront and call upon all stakeholders to
work together for the benefit of our future leaders.
As a department we will strengthen our monitoring and evaluation mechanism to ensure that the NYDA
interventions to address up-skilling and job creation are fit for purpose and that they have the requisite impact
to empower young people in urban and rural communities alike.
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CELEBRATING 10 YEARS
OF YOUTH DEVELOPMENT
Ten years of existence.
Five consecutive years of a clean audit.

CELEBRATING 10 YEARS OF YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

26

www.nyda.gov.za

MESSAGE FROM THE EXECUTIVE
CHAIRPERSON OF THE NYDA
It is with outmost humility and joy to present the NYDA Annual Report for the
2018/2019 financial year.
This year marks another milestone for the agency as an example of good governance and upholding high
performance culture across institutions of government. More important at a time when we have called
relentlessly for the inclusion of young people on all decision-making positions in both government and the
private sector.
The fifth clean audit outcome of the organization is yet another sign that this Board of Director has no intention to
drop the ball. We are proud that the Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA) affirmed our promise of maintaining
an established value system and a high-performance culture. The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA)
remains a primary organization charged with the responsibility of placing youth development at the epicentre
of the countries’ developmental agenda. This is because young people constitute most of the population and
adversely affected by the triple challenges of unemployment, poverty and inequality.
We have successfully put in place a strategy and vision that supports our mandate of enabling access to NYDA
products and services to majority of young people in both urban and rural centres of South Africa by establishing
new branches and service centres. Th advent of the Fourth Industrial Revolution has placed on our shoulders a
challenge to reimagine youth development and ensure that our products ready youth for the advantages and
threats brought by this epoch.
These results come a few months before we celebrate ten-years of the NYDA’s existence. A bold entity advocating
for and achieved amongst others scrapping for experience as prerequisite for entry-level jobs in government
and working tirelessly for implementation in the private sector. We are proud to have successfully reached out
to government and made meaningful impact on the youth development trajectory in our country.
I send sincere gratitude to members of the Board, and to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Mr Waseem Carrim
and his dedicated team of Executive Directors having worked tirelessly to realise the vision of the Board.
Most importantly, we thank our dedicated employees for achieving 100% performance of our set targets and
empowering the youth of South Africa.
Young people remain our primary client and we exist to bring into reality their dreams. We take this time
to recommit to the vision of a socio-economically emancipated youth and critical stakeholders within the
mainstream economy.
To another decade of meaningful Youth Development!
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I am extremely privileged to work with young people because despite the many
challenges it is also one of the most rewarding jobs in the world. It gives me
incredible optimism about the future, because young people embody the energy
and the drive that is helping to take our country to new heights.
In the 2018 / 2019 financial year, the NYDA strategy has been built around the following:
•

Economic development through youth entrepreneurship;

•

Decent employment through jobs program;

•

Social cohesion and pathway for economic emancipation through National Youth Service;

•

Universal access for vulnerable youth.

•

Monitoring and evaluation of the integrated youth development strategy

I am satisfied that during the financial year under review we have achieved all targets as committed in our
annual performance plan and sustained our clean audit for a fifth consecutive year with no irregular or fruitless
and wasteful expenditure reported. During the financial year, our fundraising strategy yielded R60 million in
additional revenue which translated into an additional R31 million for our flagship grant program. I am incredibly
proud that we have funded businesses that have gone on to franchise such as the young people in Maboneng
with the Soabet Ice Cream brand or the young men from Cape Town who founded Skywalk Innovations which
made the Forbes 30 under 30 Africa list. We have also placed over 4000 young people in jobs such as Karabo
Moloelang who is a 27-year-old young woman from Soshanguve in the City of Tshwane, who has struggled
to find employment for a period of 2 years after she had completed her studies. However, Karabo’s situation
changed through the NYDA’s Jobs Database and Matching Service. She subsequently submitted her CV to the
NYDA, and currently works at Khirimane Fleet Services.
We have also expanded our footprint through working with district municipalities to 37 centres for young
people as we aim for our vision for at least being present in at least all 52 district municipalities by 2020.
It is important that I recognise all the nominees and winners of the South African Youth Awards – you are an
incredible group of young people doing amazing things!
It is also important to recognise the work done by our team and young people who encouraged others to
register to vote which resulted in an increase of almost 500 000 new youth registrations for the electoral process.
We hosted the BRICS Youth Summit and I would like to acknowledge the member countries for their participation
and the volunteer team for pulling off an incredible event. As we look forward we understand that much more
needs to be done given the economic and social challenges that face our youth. The 2019 elections bring
renewed hope to young South Africans, and working together with our government partners we are determined
to bring about change in the sixth administration.
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I wish to thank the Board of Directors, including those who have brought much joy to us through their
appointment as Members of Parliament, my Executive team, all the NYDA staff and our partners in the private,
public and foreign sectors.
As a last piece of advice, I want to ask that if you are reading this to feel passionate about something. And one of
the things that I always tell young people is, don’t worry so much about what you want to be; worry more about
what you want to do. And what I mean by that is, if you are passionate about your work, then naturally over time
you are going to rise and people will admire and respect what you’ve done. But if all you’re thinking about is,
I want to be a member of the National Assembly, or I want to be very rich, or I want to be this or I want to be that,
then you pay less attention to the actual work in front of you.
25 years after democracy, lets focus on building South Africa through our young people.

Waseem Carrim
Chief Executive Officer
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Ms Khomotjo Joy Maimela
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Profiles

Sifiso Mtsweni
Executive Chairperson
Mr. Mtsweni holds a qualification in Sports Management and a
certificate in SMME Management and Project Management.
He has extensive experience in youth development-related areas
with a special focus on politics, sports and economic development,
particularly on SMME growth.
Mr. Mtsweni further possesses significant public sector experience;
some of the clients he has previously mentored, and a number of
projects that he has overseen have gone on to receive numerous
accolades.
As the NYDA Executive Chairperson, he has championed new and
innovative youth development proposals including the removal of
work experience as an entry-level requirement in order to enhance
employability, and has also undertaken the role to redefine the
accessibility and reach of NYDA.
Mr. Mtsweni has served in the leadership of various youth
formations such as COSAS, SASCO and the ANCYL where he now
serves as an NEC member.

Bavelile Hlongwa (Late)
Executive Deputy Chairperson
Ms. Bavelile Gloria Hlongwa holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Chemical Engineering from the University of KwaZulu-Natal. She
started her career at Shell Downstream SA.

Ms. Hlongwa has been exposed to leadership positions since 1999
and has served on the Local Community Development Committee.
In 2011, Ms. Hlongwa was elected into the South African Institute
of Chemical Engineers at the KZN Branch, where she served as a
Treasurer in 2013.

In May 2017, Ms. Hlongwa was appointed as the Executive Deputy
Chairperson of the Board of the National Youth Development
Agency.
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Kenny Morolong
Mr. Morolong has played a major role in various initiatives and
development programmes aimed at building and empowering
young people.
From 2008, he led and managed IKM Trading Enterprise as CEO.
During this period, Mr Morolong provided strategic direction
that led the organisation to achieving its goals, which ultimately
resulted in growth and profitability.

Joy Maimela
Ms. Maimela completed her NCV Level 4 in Civil Engineering and
Building Construction at Mopani College and, has further obtained
the following certificates:
• Workplace Discipline with Commission of Conciliation, 		
Mediation and Arbitration in 2013.
• Skills Development with Mining Qualification Accreditation
in 2016.
• Love Life Ground Breaker in 2017.
Ms Maimela is currently completing her BA Degree in 		
Governance, Public Administration and Development with the
University of South Africa.
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Yershen Pillay
Mr. Yershen Pillay studied at the University of Cape Town (UCT)
where he obtained his Social Sciences Degree majoring in
Politics and Economics. In 2005, Mr. Pillay received a Deputy ViceChancellors Leadership Award.
From 2006 until 2009, he served as a member of the National
Executive Committee (NEC) of the South African Union of
Students (SAUS) and was also part of the Policy Unit responsible
for the development of the National Student Policy on Curriculum
Development and Transformation.
In 2010, Mr. Pillay was appointed to serve on the Human Resources
Development Council of South Africa. He was also part of the Broad
Based Black Economic Empowerment (BBBEE) Council of South
Africa in 2013.
Mr. Pillay has also served on the Board of the National Student
Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS) and, has recently been appointed to
the board of ACSA.

Zandile Majozi
Ms. Majozi holds a National Diploma in Human Resources and a
Certificate in Youth Career Development.
In 2008, she commenced her career at City of Johannesburg as a
Coordinator for Youth Career Development Programme.
In 2013, she served as a Board Member of the National Youth
Development Agency and was re-appointed in 2017.
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Chief Executive Officer
Mr Waseem Carrim

Chief Financial Officer
Mr Thamsanqa Mkhwanazi

Executive Director:
National Youth Service

Ms Ankie Motsoahae-Maepa

Executive Director:

Corporate Strategy and Planning

Ms Juliet Tshoke

Executive Director:
ICT and Communications

Ms Palesa Notsi

Executive Director:
HR and Legal Services

Ms Mafiki Duma

Executive Director:

Programme Design, Development & Delivery

Mr Siyabonga Mbambo

Full Service Branches

District Offices
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Full Services Branches

Cape Town

Tshwane

Stephen Curry

Motlalepula Monja

West Rand

Johannesburg

Tshepo Manyama

Hlengiwe Cele

Ekurhuleni

Sedibeng

Vacant

Michael Phokela

Port Elizabeth

East London

Siyabulela Zondani

Princess Faku

OR Tambo

Bloemfontein

Vacant

Boitumelo Dithebe

Rustenburg

Ngaka Modiri Molema

Vacant

Vacant

Polokwane

Thulamela

Percy Madziwo

Jerry Shirinda

Kimberley

Emalahleni

Mosimanegape Macomo

April Motloung

Secunda

Mbombela

Jackie Sindane

Jabulile Mkhwanazi

Newcastle

Durban

Senamile Dube

Nompumelelo Zuma

Empangeni
Ndabezinhle Mthembu
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District Offices

John Taolo Gaetsewe District

Pixley Ka Seme District

ZF Mgcawu District

Namakwa District

Eden District

West Coast District

Central Karoo District

Lejweleputswa District

Thabo Mofutsanyana Distric

Fezile Dabi District

Xhariep District

Dr Kenneth Kaunda District

Dr Ruth Segomotsi
Mompati District

Mopani District

Sekhukhune District

Waterberg District

Mokopane District

Bohlabelo District

Uthukela District

Kirkwood District
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Waseem Carrim
Chief Executive Officer
Currently only 31 years, Waseem Carrim is one of South Africa’s
youngest-ever CEO’s bringing with him his belief in the current
young generation. Waseem believes that the current generation
sees integration and globalization not as threats but as opportunities
for education, exploration, employment, and exchange. This
generation sees differences of pluralism and diversity not as a
curse, but as a great gift. He believes that together as a nation we
can achieve much change, he is confident that the future is brighter
than the past, and that our best days are still ahead of us.
In 2013 he completed his article traineeship with KPMG and was
admitted as a member of the South African Institute of Chartered
Accountants (SAICA). Waseem also holds a Master’s Degree in
Taxation from the University of Pretoria and is currently pursuing
his MBA at Wits University.

Thami Mkhwanazi
Chief Financial Officer
Has 18 years’ experience of which 11 was in the Private Sector
working for McCarthy Limited as Financial Manager, The Scientific
Group (a division of Adcock Ingram) as a Finance Executive and
7 years in the Public Sector. The Public Sector experience includes
being the Acting CFO of Abaqulusi Municipality, CFO of Enterprise
iLembe Development Agency and later promoted to CEO as well as
CFO of Tshwane Economic Development Agency. Thami has a Bcom
Accounting Degree, Bcom Honours and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 2005, he completed his articles with Deloitte.
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Palesa Notsi
Executive Director: ICT and Communications
Palesa Notsi is the Executive Director of Communications and
Information Technology. She holds a Master’s Degree in Development
and Management obtained from the University of North West.
Palesa brings a wide range of expertise and years of experience in
administration, youth and women development. She is amongst the
first group of Youth Development Practitioners in South Africa and
worked tirelessly to lobby and advocate for the mainstreaming of
youth development within a municipal space. She joined the NYDA in
2009, and served the Agency from being a Manager, a Senior Manager,
and currently, as an Executive Director.
Ms Notsi is also a Development Practitioner and served in organisations
such as the South African Youth Council, Free State Young Women’s
Network, South African Women in Dialogue and the African National
Congress Youth League.

Ankie Motsoahae-Maepa
Executive Director: National Youth Service
Ankie Motsoahae holds a Master’s degree in Management —
Public and Development Management, from the University of
the Witwatersrand, and a postgraduate Diploma in Public and
Development Management. She is currently in the process of
developing a research proposal towards a PhD Degree with the
same university. Ms Motsoahae has passion for youth development,
gender mainstreaming and public policy development. Her Master’s
thesis was focused on the analysis of the disjuncture between
policy intentions and implementation in the public sector.
Her career in the public and development sector began in the early
1990s, working as a national coordinator at the Women’s Institute for
Leadership Development (WILDD), Gauteng Department of Public
Transport, National Youth Commission and National Department of
Public Works and the National Youth Development Agency.
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Mafiki Duma
Executive Director: HR and Legal Services
Mafiki Duma is currently a Human Resources (HR) and Legal Executive
Director at the National Youth Development Agency. Mafiki joined
NYDA from Estate Agency Affairs Board (EAAB), where she served as
a Senior Manager in Human Resources for the past four years. Before
joining EAAB in 2014, Mafiki served as a National HR Manager at
Betting World in 2013 and as a Human Resource and Administration
Manager at Tourism KZN for four years, providing leadership and
direction to various units. Mafiki accumulated 10 years of experience
as a Generalist in this field. She has a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration , B.Tech Degree in Human Resources Management,
a National Diploma in Human Resources Management and qualified
as a Chartered HR Professional, Generalist with the SA Board for
People Practices (SABPP).

Juliet Tshoke
Executive Director: Corporate Strategy and Planning
Ms Juliet Tshoke has a Higher Diploma in Education, majoring in
Psychology, African History and Education, from the UWC, a Diploma
in Human Resources from Allenby. She has also enrolled in the
Transnet Management Development programme, from Wits Business
School and also completed a Post Graduate Diploma in Management
by Henley. Juliet’s career development began in the banking industry
as Group Recruitment Manager at Nedcor Bank. She then moved to
the transport industry and joined Transnet’s National Ports Authority
as the Key Account Manager: Human Resources, based at their Head
Office. She provided HR products and services to infrastructure-based
projects such as the Port of Ngcura; Property Management; Safety,
Health and Environment; and the Planning Unit.

Siyabonga Mbambo
Executive Director: Operations
Mr. Siyabonga Mbambo has over twelve years’ Senior Management
experience and skills. He possesses extensive experience on operations
and programme initiation, design and development. His experience
extends to both the Public and Private Sector.
Mr. Mbambo is an effective communicator who is a good negotiator
with enormous problem-solving skills. He is a self-starter and
motivated person who is adaptable to any situation and challenge
with an attention to detail.
He has a Master of Science in Agriculture and Master of Business
Leadership.
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PERFORMANCE INFORMATION SUMMARY

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN 2018-2019
In the financial year under review the NYDA had two Annual Performance Plans, where the first approved APP
was applied from April to September 2018 whilst the amended APP was applied from October 2018 to March
2019. The changes on the amended APP were on 3 KPIs that were reworded; two KPI’s were from Economic
Participation and one KPI was from Research and Policy. An amended APP was therefore developed with
changes on the rewording of 3 KPIs as illustrated in the table below:

Key Performance Area

Strategic Objective

Key Performance Indicator

Economic Participation

To provide increased information

Number of new service delivery

and universal access to young

channels established and

people

operationalised for young people
to access NYDA information
(original)
Number of new service delivery
channels established for
young people to access NYDA
information (reworded)
Number of young people
provided with youth
development information
(original)
Number of people provided with
youth development information
(reworded)

Research and Policy

To create and produce

Number of stakeholder

information and knowledge

satisfaction surveys conducted

for better youth development

(original)

planning and decision making

Number of stakeholder
satisfaction surveys conducted
and published for internal
consumption (reworded)

In the financial year under review (2018-2019 financial year) the NYDA had 22 KPIs, of which 11 are
met and exceeded and 11 targets met as planned.
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KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 1- Economic Participation:

•

A total of 1103 youth owned enterprises or youth received NYDA grant funding, where individual
entrepreneurs, enterprises and cooperatives benefited.

•

A total of 23 942 beneficiaries were supported with business development support services offered by the
NYDA. The KPI covers programmes such as; Market Linkages, Mentorship, Business Management Training,
BBBEE and Sales Pitch, Voucher Programme and Governance Training.

•

A total of the 5025 jobs were created and sustained through Grant Programme, Market Linkages and Business
Consultancy Voucher Programme.

•

A total of 5474 jobs were facilitated where young people were placed in various job opportunities.

•

The NYDA conceptualised, designed and conducted external consultations to establish the National Youth
Fund. The Youth Fund aims to serve as a vehicle to ensure that young people are empowered to participate
fully in national and international economies by owning and managing profitable and competitive
enterprises. In the year under review the Youth Fund Project Plan was developed and implemented.

•

The NYDA conceptualised, designed and conducted external consultations to establish the National Skills
Fund. The NYDA Skills Fund aims to make education and training available to young people Not in Education,
Employment and Training (NEET) because they are not easily reached by the currently available funding.
In the year under review the Skills Fund Project Plan was developed and implemented.

•

A total of 30 Service delivery Channels were established and operationalised for young people to access
NYDA information.

•

A total of 1 891 783 people were provided with youth development information.

•

A total of 33 Public and Private key stakeholders were lobbied to implement youth development programmes.

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 2 – Education and Skills Development:

•

A total of 73 359 young people received Life Skills training and Job Preparedness Training which prepared
them to enter the job market.

•

We are in the second year of implementing technical skills programme in partnership with the Services
SETA, the students that were recruited in the previous financial year are now in their second year of their
studies.

•

Continued support and monitoring of the existing Solomon Mahlangu Scholarship recipients in their
1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th year of their studies.
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KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 3 – Research and Policy:

•

A total of 4 stakeholder satisfaction surveys conducted and published for internal consumption.

•

Designed the corporate strategy and planning structure and aligned to the Integrated Youth Development
Strategy(IYDS)

•

Reviewed M&E Framework and aligned to the Integrated Youth Development Strategy (IYDS).

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 4 – Enhanced participation of youth in National Youth Service:

•

Protocols, procedures and coordination tool developed, approved and implemented for National, 		
Provincial and Local Government.

•

Facilitated the development of Annual Plans by Government Departments.

•

A total of 63 National Youth Service projects registered.

•

A total of 5992 people enrolled and participated in NYS Category 1.

•

A total of 51 906 young people enrolled and participated in National Youth Service category 2 and 3 		
expanded volunteer programme.

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 5 – Governance and Administration:

•

Finalised year 1 and implemented 75% of year 2 of the Human Resources Strategy.

•

Finalised phase 1 and implemented 75% of phase 2 of the Integrated Marketing and Communications
Strategy.

•

100% of legitimate service providers’ invoices were paid within the 30-day period.
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23 942

additional grants

which allowed for approval of

received from jobs fund

5474

opportunities

placements in job

to partnerships established

The target was exceeded due
5250

facilitated through
8586

Target met and exceeded.

Number of jobs

enterprises

created

as a result more jobs were

through supporting

entrepreneurs and

The target is linked to grants

created and sustained
5025

Target met and exceeded.

Number of jobs
3360

Programme

offered by the NYDA

4071

to benefit from the Grant

Support Services

who were trained in order

18 900

1103

Business Development
21 808

840

due to additional funding

Target was met and exceeded

REASON FOR VARIANCE

due to more young people

Grant Programme

people in South Africa

801

2018/2019 ANNUAL
ACHIEVEMENT

supported with

supported through

and support for young

2018/2019
ANNUAL TARGET

Target was met and exceeded

owned enterprises

Empowerment Interventions

2017/2018
ACHIEVEMENT

Number of beneficiaries

Number of youth

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

To provide Socio-Economic

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 1: ECONOMIC PARTICIPATION

1. STRATEGIC OUTCOME DETAILED ANALYSIS
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and private key

stakeholders lobbied

to implement Youth

to support and implement

Youth Development

Programmes

Programmes

Development

Number of public

To lobby key stakeholders

information

17

18

33

partner with the NYDA

external stakeholders to

to increased interest from

Target was overachieved due

is sponsored by NYDA

has a high viewership which

one day leader TV show that

1 891 783

youth development

1 557 000

Target was exceeded due to

provided with
87 673

Target met and exceeded.

Number of people

vehicles for outreach at
for young people

30

information

established for young

access to young people

We increased number of
District Offices to cater access

delivery channels

information and universal

Target met and exceeded.

Annual target met

Annual target met

REASON FOR VARIANCE

people to access NYDA

Number of new service

consultations)

design and

30

plan implemented

project plan

(conceptualization,

25

developed and project

implement

established

NYDA Skills Fund

NYDA Skills Fund

NYDA Skills Fund

Establishment of the

To provide increased

developed and project

implement
plan implemented

NYDA Youth Fund

Develop and
project plan

2018/2019 ANNUAL
ACHIEVEMENT

2018/2019
ANNUAL TARGET

Develop and

consultations)

design and

people in South Africa

Fund established
(conceptualization,

NYDA Youth Fund

Empowerment Interventions

NYDA Youth

2017/2018
ACHIEVEMENT

and support for young

Establishment of the

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

To provide Socio-Economic

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE
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GRANTS DISBURSED
During the year under review, a total of 1103 youth owned enterprises or youth received NYDA grant funding.
A total of 825 enterprises were supported, 181 individual youth were supported and 97 cooperatives were
supported. The jobs fund provided additional funding for the grant programme, this aided in the target being
met and exceeded.

97

181

Cooperative
Enterprses
Individuals

825

The NYDA is contributing to 7 main sectors mainly tourism, manufacturing, construction, services, arts and
culture, retail and agriculture.
•

Most grants (47%) were issued for services e.g. saloons, spas, car wash and catering.

•

Manufacturing services, e.g. brick, furniture and clothing manufacturing constitute 13% of grants
were issued.

•

Retail services, e.g., shops, exports and imports constituted 12% of grants issued.

•

Agriculture constitutes 12% of the grants issued

•

Construction constituted 3% of grant recipients

•

Arts and culture which is made up of music, photography and design had 6% of grant recipients
50%

20%
6%

12%

7%

Agriculture

Tourism

3%
Construction

50

13%

12%

Arts and
Culture

15%
10%
5%
0%

Service

BY SECTOR

35%
30%
25%

Retail

RECIPIENTS

47%

45%
40%

Manufacturing

GRANT
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BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES
Under beneficiaries supported with Business Development Services offered by the NYDA a total of 23 942
young entrepreneurs were supported. More young people were trained on Entrepreneurship Development
Programme in order to benefit from the grant programme, hence the target was met and exceeded. There was
also a high uptake on products such as Mentorship and on trainings such as Sales Pitch.

Beneficiaries supported with Business Development Services

6231

6000

5971

5562

4000

3053
1782

1056

MKL-SBBBEE TRAINING

MKL-SALES PITCH

RURAL DEVELOPMENT

EDP STRUCTURED

0

MENTORSHIP

287

VOUCHERS

2000

MKL-LINKAGES

8000

JOBS CREATED AND SUSTAINED
During the period under review, a total of 5025 jobs were created and sustained though the Grant, Voucher and
Market Linkages Programmes. Most jobs were from the Grant Programme at 58% (2914), followed by the Voucher
Programme at 30% (1507) and then Market Linkages Programme at 12% (603). The Grant Programme had the most
jobs because of additional funding that led to more grants issued.
Market Linkages; 603
603

Voucher Programme; 1507
Grant Programme; 2914
The services sector has most jobs and is highly visible in both

2914

1507

jobs created and sustained through the Voucher Programme.
It covers areas such as; accounting, car wash, branding,
printing, sewing, car fixing and servicing etc. Agriculture is
more evident in cooperatives and enterprises receiving grants
hence most jobs in the sector are from the Grant Programme.
Manufacturing, Arts and Culture and Tourism are spread across
the three programmes.
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SECTORS - JOBS CREATED AND SUSTAINED
28%

30%
25%

23%

20%

20%

16%

15%
10%
5%
0%

Tourism

Arts and Culture

Manufacturing

Agriculture

Service

13%

JOB PLACEMENTS

A total of the 5474 jobs were facilitated through placement of young people in job opportunities. The
partnerships that the NYDA has with various stakeholders led to the ever achievement of the target by 104%.
754
691

485
402

305

183

200

260

234

400

336

134

83
EAST LONDON

RUSTENBURG

DURBAN

CAPE TOWN

eMALAHLENI

SECUNDA

NELSPRUIT

HEAD OFFICE

TSHWANE

JOHANNESBURG

SOWETO

0
POLOKWANE

420

70
VENDA

277

BLOEMFONTEIN

400

440

KIMBERLY

600

PORT ELIZABETH

800

The NYDA job placement programme’s aim is to place young people between the ages of 14 and 35 in jobs and
training opportunities that are available in the public and private sectors and civil society organizations in South
Africa. In the period, April 2018 to March 2019, majority of the young people placed in opportunities by the
NYDA were placed in the retail sector (42%), followed by the service sector (22%) which covers a broad spectrum
such as health spas, day care, consultancies etc.
In the public-sector job placements are mainly done through the SETA’s apprenticeships and learnerships and
the local government. Through the SETAs young people are placed in various government departments to gain
proper experience and develop skills. Local government also plays a role in placing young people from the
NYDA jobs database thus contributing to the exposure of young people in the job market.
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JOB PLACEMENT BY SECTOR

SETA
Local Government

(Apprenticeship

19%

& learneship)
17%

Service
22%
Retail
42%

SERVICE DELIVERY CHANNELS
A total of 30 service delivery channels were established for young people to access NYDA information:
•

2 Branches were opened in Sedibeng and Ekurhuleni

•

4 Information Kiosks were opened

•

6 Outreach Vehicles were purchased to cater for access to NYDA products and services

•

18 Satellite or District Offices were opened

2
4

Branches
Kioskes

18

6

Outreach Vehicles
Satellite Offices
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PEOPLE RECEIVING YOUTH DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION

A total of 1 891 783 people received youth development information through NYDA outreach programmes,
walk-ins at NYDA branches, NSFAS applicants assisted by NYDA personnel, One Day Leadership TV programme,
NYDA Facebook, NYDA Twitter, NYDA Website and enquiries through the NYDA Call Centre. The highest hit was
made through the one day leadership programme that was aired on SABC 1.
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PUBLIC AND PRIVATE STAKEHOLDERS LOBBIED

In the year under review, the NYDA managed lobby 33 partnerships from the Public Sector, private sector, NGOs
and International Organizations. Most partnerships were lobbied from the Private Sector at 34%, followed by
the Public Sector at 28% and lastly is the NGOs and the International Organizations at 22% and 16%.
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YOUNG PEOPLE TRAINED TO ENTER JOB MARKET

In the year under review a total of 73 359 young people were skilled to enter the job market. They were
taken through The Job Preparedness and Life Skills Trainings. Due to the high demand of the two training
programmes, the target was met and exceeded.
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NYS PROGRAMME PROJECTS REGISTERED

A total of 63 NYS Partnership Projects were registered. Due to intensified lobbying by NYDA,
more projects were registered.

60

Guardian Angels care and
support organisation

Service SETA

Thuthuko-Katleho Secondary
School

De Beers group of companies

Mncube High School

Kgethatsebo-Khethulwazi
Secondary School

Making us youth project

Ibhongo High School

Tsebo Secondary School

Extreme youth projects

Born to prosper community

Selelekela Secondary School

Dynamic youth forum

Ngwathe Youth Hachathon

Department of Social
Development

Omphile Early Childhood
Development

Tsoha Youth Development

Department of Sports and
Recreation

Edcon (Pty) LTD

Maope Secondary School

Ipelegeng School for the Disabled

Hope for Africa Foundation

Raeleng Secondary School

Tshwane North TVET College

Falesizwe Secondary School

Bathopele Secondary School

World Furniture Private College

Beyond Expectations

Bela-Bela Secondary School

New LoveLife Trust

In Touch Community
Development

Itsoseng Combined School

Breede Valley Local Municipality

Best Better Skills Development

Thuto Tiro Secondary School

Witzenberg Loacal Munucipality

Muselwa Trading & Projects

Mkhephuli High School

Mogale City Local Municipality

Bokgoni Training and
Development

Zanempucuko High School

Emfuleni Local Municipality

Hebron Technical School

CrystalnSprings Secondary School Greater Taung Local Municipality

Reitumetse High School

Dinokaneng Secondary School

Lekwa Teemane Local
Municipality

Tetelo Secondary School

Moshate Secondary School

Mahikeng Local Municipality

Youth In-action Organisation

Ekurhuleni Metro

Chief Albert Luthuli Local
Municipality

Tjeka Training Matters

Setjhaba-Sohle Secondary School

Dr J. S Moroka Local Municipality

Thembisile Hani Local
Municipality

Sol Plaatjie Local Municipality

Mohokare Local Municipality
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NYS Category 1

In the year under review the NYS Category 1 Programme enrolled 5992 young people. Due to more funders
coming on board and willing to co-fund the programme with NYDA, there was high uptake that led to the target
being met and exceeded.
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NYS Category 2&3

The NYS Category 2&3 enrolled 51 906 young people in Category 2&3 Expanded Volunteer Programme.
Limpopo had the highest young people enrolled followed by North West and Gauteng.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The NYDA Risk Management approach is aligned with the National Treasury’s Risk Management Framework, the
Risk Management Unit champions this.
The status of Risk Management has been elevated in the organisation as Risk Management Progress Reports are
tabled at Monthly Ops Exco. The Risk Management Unit also submits Quarterly Compliance Progress Reports to
the Audit Committee that is chaired by an external person and to the Board Committee.
LEGISLATIVE MANDATE
Public Finance Management Act
Section 51 (1) (a) (i) of the Public Finance Management Act requires that “The Accounting Authority must ensure
that the public entity has and maintains effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial,
Risk Management and internal control”.
The Risk Management Implementation Plan describes how the Risk Management Strategy and
Risk Management Policy are to be implemented and monitored.
The focused Risk Management areas for the 2018/19 were to:
•
Embed ERM to such an extent as to lead to a higher level of maturity as per the expected maturity curve
•
Embed the standardisation of the compliance terminology, framework and methodology and approaches
•
Improve the Risk Management Information System
•
Be consistent in the application of risk management principles
•
Focus on emerging risks and opportunities in terms of strategic risk initiatives across the business
•
Embed Insurance policies and procedures; and
•
Ensure alignment to the Turn Around Strategy.
Risk Management Plan
In the 2018/2019 Financial Year, the risk activities undertaken by the Risk Management plan included the
following:
Risk Management Strategy
Risk Management Strategy in NYDA aims to create a coordinated, systematic and focused framework for the
management of risk within the Agency.
The Strategy included the following:
•
A plan of action to improve the Institution’s risk management maturity
•
A focus on the prevention of fraud and corruption
•
The Institution’s risk management architecture and reporting lines
•
Details of review and assurance of the risk management process.
It set out the criteria and framework to assist NYDA in meeting its strategic objectives to satisfy the needs of
its service providers, strategic partners and clients, as well as its other stakeholders in all circumstances. The
Agency has an approved Risk Management Policy. Key risks of the Agency were reviewed by Management for
the 2018/19 financial year. In an endeavour to enhance the Risk Assessment Process, the Agency embarked on a
process of conducting its Risk Maturity Assessment using the National Treasury Risk Maturity Assessment Model.
Operational Risk Assessments were conducted for all Divisions within the Agency. The Ops Exco tracks progress
in mitigating business unit risks and other emerging risks to ensure that Mitigation Strategies are adequate and
effective to reduce to tolerable levels.
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FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
The Fraud Prevention Plan was reviewed and updated during the year under review. Fraud Risk Registers were
reviewed for all business units. A matrix of tasks and responsibilities was developed and tracked throughout
2018/19. The Risk Management Unit also presented on anti-corruption and the Code of Conduct at the
induction sessions held for the year under review. The Agency has an approved Fraud Prevention strategy and
Fraud Prevention plan that are updated on an annual basis. The Fraud and Whistle Blowing Policy was reviewed
and approved during the year under review. Employees are encouraged to report fraud and corruption.
The Agency’s toll-free hotline number (0800 203 240) is used to report any suspicious and corrupt activities
within the Agency. All allegations received are followed up and, if necessary, investigations are conducted. To
proactively mitigate the risk of fraud, a fraud risk assessment is conducted annually on high-risk areas. The Fraud
Risk Assessment on Supply Chain Management was also conducted.
MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST
All NYDA employees disclosed their declaration of interest forms for the period under review as required by
the NYDA Code of Conduct Policy. Employees are requested to submit forms for conducting private work
outside the Agency’s service. Employees are required to obtain CEO’s approval prior to conducting private work
outside the Agency’s service. In line with the new Public Service Regulations issued in August 2016, employees
conducting business with an organ of state were requested to disclose such business and to elect either to cease
conducting such business or resign as employees of the Agency. Conflicts of interest are declared by members
of the Bid Adjudication, Bid Specification and Bid Evaluation Committees and interview panels. Members of
these Committees and interview panels are appointed by the Accounting Officer.
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Agency is committed to a philosophy of Integrated Compliance Risk Management as a core managerial
capability, which is aligned to the principles of the King Report, the standards set by the Compliance Institute
of SA and the legislative requirements of the PFMA. In addition, the Audit Committee oversees and provides
advice on the Agency’s compliance activities.
INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT
The Agency places special emphasis on control activities within the financial, supply chain management,
compliance and performance information process areas, and these areas are subject to robust audits from both
internal and external audit.
RISK INSURANCE
During the 2018/19 FY, the Risk Management Unit ensured that insurance requirements of the Agency are met.
An Insurance Broker has been appointed to cover the NYDA assets and liabilities. The insurance renewal process
is conducted on an annual basis and claims continue to be processed timeously.
BUSINESS CONTINUITY MANAGEMENT
The Risk Management and the Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Units continue embarking on
processes to the update business continuity and implementation is ongoing.
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PARTNERSHIPS FOR YOUTH
DEVELOPMENT

The NYDA has a mandate of looking after the holistic development of young people in South
Africa. This responsibility requires that the Agency interfaces and engages different stakeholders
in different sectors. The purpose of these engagements is to develop strategic partnerships that
have the goal of assisting youth with career development and finding employment, developing
their businesses and finding educational opportunities. In this light, the NYDA has over the course
of 2018 partnered with the following organisations in the private, public and civil society sectors:

1. Private Companies
No:
1.
2.

Partner
Glencore (Pty) Ltd
Moripe (Pty) Ltd

3.

Areas of Collaboration / Benefits to the NYDA
Provision of funds and support for the operationalization of NYDA business
incubation centers.
Development of Internships and youth employment creation projects.
The Sasol partnership with Tushiya have trained our existing clients in

Sasol (Pty) Ltd

business management and capacity building to prepare them to be
included in the Sasol database and after the training they were offered 3
years’ contract to be suppliers of Sasol.

4.

Verge (PTY) LTD has trained our Cooperatives on crop production in
Verge (PTY) LTD

collaboration with an environmental center in the Mkhondo Local
municipality in Amsterdam.

5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

ABSA Bank
IBM

Provision of funds and support for the operationalization of NYDA business
incubation centers.
To partner on an IBM online academic initiative that provides access to ICT
training on emerging technologies.

Procurement

Developing access to procurement opportunities to youth owned

Performance Institute

businesses in South Africa at large.

SABMiller
IDC (CSI)

10.

Collaboration on entrepreneurship development programmes
implemented by SAB and NYDA.
Co-funding of identified farmers within Limpopo.
Establishment of a clothing textile hub in the Gauteng Province; joint Youth

Metro Lifestyle (Pty) Ltd

Development programmes, job placements; internships; and market access
for goods.

11.

Technogirl

Access to job shadowing and the establishment of the Technogirl Alumni
Programme.

12.

Digititan (Pty) Ltd

Training of 25 graduates on ICT.

13.

L’Oréal Paris

Training in Cosmetology.
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2. Partnerships with Government Departments / Agencies / State Enterprises and Companies
No:
1.

Partner

Areas of Collaboration / Benefits to the NYDA

Eskom Enterprises

Provision of funds and support for the operationalization of NYDA business
incubation centers.

Department of Social
2.

•

Department (DSD) in the

NYDA is using DSD LYO across the District to deliver our 		
programmes especially in the rural areas.

Free State

•

Partnering in NYDA training offerings.

SEDA

•

Conducting of training at SEDA offices in different Districts in the
Free State.

3.

•

Referral of Grant Programme applicants from SEDA.

•

Provision of training facilities by SEDA in the different districts.

4.

KZN EDTEA

Provision of financial support for the Grants Programme.

5.

KZN Ezemvelo Wildlife

Provision of Job Placements, Vouchers and Grants in the Tourism sector.

6.

MICT Seta

Provision of trainings, vouchers and grants in the ICT sector.

Free State Department of

•

Economic Development,
7.

Small Business, Tourism

Co-Funding of Young Entrepreneurs and reporting on the work the
Agency doing.

•

The department is also linking the Agency with Private Sector.

and Environmental Affairs •

The department provides the Agency with research outcomes and

(DESTEA)

guidance regarding youth issues in the province.

Free State Office of the

•

Premier
8.

Linking the Agency in all the departments in the province and
providing political guidance on number of issues.

•

Assistance with establishment of relationships with Municipalities
that led to the establishment of two district offices in Tweeling and
Trompsburg.

9.
10.
11.

Mangaung Metropolitan The municipality will contribute funds towards the Grant Programme to
Municipality

ensure that NYDA funds more young people in the Metro.

Free State Development

•

Project Co-Funding with Free State Development Corporation.

Corporation (FDC)

•

Referrals from FDC for Training and the Grant Programme.

BankSeta

Provision of job placements and leanerships.

Transnet SOC LTD

Empowerment and equipment of youth in skills development (Artisan

12.

Training), enterprise development, job creation and economic
empowerment for young people in the republic.

13.

Services SETA

14.

NSFAS

15.

Gauteng Department
of Agriculture and Rural
Development

16.

Mpumalanga Youth fund Establishment of youth employment programmes.

17.

South African Youth
Council

Youth Development Coordination at a National Level.

18.

Department of
Correctional Services

Collaboration on business plan and pitching for offenders who have been
given parole.
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3. Local Government Partnerships
No:
1.

2.
3.

Partner

Areas of Collaboration / Benefits to the NYDA

Govan Mbeki Local

•

Municipality
Gert Sibande CFE

CFE has provided space and training for our Grant clients who will be
operating in their premises as part of their Incubation Programme.

Gert Sibande District

They want to co-fund the co-operatives with us in our District of
Gert Sibande.

Municipality
Elias Motsoaledi Local

4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.

•

As part of their Incubation Programme they will establish10 Kiosks
for our clients through the GMM business incubation
Local Economic development office of GMM is providing space and
lease contracts for most of our beneficiaries.

Municipality

Establishment and hosting of Local Youth Office and Services Seta
Apprenticeship Programme and facilitating the establishment of
Local Youth Councils.

Greater Tzaneen Local

Establishment of an NYDA Services Centre.

Municipality
John Taole Gaetsewe

Establishment of an NYDA Services Centre.

Local Municipality
Kai Garib Local
Municipality

Establishment and hosting of Local Youth Office and facilitating the
establishment of Local Youth Councils.

Namakhoi Local

Establishment and hosting of a Local Youth Office.

Municipality
Mkhambathini Local

Establishment and hosting of a Local Youth Office.

Municipality
Tsantsabane Local
Municipality

Establishment and hosting of Local Youth Office and facilitating the
establishment of Local Youth Councils.

Umhlathuze Local

Establishment of an NYDA Full Service Branch.

Municipality
Alfred Nzo Local

Establishment of an NYDA Full Service Branch.

Municipality
Bushbuckridge Local

Establishment of a District Service Centre.

Municipality
Ekurhuleni City

Establishment of an NYDA Full Service Branch and revitalization of Local
Youth Councils.

15.

Joe Gqabi District
Municipality

Establishment of a District Service Centre.

16.

Naledi Local
Municipality

Establishment of a District Service Centre.

17.

Xhariep District
Municipality

Establishment of a District Service Centre.

18.

Mafube Local
Municipality

Establishment of a District Service Centre.

19.

Uphongolo Local
Municipality

Establishment and hosting of Local Youth Office.

20.

Dr. JS Moroka Local
Municipality

Establishment of a Local Youth Kiosk.

21.

Newcastle Local
Municipality

Establishment of an NYDA Full Service branch.

22.

Umlalazi Local
Municipality

Establishment and hosting of a Local Youth Office.

14.

71

CELEBRATING 10 YEARS OF YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

No: Partner

Areas of Collaboration / Benefits to the NYDA

23.

Victor Khanye Local Municipality

Establishment and hosting of a Local Youth Office.

24.

OR Tambo District Municipality

Establishment of an NYDA Full Service branch.

25.

Mpofana Local Municipality

Establishment and hosting of Local Youth Office and facilitating the
establishment of Local Youth Councils.

26.

Inkosi Langalibalele Local
Municipality

Establishment and hosting of four Local Youth Office.

27.

Sarah Baartman District Municipality Establishment and hosting of a Local Youth Office.

28.

Sedibeng District Municipality

Establishment of an NYDA Full Service branch.

29.

Mafikeng Local Municipality

Establishment of a Youth Service Centre.

30.

Ulundi Local Municipality

Establishment and hosting of five Local Youth Office.

31.

Umhlabuyalingana Local
Municipality

Establishment and hosting of Local Youth Office and facilitating the
establishment of Local Youth Councils.

4. Partnerships with Other Institutions
No: Partner

Areas of Collaboration / Benefits to the NYDA

1.

Provision of funds and support for the operationalization of NYDA business
incubation centers.

Mining Council of South Africa

•

Young people to be recruited for our new Incubation Centers will
graduate and join Black Umbrellas Full Incubation.
Our Grant Beneficiaries to be considered for a full incubation.
Collaboration on all other entrepreneurship development 		
programmes that fit NYDA and Black Umbrellas mandate.

2.

Shanduka Black Umbrellas

•
•

3.

Durban University of Technology

Provision of Mentorship, Vouchers and Grants.

4.

TVET Colleges (Maluti and Goldfield)

They have both given us an opportunity to have a footprint with students
in the province through interventions such Life Skills, Job Preparedness and
Entrepreneurship.

5.

Lephalale TVET College

Capacity building for college personnel and the establishment of a Skills
Development Programme.

6.

LoveLife Trust

Provision of a Youth Office.

7.

Food and Agriculture Organisation
of the United Nations (FAO)

Provision of internship opportunities for university graduates.

8.

Solomon Mahlangu Family

Establishment and implementation of the Solomon Mahlangu Scholarship
Fund (SMSF).

9.

Seed Foundation South Africa

Establishment and hosting of Local Youth Office and facilitating the
establishment of Local Youth Councils.

10.

Godisang Thabazimbi Community
Development Trust

Promoting enterprise development and co-location in the Thabazimbi
Enterprise Development Hub.

11.

Karabo Business Consortium

Establishment and hosting of a Local Youth Office.

12.

University of Johannesburg

Development of business plans for 3rd year School of Hospitality and
Tourism students.

13.

South West College

Business plan and pitching.

14.

Tshwane University of Technology
(TUT)

Business plan development, 3rd year pitching and incubation.

15.

Tshwane North College

Entrepreneurship development training for 3rd year students.

16.

Mabopane Skills Centre

Business plan development, pitching and incubation.

17.

Stinkwater / Mogogela

Business plan and pitching.

18.

Innovation Hub

Business plan and pitching.

19.

Automotive Hub

Business plan and pitching.
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BACKGROUND
International Relations activities of NYDA is derived from work done by the agency. NYDA seeks to coordinate
where necessary and document international youth work across all government departments , civil society
organisations, private sector ect. South Africa has a challenge of coordinating international youth work. Anybody,
be it civil society, private sector ect. is claiming the space when it comes to international work. The establishment
of NYDA has provided those in youth development to better space to better coordinate youth work. Individuals,
organisations travel all over the world claiming to be representing the youth of South Africa, furthermore, those
who claim be representing the country do not report their activities. This then create a situation where there is
no accountability. The aim is to make sure that there is proper coordination when it comes to international youth
work done by various stakeholders with NYDA taking the lead.
OBJECTIVES
• To coordinate where necessary and documentation for international youth work programmes on behalf of
South Africa across all levels of government, Civil Socienty and Private sector in the Republic and,
• To advance skills development/exchange programmes globally,
• To create a platform for youth people to showcase their talents globally,
• To promote South Africa as a preferred destination for the implementation of best practices in
youth development.
AFRICAN WOMEN”S EXHEBITION
The inauguration of the African Women’s Movement (AWM) - Women’s Learning Expedition (WLE) 2018
(#AWMWLE2018) held in Kigali, Rwanda from 24 to 26 May 2018 was in many ways a phenomenal success!
The expedition saw 79 people (91% women) meet in the land of a thousand hills to explore
the topic
“THE SUCCESSION PLAN BLUEPRINT FOR EMERGING WOMEN LEADERS”.
With the launch of the WLE 2018, we identified room for improvement. The mix of baby
boomers, generation-X and millennials in attendance provided for an enriched learning
experience – an energised one at that.
The event was attended by a high calibre of professional
women spanning from across six African countries in the
South, East and Western region.
This afforded delegates a broader spectrum of diverse
views which was fitting with the timing of the expedition
in the period of Africa Day on 25 May 2018, celebrated
in partnership with the Pan African Movement (Rwanda).
Indeed the event achieved its goal as a platform for
learning.
Top right: Umuganda in Gasabo, Rusororo with Kholeka Nemato CA(SA) Above left and right: Africa Day Celebrations on 25 May 2018 at the Kigali Cultural VillageLeft: Paying respect to
those laid to rest at the Kigali Genocide Memorial Below: Enroute in coaster to Parliament
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OBJECTIVES
The WLE was set out to vitalise women and men who see value in women being empowered in unity to
draw from each other’s collective experiences. The objective was to mount a blueprint of a methodical plan
for the advancement of emerging women leaders in Africa. We believe the event has assisted to develop a
bond and solidarity between the professional women in Rwanda, South Africa and the other countries that
were represented, including Ghana and Ivory Coast. This was particularly special in light of the African Union
Extraordinary Summit on the African Continental Free Trade Area that was recently (2018) held in Kigali,
Rwanda.

PARTNERS
The following partners contributed to the success of the event, their participation was enriching
and invaluable:
•

Kora Coaching Group (Rwanda)

•

Career Women’s Network Kigali (CWNK)

•

Pan African Movement (Rwanda)

•

WomEng (WomHub)

THE DUKE OF EDINBURGH AIDE MEMOIRE

The Duke of Edinburgh’s International Award Forum 2018 and Association meetings will be held from Tuesday
30 October to Sunday 4 November in Accra, Ghana where delegates from the Association and the Foundation
will share best practice, troubleshoot issues and celebrate the success of the Award.
During the Forum delegates will have the opportunity to discuss the Award’s global development, understand
the context in which we are all working and to have their say on new policies and plans. This Forum’s theme:
“Shaping the future, shaping our world” brilliantly summarises the opportunity that all have to help shape
the future for young people and position the Award as the leading proponent of non-formal education. There
will also be practical sessions will focus on how we can improve the Access, Reach and Impact of the Award
globally and include a mixture of speakers from within the Association and external experts across a range
of topics.
In this year’s Forum, Ministers from our Operating Countries will be engaged to give advice and participate in
discussions on how to partner with Governments in cascading and meeting individual specific and distinct
National Agendas as well alignment with the Global Youth Agenda. This will be a two day Program running
from 31 October – 2 November, 2018. There will also be an opportunity for Ministers to have bilateral meetings
with the Government of Ghana on 2nd November, 2018. The Closing Ceremony on the 3rd November, 2018 will
be optional for the Ministers.
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ICA COOPERATIVES CONFERENCE IN BUENOS AIRES, ARGENTINA
MEETINGS AND DISCUSSIONS

The conference took place in Buenos Aires, Argentina at the Hotel Panamericano. More than 80 different
countries attended the conference including representatives from India, Uganda, Australia and the USA. The
majority of delegates were from South America. On Sunday, 21st October, a General Assembly was convened
to discuss the current state of the ICA and to accept reports on the financial and organizational wellbeing of
the organization. It also included a panel discussion with high level officials from three UN organizations: the
International Labour Organization (ILO), the Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) and the International
Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD). On Monday, 22nd October, visits to cooperatives in Buenos Aires
belonging to various sectors were organized by the Summit organizer - The Cooperative Confederation of the
Argentine Republic (Cooperar). This was a unique opportunity to get a sense of the Argentinean cooperative
movement directly on the ground. I visited a Cooperative Restaurant called Cafe La Patriotas which was owned
and controlled by 13 members of the community.
From Tuesday, 23rd October to Friday, 26th October, the Summit was convened with various presenters making
presentations under the theme, “Cooperatives at a time of Global Challenges.” The Summit was organized
by Cooperatives of the Americas, the ICA regional body for the Americas, where key topics of global interest
was debated, such as the defence of the planet or the global financial system, with the presence of high level
speakers.

ANALYSIS

The Summit emphasized the role played by cooperative organisations in the defence of the planet, in
strengthening alliances with other social and solidarity-based economy actors, and in building a financial
system at the service of sustainable development. Two days were dedicated to discussing the integration of
more youth into the Global Cooperative Movement. It was highlighted that Global Youth Unemployment levels
are rising and a think tank should be established to look at cooperatives as a means for youth employment
creation. The Summit also resolved to establish a think tank on Entrepreneurship Innovation. I attended the
breakaway sessions on Cooperatives and the Solidarity Economy, Cooperatives and Youth, Cooperatives and the
Global Financial System and Cooperatives and the Environment.
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BRICS Youth Summit SA

The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) in partnership with the Department of Planning, Monitoring,
and Evaluation (DPME) hosted the Fourth BRICS Youth Summit in Bela Bela, Limpopo, South Africa from the 16
to 18 July 2018. The event was held under the theme: “Radical Economic Transformation – Making the New
Development Bank Works for the Youth”. The BRICS Youth Summit provided an opportunity for the youth to
prepare themselves for the Fourth Industrial Revolution. It also gave the young people an opportunity to explore
long-lasting solutions to end poverty and reduce the unemployment rate among the BRICS nations.
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Introduction

The period under review was to mainly give effect to the National Youth Service Coordination Framework that
was approved by the Cabinet in 2017. The Key Performance areas developed were in line with the provisions
of the framework as it relates to the role of the NYDA. The strategic focus was to continue develop tools of
engagement and continue cultivate more partners to take the programme to scale. We successfully managed
to build collaborations with Government, Civil Society and Private sector organs to broaden the frontiers for
youth development

Background Information
NYS is a Flagship Programme of Government that seeks to promote social cohesion, nation building and
patriotism whilst providing opportunities for skills development, community service and exit pathways for
the youth. It builds their character and enables young people to give back to society. It addresses past racial
segregation by enabling young people to share common spaces such that they recognise common humanity
in each other thereby achieving the ideals of our nation.

•

Social Cohesion

NYS
IDEALS

Nation building

citizens
•

Fights exclusion and marginalization

•

Creates a sense of belonging to all citizens

•

Call for all South Africans to participate in activities that promote and
strive for pride in a common national identity

•

Patriotism

Promoting a country that works towards the wellbeing of all its

Promoting mass participation in national activities through Sports,
Arts and Culture, eg: knowing national symbols, the National flag,
a strong sense of patriotism and allegiance to South Africa
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IMPLEMENTATION MODEL OF NYS

Training;
Character Building
and personal
development

Service,
Social
cohesion and
patriotism.

Aftercare
Support
and Exit
Opportunities

NYS ANCHOR PROGRAMMES

SKILLS
PROGRAMME

EXPANDED VOLUNTEER
PROGRAMME (EVP)

Targets unemployed youth (NEET), NYSP

The programme seeks to create

participants engaged in service ranging

platform for young people to

between six and eighteen months.

engage in Service Activities within
their communities.

2 and 3 of the NYSP.

and CBOs

Projects being implanted nationally

•

Implementers training workshops

Projects under the EVP:

conducted, and projects being

•

GYSD (municipalities)

monitored on site.

•

Partnership with Civil Society
in projects ranging from health
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Collins Cabane Community College

Flemish Cooperation

•

of Government.

participate in the democratic processes

flowing from both categories
Norms and standards developed

at National, Provincial and Local spheres

-In partnership with IEC to encourage youth to 		

The EVP focuses on programme

•

Establishment of Coordinating structures

Voter Education and Registration
Campaigns 			

–Home for Young artisans.

Implementation is through partnership
with NPOs and Government. Department.

FLAGSHIP
PROGRAMMES

–Capacity building interventions for youth NPOs

The Young Patriots Programme (TYPP)
– In partnership with the DAC

Transnet School of Engineering
– Skills Development training artisans

& wellness, high school tutoring,
HIV/AIDS awareness, school
holiday programmes.

Nelson Mandela Day 			
–Commemoration of the live and the legacy of the first
President of our Democratic Government.
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Solomon Mahlangu Voter Education Campaign
The NYSU implemented a campaign to support the IEC national roll-out of the Voter Registration and Education
for the 2019 National General Elections. The strength of any democracy depends on the extent to which the
public is engaged in democratic processes such as elections. Young people are often seen to be apathetic due
to their low participation rates in elections. South Africa’s democracy is young and the NYDA endeavours to
contribute to the culture of active youth participation in democratic processes through this campaign.

The Collins Chabane Community College - School for Artisans
This is a legacy project of the National Youth Service (NYS) whose primary aim is to contribute towards the
reduction of unemployment among young people. The programme is named after the Honourable Collins
Chabane as a way of honouring his legacy and commemorating the life-long passion of a stalwart who tirelessly
fought for the youth of this country. The School will serve as a powerful beacon of hope to our people and will
honour the memory of this great son of the soil.

Flemish Cooperation
This year will remain a historic milestone in our cooperation with the Government of the Flanders, in that it
coincides with the commemoration of 20 years since the beginning of this partnership. A document marking
this critical milestone is being developed. The success of our NPO Incubator Programme is testament to the
support of the Flanders. More and more youth led and youth focused NPOs continue to receive much needed
capacity building interventions though this cooperation.
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PARTNERSHIPS ESTABLISHED
ACCREDITED SKILLS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME
PARTNERS

ACRREDITED SKILLS
OFFERED

1.

Department of Public Works

10. Department of Higher Education

17. EDCON Group

Construction & Infrastructure

2.

Department of Human Settlements

11. Economic Development

18. Sponsor Me Trust

Development; Environmental

3.

Department of Cooperative

12. Department of International

19. PPC Cement

& Nature Conservation;

20. The Wnyard Academy

Artisan Development;

21. Muselwa Trading and Projects

Contractor Development,

Governance
and Traditional Affairs

Relations and Cooperation

4.

Department of Arts and Culture

5.

Department of Correctional Services

6.

Department of Transport

14. Department of Tourism

7.

Transnet School of Engineering

15. Department of Water and

8.

Department of Social Development

9.

MTN Group

13. Department of Sports and
Recreation

Sanitation
16. De Beers Group of Companies

(Pty) LTD
22. In Touch Community
Development (Pty) LTD
23. Best Better Skills Development
(Pty) LTD.

Health Promotion; Peer
Education,
Leadership Development;
Social & Community
facilitation; Community
Profiling; Arts and Culture.

EXPANDED VOLUNTEER PROGRAMME(Youth formations, Churches, CSOs and Universities)
24. Falesizwe Secondary School

37. Ipelegeng School For Disabled

47. Mahikeng Local Municipality

Day care services; Cleaning of

25. Moshate Secondary School

38. Mokgatlo Wa Batjha Wa

48. Lekwa Teemane Local

parks, painting of schools,

26. Selelekela Secondary School

Bapostolo

Municipality;

home visits for indigent

27. Dinokaneng Secondary School

39. Hope For Africa Foundation

49. Greater Taung Local Municipality families, Food Security &

28. Setjhaba Secondary School

40. City Of Joburg

50. Emfuleni Local Municipality

Nutrition Campaign, Reading

29. Tsebo Secondary School

41. Thembisile Hani Local

51. Witzenburg Local Municipality

campaign; Arts & Cultural

30. Khethatsebo Secondary School

52. Breede Valley Local Municipality

Campaigns, Voter Education &

31. Lodirile Secondary School

42. JB Marks Local Municipality

53. Tshwane North College

Registration Campaign,

32. Katleho Secondary School

43. Dr JS Moroka Local Municipality

54. Mogale City Municipality

Environmental & Nature

33. Walter Sisulu University

44. Chief Albert Luthuli Local

55. Lovelife Trust

Conservation, HIVAIDS

56. Beyond Expectations

Awareness Campaign; Social
Dialogues.

34. Northern Cape Rural College

Municipality

Municipality

35. Tshwane University of Technology

45. University of Limpopo

57. North West University

36. Moses Kotane Local Municipality

46. Tsoga Bokone Bophirima NPO

58. Sol Platjie University

GEOGRAPHICAL SPREAD OF THE CIVIL SOCIETY ORGANS
GEOGRAPHICAL SPREAD OF THE CIVIL SOCIETY ORGANS
The NPO
NYS NPO
Incubator
Programme
is aimed
capacitatingyouth
youth led
led and
with
skills
The NYS
Incubator
Programme
is aimed
atat
capacitating
andyouth
youthfocused
focusedNPOs
NPOs
with
skills that
that empower
them to operate
as fully functional
entities.
The following
training
interventions
were
empower
them to operate
as fully functional
entities.
The following
skills skills
training
interventions
were
offered

for the
2018/19:
offered
for the 2018/19:
•
•

Leadership skills
• Leadership skills
Mental toughness
• writing
Mental toughness
Proposal

•

• Proposal writing
Life skills

•

• Life skills
Entrepreneur
development

•

•

Financial
managementdevelopment
• Entrepreneur
Each participating NPO had to initiate a community development project that seeks to address the social
ills identified in communities. Upon submission of their reports, the complying NPOs receives a grant to the
tune of R5 000 towards project management costs. The idea is to cultivate a culture of Service, Activism and
Leadership among the youth.
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NPOs participating in the NYS Incubator Programme

6%
10%

16%

6%
15%

8%

EC 37

MP 19

FS 36

NC 13

GP 36

NW 24

KZN 26

WC 13

LP 30

13%
15%
11%

NYS IN ACTION

NYS-Human Settlements
(NHBRC)- Lesedi Local Municipality Skills Project

2018 Voter Education Campaign

Collins Chabane School for Artisans

NYS IEC 2018 Voter Education & Registration
Campaign
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NYS IN ACTION

Mamelodi Nelson Mandela Day Commemoration

NYS Campaigns and Social Dialogues

86

Social Dialogue
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This was another successful year for the programme that saw a number of new partners across sectors embracing
it as a model through which they can make a contribution towards youth development in the country. The next
year will usher in a collaboration with the Unemployment Insurance Fund to train out of school, unemployed
youth and enhance their employability.
We also anticipate our NPO Capacity Building Programme to grow and for the NYS to be positioned as the
programme of choice for Government Departments, Private Sector and for developing the capacity of youth
led and youth focused NPOs. With lack of technical capacity, many youth NPOs operating in townships and rural
areas are bereft of organisational development interventions.
The chief concern in the coming years will be how to continue to increase the scale of our interventions. With
limited funding, our method of increasing the scale and impact of our interventions will be the continued
implementation of campaigns, capacity building of our partners and influencing development practices in our
areas of focus through sharing of best practice models.
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NYDA OPERATIONS

Service Delivery points
The NYDA increased its number of Branches from 17 FY 2017/2018 Full-Service Branches located in all provinces
to 19 and opened 18 District Offices and 10 kiosks through partnerships with municipalities.
The District offices will enable the Agency to provide increased support to the youth in rural municipalities.
The Agency has also increased its outreach mobile fleet with an additional four (4) vehicles in order to further
increase its rural reach.
Economic participation
The Grant Program continues to be the Agencies’ Flagship Programme that aims to stimulate entrepreneurship
amongst youth in the country. This is especially in a country with one of the lowest entrepreneurship barometers
in the world for young people. Young people in South Africa continue to hold the perception that the solution
to escaping poverty lies in obtaining an education and entering the labour force. Young people continue to fear
entrepreneurship.
The programme has a number of businesses succeeding beyond year 1 after the grant stimulus funding with
the NYDA continuing to provide financial support through its Voucher Programme and non-financial support
through its post disbursements and mentorship support. The Grant Programme has seen substantial demand
amongst young people and has become the most popular programme of the Agency.
JOBS Programme
The current depressed economic climate in the country has made the NYDA more innovative in finding
opportunities for employment for our youth. The organisation placed 5 481 young people in job opportunities.
Through partnership agreements, the organisation was able to place 2,010 placed in job opportunities.
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Services SETA(SSETA)
In 2018 Services and National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) renewed the Apprenticeship Agreement
committing R29 150 000.00 to provide apprenticeship training opportunity to 583 unemployed youth.
The Apprenticeship is a 3-year long programme. At the end of the programme learners must go through result
of trade test in specific trade. Currently we have 524 apprentices on the programme.
Below is Learner Demographics in terms of Gender, Trade, Sector and Provincial location.
1.1 Gender
Gender
Male

259

Female

265

1.2 Trade
Stats
Boiler Apprenticeship

127

Fitter Apprenticeship

30

Electrical Apprenticeship

174

Plumber Apprenticeship

39

Bricklayer Apprenticeship

42

Diesel Mechanics Apprenticeship

39

Welding Apprenticeship

38

Carpentry Apprenticeship

15

Motor Mechanics Apprenticeship

20
524

200

127
174

80

42
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15

20
Motor Mechanics
Apprenticeship

38

Carpentry
Apprenticeship

39

Welding
Apprenticeship

39

Electrical
Apprenticeship

Fitter
Apprenticeship

Boiler
Apprenticeship

30

Plumber
Apprenticeship

60
40
20
0

Diesel Mechanics
Apprenticeship

140
120
100

Bricklayer
Apprenticeship

180
160
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1.3 Learner Geographical Location
Province
Limpopo

190

KwaZulu-Natal

99

North West

8

Mpumalanga

24

Gauteng

77

Eastern Cape

28

Northern Cape

19

Free State

79

Western Cape

0
524

200

127

180
160
140
120
100

99
77

80
60
40
20
0

24

79
28
19

8

Western Cape

Free State

Northern Cape

Eastern Cape

Gauteng

Mpumalanga

North West

KwaZulu-Natal

Limpopo

0

1.4 Sector
Sector
Engineering

280

Construction

244
524

93

CELEBRATING 10 YEARS OF YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

National Youth Development Agency
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

1.4 Training Providers
Training Providers
Technotrain

98

Industries Education and Training Institute

27

Clean Heat Academy

33

Better Best Engineering Skill Development

71

Tjeka Training Matters

41

Thekwini TVET College

64

Better Best Agri Development

57

KwaZulu-Natal Automotive Training Centre

20

Bokgoni Training and Development

19

In Touch College

15

Maluti TVET College

79
524

98
71

80

41

64

79
57
19

15

Bokgoni Training and
Development

In Touch College

Maluti TVET College

20
KwaZulu-Natal
Automotive Training
Centre

Better Best Agri
Development

Thekwini TVET College

33

Tjeka Training Matters

Industries Education
and Training Institute

Technotrain

27

Clean Heat Academy

60
40
20
0

Better Best Engineering
Skill Development

200
100

2 FAO Internship Programme
The NYDA signed a Cooperation Agreement with the Food and Agriculture Organisation (FAO) which is a
subsidiary of the United Nations to implement an Internship Programme for unemployed graduates in the field
of agriculture.
The main objectives of this internship programme are:
•

To equip graduates with the necessary, appropriate and practical skills to improve their chances of accessing
sustainable economic opportunities.

•

To assist in developing the Agriculture Industry in South Africa to benefit from the knowledge and skills of
qualified graduates.

•

To boost Human rResources capacity for the Agriculture industry.

Graduates were recruited from the NYDA’s JOBS Database to take part in the programme. The programme
successfully completed in November 2018 with 5 graduates who were placed at FAO Johannesburg and Pretoria
Offices to gain workplace experience.
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NYDA-funded interns in the FAO Office in South Africa. From left: Mr Sutabulela Pheshe,
Ms Sinegugu Msweli, Ms Bonolo Madito, Ms Nasiphi and Ms Kim Shilenge.
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Launch of offices

Newcastle

Alfred Nzo

96
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Tweeling

Empangeni

97

CELEBRATING 10 YEARS OF YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

National Youth Development Agency
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

Kiosks

Mobile Office

Our Youth
Our Future

Our Youth
Our Future

0800 52 52 52
www.nyda.gov.za
National Youth Develpment Agency

www.nyda.gov.za | 0800 52 52 52

NYDARSA

NYDARSA

National Youth Develpment Agency

Our Youth
Our Future

Our Youth
Our Future

Our Youth
Our Future

0800 52 52 52
www.nyda.gov.za
National Youth Develpment Agency
NYDARSA

www.nyda.gov.za | 0800 52 52 52
NYDARSA

National Youth Develpment Agency
0800 52 52 52
www.nyda.gov.za
National Youth Develpment Agency
NYDARSA
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Human Resources

The Agency’s vision continues to drive Human Resources unit in ensuring that all its efforts are directed to
making a meaningful and sustainable difference in the lives of the South African youth.
Our employees remain our greatest asset and are at the centre of our everyday action. The Agency recognises
and places its staff at the forefront of everything it does.
The year under review was characterised by implementation of the Human Resources strategy and plan as
approved by the Board. This exercise, we believe, enables the Agency to transform into an effective and efficient
public entity focusing on youth development as its core mandate. The HR strategy and plan supports the overall
organisational strategic objectives, assist in improving current effectiveness and efficiencies of the various
departments and finally improve the service level standards.
Set HR priorities for the year under review
For the year under review, the following deliverables, as aligned to the Board approved HR plan were successfully
and timeously achieved:
•

2017/18 close out report

•

Performance Management workshops and staff training for all employees

•

Performance Contracting

•

Alignment of contracting with ERP HR design phase

•

Approval and Implementation of the updated HR structure

•

Approval of Rewards and Recognition Framework, Charter as well as Committee

•

Development of Performance Management Standard Operating Processes (SOP’s)

•

Design of employee hand-book

•

Identification of Manager’s Capacity Building Programmes

•

Reinforcement of the Agency’s values
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Workforce planning and key strategies to attract and recruit skilled and capable workforce

A critical component of the Agency in delivering against its mandate is our ability to continually align our
needs and priorities with those of our workforce. This enables us to meet legislative, regulatory and service
requirements as well as the Agency’s objectives.
During the year under review, priority was on placement of capable staff into identified critical positions. A total
of 15 critical positions were identified, prioritised and successfully recruited and appointed on time. Internal staff
remain our priority when there is a vacancy. It is only when the required skills set could not be internally found,
an external recruitment advertisement would be placed on the Agency’s website and through Recruitment
Agencies as well as National newspapers. The process we follow in recruiting skilled and capable workforce is
open, transparent and rigorous.
Employee Performance Management Framework
The Employee Performance Management Framework is embedded within the NYDA Performance Management
Policy. The Performance Management Cycle guides the coordination of Performance Management Strategies
and is inclusive of the following elements:
•

Performance Planning

•

Performance Contracting

•

Employee Capacity Building

•

Monitoring performance appraisals

•

Evaluating performance

•

Employee Reward and Recognition

For the year under review, focus continued to be placed on high performance. As the Agency prides itself
in achieving 100 percent of its Key Performance Areas (KPI’s) and Clean Audits, Performance Contracting and
reviews remain a key focus in ensuring delivery. To that end, all Performance contracts and Reviews were signed
off by all staff on time. This continues to ensure a consistent and fair practice in rewarding those who have
performed above expectations while encouraging others to improve.
Employee Wellness Programme
The purpose of our Employee Wellness Policy is to:
•

Promote and enhance personal and occupational health and wellness of the Agency

•

Ensure that the Agency is compliant with the legislation regulating employee health and safety.

The key activities implemented for the year under review include:
•

69 employees were reached through counselling and advisory services

•

204 individuals participated in the NYDA annual Health and Wellness Road Show
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(Health Risk Assessments).
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Highlights
•

702 Walk the Talk – 74 participants

•

Women’s Day

•

Deaf SA selling of stickers – R1000 was raised

•

Heritage Day - Bring and share theme with traditional attire

•

Wellness Day across all Branches and Head-Office

•

Blood donations

Awareness Campaign themes for 2018/19 FY
•

World Autism Awareness Day - 02nd April 2018

•

World Health Day – 07th April 2018

•

World Malaria Day – 25th April 2018

•

World Hypertension Day – 17th May 2018

•

World Blood Donor Day- 14th June 2019

•

National Epilepsy Day – 21st June 2018

•

World Hepatitis Day – 28th July 2018

•

World Breastfeeding Week- 1st-7th August 2018

•

International Foetal Alcohol Syndrome Day- 09th September 2018

•

World Mental Health Day 10th October 2018

•

World Sight Day 11th October 2018

•

World Diabetes Day 14th November 2018

•

16 Days of Activism for No Violence Against Women and Children 25th Nov-10th Dec 2018

•

World AIDS Day – 1st December 2018

•

TB Awareness Month – 01st March to 31st March 2019

Future HR plans/goals
The Future HR plans and goals are informed by the approved HR strategy and plan and can be summarised as:
•

Continued staff capacity building (Job based training, Personal Development Plans training and 		

		Leadership Development)
•

Living the NYDA values

•

Talent Management

•

Continued performance management refresher workshops

•

Communicating the HR strategy

•

Conducive and enabling environment for all staff
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Code of Conduct and Ethics, and Policy update

The Agency’s Code of Conduct and Ethics policy continues to be implemented and monitored. The purpose of
the policy is to:
•

Provide guidance in relation to ethical conduct of employees about their relationship with the Agency
other employees and the public

•

Promote the spirit of accountability, fairness and transparency amongst employees in the execution of
their duties and responsibilities

•

Ensure that employees always act in the best interest of the Agency

•

Set out standards of conduct expected from NYDA staff

•

Serve as a brief description of the NYDA’s core values

•

Provide a framework for identifying conduct that is ethical and acceptable for NYDA staff who, effectively
act as its agents at all levels

•

Create the context for the ethical use of authority

•

Support all efforts aimed at curbing moral degeneration and

•

Promote the principle of Open Government and welcome opportunities to share information with relevant
stakeholders.

Health, Safety and Environmental Issues
The Agency is committed to comply with applicable South African legislation pertaining to Occupational
Health & Safety Management and safety standards. With the co-operation of each employee of the Agency,
it ensures that a healthy, safe and secure working environment is maintained.
During the year under review, the following activities happened:
•

Appointment of representatives for new full-service branches as well as Districts

•

Training of representatives

•

Committee meetings

•

First Aid refills

•

Fire drill
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Learning and Development
Our Learning and Development purpose is to ensure all employees have the necessary knowledge, skills
and qualifications to perform competently in their jobs, in line with the Agency’s strategic objectives and
mandate.
The Summarised Training Report is for year under review:
Course Name

Number of attendees

Introduction to Samtrack

3

4 Annual Board Secretaries: Turning Tides

2

First Aid Level 1

36

Fire Fighting

58

OHSA Representative

58

7th Africa Facilities Management Master Class

1

Sage (HR Employee Management workshop and HR Job Management)

1

Provision of handyman and general maintenance training

1

Sage (HR Job management, HR employee Management, HR performance
management, HR Reporting, HR Equity and HR Skills)

2

Train the trainer training

2

Torque IT

1

th

Project Management

1

YDISA Board Training

10

Project Management certification programme

1

Fraud Examiners

1

Certificate in forensic investigation Techniques

1

Short Learning Programme (Office Administration)

1

105

CELEBRATING 10 YEARS OF YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

National Youth Development Agency
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

Bursaries
A total of 145 applications were processed and 137 duly approved for 2018 academic year.
•

Positions breakdown:
Occupational Classification

Total

Management (Executives Directors, Senior Managers and Managers)

15

Specialists (Coordinators and Specialists)

25

Officers

65

Administrators

32

•

Qualifications breakdown:
Qualification Level

Total

Masters, Doctoral and PHD

16

Post Graduate qualification

26

Undergraduate

67

Certificates and Diplomas

28
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Equity Report
Occupational Levels

Male

Female

Foreign
Nationals

TOTAL

A

C

I

W

A

C

I

W

Male

Female

Executive and Senior
Management

2

0

1

0

3

0

0

0

0

0

6

Professionally qualified

19

1

0

0

17

0

0

0

0

0

37

Skilled technical

74

3

0

0

112

7

1

0

0

1

198

Semi-skilled

21

1

0

1

48

4

0

0

0

0

75

Unskilled

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Undefined

43

0

0

48

0

0

0

0

0

91

TOTAL PERMANENT

159

1

1

228

11

1

0

0

1

407

5

Human Resources Oversight Statistics
Personnel costs by programme
Programme

Total
Personnel
Expenditure Expenditure
for the
(R’000)
Entity
(R’000)

Personnel
No of
Average
Exp. as Employees Personnel
a % of
Cost per
Total Exp.
Employee
(R’000)
(R’000)

Office of the Chief Executive Officer

20 761

8 179

4,56%

14

584

Financial Services Division

35 858

17 239

9,62%

25

690

Corporate Services

76 695

15 941

8,89%

28

569

National Youth Services

36 646

11 523

6,43%

17

678

Corporate Strategy and Planning

17 525

10 336

5,77%

13

795

Programme, Design, Development and
Delivery

275 093

104 572

58,35%

265

395

Office of the Executive Board

31 080

11 440

6,38%

27

424

TOTAL

493 658

179 230

100%

389

4 134

Personnel cost by salary band
Level

Top Management
Senior Management
General Staff
Office of the Board
TOTAL

Total
Expenditure
for the
Entity
(R’000)
8 577

% of
No. of
Personnel Employees
Exp. To
Toatal
Personnel
Cost (R’000)
4,79%

7

Average
Personnel
Cost per
Employee
(R’000)
1 225

4 964

2,77%

5

993

157 433

87,84%

350

450

8 256

4,61%

27

306

179 230

100%

389
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Performance rewards
Programme

Performance
Personnel
Rewards Expenditure
(R’000)

Top Management

% of Performance
Rewards to
Total Personnel Cost

1 239

7

707

5

7 045

350

Board

382

12

TOTAL

9 373

374

Senior Management
General Staff

Reasons for Leaving
Reason

Number

% of Total
No. of Staff
Leaving

Death

1

2

Resignation

15

28

Dismissal

2

4

Retrenchment

0

0

Retirement

1

2

Ill Health

0

0

Expiry of Contract

35

65

Voluntary Severence Package

0

0

Other

0

0

Movements
Number of Employees per Programme

2016/2017
No.of
Employees

2017/2018
No.of
Employees

2018/2019
No.of
Employees

Office of the Chief Executve Officer

17

11

12

Finance and Supply Chain

20

25

26

Corporate Services

27

31

32

National Youth Services (NYS)

17

17

18

Programme Development, Design and Delivery

255

266

316

Corporate Strategy and Planning

11

12

17

Office of the Executive Board

0

19

27

347

381

448
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EMPLOYEES BURSARIES

Name & Surname

Qualification Achieved

Position

Sithembile Gwala

Post Graduate Diploma in
Business Management

Business Development
Administrator

Simon Mokoena

Honours in Political Sciences

Rural Development Officer

Glen Tawuli

Honours in Supply Chain
Management

Manager: Facilities

Busi Khalo

Post Graduate Diploma in Public
Administration

Specialist: NYS

Phuthi Mojela

Management Advanced
Programme

Business Development Officer

Naomi Siko

Higher Certificate in Human
Resources

Jobs Officer

Tumelo Qhali

Post Graduate Diploma in
Corporate Law

Manager: Private Investments

Hlengiwe Cele

Post Graduate Diploma in
Business Management

Branch Manager

Certificate in Labour Resolutions

Specialist: Employee Relations
& Wellness

Higher Certificate in Project
Management

Executive Assistant

Mmeli Danisa
Sibongile Dubo

Angy Mchandane

Lerato Gambu
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Nosiphiwo Mayekiso

3/6/2018

Sithembile Gwalaa

IMG-20180226-WA0002.jpg

Phuti Mojela
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance is the system of rules and processes to which organisations are controlled and guided.
The NYDA Board of Directors, appointed in May 2017 by the State President under the NYDA Act of 2008, has
ensured that the Corporate Governance principles are observed when playing their oversight role at the Agency.
Operated with six (6) members following resignation from Mr Ndumiso Mokako by the end of last Financial Year
(2017/18), the Board has, in the year under review, met quarterly to ensure that there are proper control systems
in place, compliance with applicable statutes and further ensured that the governance of risk is monitored
effectively. The Members on the Board possess adequate experience, expertise and skills necessary to manage
the affairs of the Agency in the most effective and efficient manner. To ensure continuity, the Board has through
a rigorous recruitment process, appointed the former Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Mr Waseem Carrim to the
position of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) following resignation from the former CEO, Mr Khathu Ramukumba
in the previous financial year.
1. The Executive Authority
In ensuring that the Executive Authority has significant input in Youth Development matters, the NYDA
Board has held regular meetings with the Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation (DPME) in the
Presidency, led by Hon. Minister Nkosazana Dlamini Zuma.
2. Portfolio Committee on Public Service and Administration
Parliament Portfolio Committee on Public Service and Administration was responsible for oversight on
the work of the Agency and monitors service delivery. The Agency has in the year under review, attended
quarterly meeting reporting to the committee and has been submitting reports as and when required.
3. Board Meetings and attendance
During the current Financial Year, ten (10) Board meetings were held. The Board Members and meeting
attendance records during the 2018/19 Financial Year were as follows:
Member

Appointment date

No of Meetings
attended

Sifiso Mtsweni (Chairperson)

May 2017

10

Bavelile Hlongwa (Deputy Chair)

May 2017

8

Kenny Morolong (Non-exec Member)

May 2017

10

Yershen Pillay (Non-exec Member)

May 2017

7

Zandile Majozi (Non-exec Member)

May 2017

8

Joy Maimela (Non-exec Member)

May 2017

10

Waseem Carrim

April 2018

(ex-officio
member without voting rights)

10
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3.1		

To ensure good governance, compliance with recommended practices as well as fairness, accountability,
and transparency, the Board has in the year under review, reviewed and deliberated the Board and
Committee charters as well as Delegation of Authority Policy. It has furthermore, reviewed and approved
Fraud and Prevention Policy which was established to facilitate the development of controls to assist
in the reinforcement of existing systems, policies and procedures of the NYDA as well as Supply Chain
Management Policy which informs the NYDA Supply Chain Management Systems and processes towards
ensuring that the Agency comply with Government preferential procurement policy objective of Black
Economic Empowerment and development of Small Micro Medium enterprises.

		

•

In the quest to improve ICT Governance, the Cyber Security Strategy was developed and deliberated
by the Board to preserve and improve the protection of sensitive agency data against loss, malicious
alteration, and unauthorised use, as well as Data & Information security policy as recommended by
ICT Steering Committee.

3.2		

The following Board Committees were established as per Section 12 of the NYDA Act of 2008, for the

		

benefit of strong accountability, transparency, integrity and good governance. These Committees have
held regular meetings to fulfil their designated responsibilities, and assisting the Board to perform its
oversight function. To ensure stability and effectiveness of the Committees, the Board has in the third
quarter reviewed the Committee membership and resolved to effect the following changes:

		

•

Ms Majozi replaced Ms Maimela in Investment Committee

		

•

Mr Morolong was added to ICT Steering Committee as additional member

3.2.1 Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
		

The primary objective of the HRR Committee is to assist the Board to discharge its responsibilities
particularly in the area of Human Resource Management within the Agency. The Committee is required
as per the Charter to have the Independent Specialist as additional member whose role is to provide the
Committee with technical and professional advice. The Committee has in the last financial year ensured
finalisation of recruitment of key positions at the Agency including the two (2) Executive Directors and
Chief Financial Officer.

		

The Committee has during the 2018/19 Financial Year, held nine (09) meetings. The membership and
meeting attendance details were as follows:

Member
Kenny Morolong (Chairperson)
Joy Maimela (additional member)
Aobakwe Leepile (Independent member)
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Appointment date

No of Meetings
attended

July 2017

9

July 2017

8

August 2017

4
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3.2.3 Social & Ethics Committee
		

The Committee’s primary role is to supplement, support, advise and provide guidance on the effectiveness
of sustainable development matters as well as ensuring that the NYDA’s ethics are managed effectively as
recommended in principle 1 of the 2016 King IV Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa. The
Committee also oversee the National Youth Service (NYS) Division Programmes on behalf of the Board. It
has in the last financial year reviewed NYS Programmes and recommended reconfiguration of Solomon
Mahlangu Scholarship Fund following the Government pronouncement of free education.

		

The Committee has during the 2018/19 Financial Year, held five (05) meetings. The membership and
meeting attendance details were as follows:

Member

Appointment date

No of Meetings
attended

Joy Maimela (Chairperson)

June 2018

4

Kenny Morolong (additional member)

July 2017

5

Zandile Majozi (additional member)

July 2017

5

		

Following resignation of Mr Mokako from the Board, it was resolved that Ms Maimela take over the reigns
as the Committee Chairperson. Prior to the afore Board decision, the meetings were chaired by one of
the additional members, Mr Morolong.

3.2.4 Investment Committee
		

The Committee’s primary role is to provide oversight on Resource Mobilisation in Corporate Investment
Unit and review debt collection as well as recommending valuation methodology for investments to the
Board. The Committee has in the last Financial Year, deliberated and recommended Private and Public
Partnership Strategies with a view of leveraging opportunities for young people.

		 The Committee has during the 2018/19 Financial Year, held four (04) meetings. The Committee
membership and meeting attendance details were as follows:

Member

Appointment date

No of Meetings
attended

Bavelile Hlongwa (Chairperson)

July 2017

4

Yershen Pillay (additional member)

July 2017

4

Joy Maimela (additional member)

July 2017

3

Zandile Majozi

July 2017

1

115

CELEBRATING 10 YEARS OF YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

National Youth Development Agency
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

3.2.5 ICT Steering Committee
		

The Committee’s primary role is to oversee the execution of the IT related decisions across the NYDA
within the authorities delegated by the Board. The Committee is required as per the Charter to have an
Independent Specialist as additional member whose role is to provide the Committee with technical
and professional advice. The Committee continued to monitor the implementation of the Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) process, moreover, reviewed and recommended Cyber Security Strategy and
Data & Information security policy in the quest to address Audit findings.

		

The Committee has during the 2018/19 Financial Year, held five (05) meetings. The membership and
meeting attendance details were as follows:

Member
Zandile Majozi (Chairperson)
Yershen Pillay (additional member)
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Appointment date

No of Meetings
attended

July 2017

4

July 2017

4

Lufuno Marwala (Independent member)

November 2018

1

Kenny Morolong (additional member)

November 2018

1
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3.2.6 Audit Committee
		

The NYDA Audit Committee is governed by the Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999 (as
amended) (PFMA), the Treasury Regulations and Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal
Auditing (IIA Standards).

		

The Committee is chaired by the Independent Chairperson and also include one additionally Independent
member as well as Non-executive Board member as additional member of the Committee. The contract
of the independent Committee members ended in July 2018. The recruitment of new members was
subsequently resumed and Ms Kalidass was reappointed as the Chairperson, while Mr Labane was
appointed as the new independent Committee member. Ms Maimela was seconded as Additional
member with no voting rights as the Chairperson of Social & Ethics Committee.

		

The Committee has during the 2018/19 Financial Year, held eight (08) meetings. The membership and
meeting attendance details were as follows:

Member

Appointment date

No of Meetings
attended

Rachel Kalidass (Independent Chairperson)

March 2012

8

Tayron Tshitaudzi (Independent Member)

March 2012

2

September 2018

4

Yershen Pillay (NYDA Non-executive Board /additional
Member)

July 2017

8

Joy Maimela (Social & Ethics Committee Chairperson)

June 2018

5

Gideon Labane (Independent Member)
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3.2.7 Executive Management Committee
		

Executive Management Committee is a standard working Committee consists of the Chairperson, Deputy
Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer. Unlike other Committees, it was established by a special
Board meeting held on the 19th May 2017. The Committee is required to meet monthly.

		

Among other responsibilities, the Committee should monitor performance of the Organisation as well as
reviewing and approval of monthly NYDA programmes on behalf of the Board to ensure efficiency at the
Agency.

		

The Committee has during the 2018/19 Financial Year, held seven (07) meetings. The membership and
meeting attendance details were as follows:

Member
Sifiso Mtsweni (Executive Chairperson)
Bavelile Hlongwa (Exe Deputy Chair)
Waseem Carrim (Chief Executive Officer)
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Appointment date

No of Meetings
attended

May 2017

7

May 2017

4

01 April 2018

7
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BOARD PROJECTS

NYDA Executive Chairperson Mr. Sifiso Mtsweni and Executive Deputy
Chairperson, Ms. Bavelile Hlongwa at the Integrated Youth Development
Strategy session which took place in Bela-Bela.

NYDA Executive Chairperson Mr. Sifiso Mtsweni addressed 694
graduates from the Vuselela TVET College. The Diploma and Certification
Ceremony took place in Mayfair Village, Klerksdorp.

NYDA Executive Chairperson Mr. Sifiso Mtsweni on an International
Exchange Programme.

NYDA Executive Chairperson Mr. Sifiso Mtsweni taking interviews with
various media houses during the launch of Youth Month 2018 at Hector
Pieterson Memorial in Soweto.

NYDA Executive Chairperson Mr. Sifiso Mtsweni with NYS Volunteers.

121

CELEBRATING 10 YEARS OF YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

BOARD PROJECTS

NYDA Executive Chairperson Mr. Sifiso Mtsweni with NYDA Board
Member, Mr. Yershen Pillay.

NYDA Executive Chairperson Mr. Sifiso Mtsweni addressed 694
graduates from the Vuselela TVET College. The Diploma and Certification
Ceremony took place in Mayfair Village, Klerksdorp.

NYDA Board Members’ visit Solomon
Kalushi Mahlangu home in Pretoria,
to pay their respect to the family.

8 June 2018 #YouthMonth18
“We are here to revive the militancy of young people to confront social-ills
affecting them”- NYDA Executive Chairperson, Sifiso Tso Ndala Mtswenipaying
his respects to Stalwart, Peter Ramoshoana Mokaba.

NYDA Executive Chairperson Mr. Sifiso Mtsweni meets young
#Trailblazers ahead of #YouthDay18 Commemoration Event.
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The launch of the Empangeni SMME One stop Shop in Umhlathuze.

The signing of an agreement with Umvoti Municipality Mayor,
Councillor Thamsanqa Clive Ngubane for establishment of a Local Youth
Office that will ensure increasing access to products and services for youth.

Deputy Minister of Justice and Correctional Services, Honourable
Thabang Makwetla alongside the Executive Chairperson of NYDA,
Sifiso Mtsweni, Executive Deputy Chairperson, Bavelile Hlongwa and
the family of Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu.

The Flemish Delegation visited South Africa for the bi-annual bilateral
meeting. The meeting was part of the NYDA and Flemish Cooperation’s
Action Plan on the 5-Year Framework of Cooperation on Promoting and
Up-scaling Volunteering in Civil Society Organisations.

President Cyril Ramaphosa’s engages the NYDA Executive Chairperson
during a visit to the NYDA stand.
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NYDA Board Members donated school uniforms to the unfortunate
students as part of the NYS Proud to Serve Campaign.

NYDA Board Members with representatives from Lesotho discussing
the cooperation that sought to ensure participation and youth
representation in all trade agreements discussions between the two
countries.
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South African Youth Awards 2018
South African Youth Awards 2018
Background of the South African Youth Awards
Background
of the South
YouthYouth
Awards
The
primary objective
o f t heAfrican
S outh African
Awards i s to recognise young S outh Africans w ho are

making a positive contribution in the country, the African continent and the rest of the world. The award also
The primary objective o f t he S outh African Youth Awards i s to recognise young S outh Africans w ho are
recognise individuals and organisations that have made an outstanding contribution to youth development,
making a positive contribution in the country, the African continent and the rest of the world. The award also
encouraging the Public sector, Private sector and Civil society to ‘better their best’ in contributing further to
recognise individuals and organisations that have made an outstanding contribution to youth development,
youth development.
encouraging the Public sector, Private sector and Civil society to ‘better their best’ in contributing further to
youth
These development.
awards are one of a kind in that there are thousands of young people who deserve recognition for their

accomplishments, particularly during the challenges some of them face daily. We believe that this form of
These awards are one of a kind in that there are thousands of young people who deserve recognition for their
acknowledgement serves to motivate and inspire other young people by demonstrating that extraordinary
accomplishments, particularly during the challenges some of them face daily. We believe that this form of
things can come out of even the bleakest situations. As a country, we must mainstream youth development
acknowledgement serves to motivate and inspire other young people by demonstrating that extraordinary
by supporting individuals and organisations that contribute to advance the youth agenda. With the SA
things can come out of even the bleakest situations. As a country, we must mainstream youth development
Youth Awards, the NYDA has sought to provide a platform to showcase the exceptional work and
by supporting individuals and organisations that contribute to advance the youth agenda. With the SA
contribution to young people who are making a difference in their communities and to the world and tell
Youth Awards, the NYDA has sought to provide a platform to showcase the exceptional work and
inspiring stories of young people who make extraordinary achievements despite odds and the challenges.
contribution to young people who are making a difference in their communities and to the world and tell
inspiring
stories
of young
people who
extraordinary
achievements
despite
the challenges.
The awards
focuses
on recognising
themake
journeys
of these youth
people, how
theyodds
haveand
succeeded
and fallen

in forming themselves and giving them a platform to showcase their stories. Categories for the South African
The awards focuses on recognising the journeys of these youth people, how they have succeeded and fallen
Youth Awards 2018, The NYDA’s key focus in all its initiatives, programmes, products and services offering is to
in forming themselves and giving them a platform to showcase their stories. Categories for the South African
improve the lives and opportunities available to the youth. Therefore, legacy programmes and sustainability
Youth Awards 2018, The NYDA’s key focus in all its initiatives, programmes, products and services offering is to
are key.
improve the lives and opportunities available to the youth. Therefore, legacy programmes and sustainability
are key.
Categories for the 2018 Youth Awards are:
•Categories
Academic
Excellence
for the
2018 Youth Awards are:
•
Arts & Entertainment (includes music, film, literature and
•
Academic Excellence
dance) Civil Society/Social Cohesion
•
Arts & Entertainment (includes music, film, literature and
•
Entrepreneurship
dance) Civil Society/Social Cohesion
•
Environment includes Agriculture
•
Entrepreneurship
•
Extraordinary Champion (differently abled individuals)
•
Environment includes Agriculture
•
Science, Technology & Innovation (includes medicine)
•
Extraordinary Champion (differently abled individuals)
•
Sports/Health & Wellbeing
•
Science, Technology & Innovation (includes medicine)
•
Presidential Award
•
Sports/Health & Wellbeing
•
Presidential Award
126

are
also
ent,
r to

heir
of
nary
ment
SA
and
tell
.

llen
ican
s to
ility

www.nyda.gov.za

ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE Category
Tebatso Gorgina Moape
Tebatso Gorgina Moape is a 27-year-old female. She holds a Bachelors
and Master’s Degree in Information Technology which she obtained
from the Tshwane University of Technology where she is currently
employed as an Object-Oriented Programming and System Analysis
Lecturer. She is currently registered for her PhD in Computer Science.

Dr Tozama Qwebani-Ogunleye
Dr Tozama Qwebani-Ogunleye is currently working as a Project Manager
at the Vaal University of Technology’s Institute of Traditional Medicine
and Traditional Knowledge. Her interests lies in developing quality
controls for traditional medicines and developing herbal formulations
based on indigenous knowledge. Dr Ogunleye is also an Author of
a book called 20 Fantastic Life Lessons: Insights into my Journey.
She was a member of the National Research Foundation Role
Modelling Campaign which served to encourage high school
learners to pursue studies in the STEM fields. She has won several
accolades including the 2018 TechWomen Fellowship – an initiative of
the US Department of State’s Bureau of Educational and Cultural
Affairs and in 2016 she was amongst the Mail and Guardian Top 200
Youth South Africans. The Department of Science and Technology
has previously awarded her with a Young Women in Science Awards.

Warren Lucas
Warren Lucas’ main focus in Academia has been on anatomy, physiology,
clinical skills, research and sports development. He obtained his
Master’s Degree in Sport Science from the University of Western Cape.
He is currently doing a post-graduate internship as a Research Scientist
at the South African National Medical Research Council. He became
the first and youngest mixed race professional to serve as the President
of Cape Town Gymnastics Association. Warren has created a Youth
Network for Sport, Development and Peace and has been mentoring
youth for many years.
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Arts and entertainement Category
(includes music, film, literature and dance)

Botlhale Boikanyo
Botlhale Boikanyo is a young female who is passionate about the arts.
Botlhale became the first ever poet on SA’s Got Talent and the youngest
winner at the age of 11. She was the SATMA nominee for best poet,
SATMA award recipient for best praise singer, SAMA XXI nominee and
winner for the best traditional album. Botlhale is the youth ambassador
for the Legacy of Hope Foundation based in Los Angeles that works with
the Nelson Mandela Children’s Hospital.

Ballen Tsietsi Matlakala
Ballen Tsietsi Matlakala is the founder of Mshika89 Productions. He
is a creative director, actor and a stand up comedian. He started his
career back in 2003 with Theatre Productions. He is the creator of a
Naledi Award Winning Production called Eight O’Clock. In 2009 he was
the runner up on the SABC 1first season of “So You Think You’re Funny”.
Tsietsi is also a social entrepreneur and a community builder. He has
launched a community library in his township of Hlalanikahle.

Thabo Matsebe
Thabo Matsebe is a 26-year-old Creative Arts Entrepreneur, born and
raised in Soweto. He is a CEO of the House of Thabo Matsebe – a dance
company that sources young dancers in Soweto and train them to
becoming professional freelance dancers. Thabo is also a facilitator and
adjudicator in creative arts for Arts in Schools and Arts in Community
Programmes. Thabo was funded as the Top 10 Gauteng Enterprise
Propeller Pink Economy Pitching Booster Entrepreneurs and in 2018 he
was selected as Top 8 Youth in the Arts Leadership Programme.
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CIVIL SOCIETY/SOCIAL COHESION Category
Kyle Cato
Kyle Cato is a grade 11 learner from Wynberg Boys High School. Kyle
has always had an interest in community service. He has completed:
•

Bronze Presidents Award for 65 hours of service

•

Gold Presidents Award for 250 hours of community service

Kyle runs a plastic recycling project where he collects plastic bottle tops
and fundraises for Operation Smile. In 2016, Kyle was named LeadSA
Youth Hero for his community service projects. He is also the first scout
in SA to be awarded the Scout of World Award. In 2018, Kyle received
the Community Hero Award during the Make a Difference Campaign.

Jessica Ronaasen
Jessica Ronaasen has a Masters in Social Work from Stellenbosch
University. She is currently implementing a parent education
programme for parents to promote education in Early Childhood
Development. Some of Jessica’s achievements include:
•

Becoming a Mandela Rhodes Scholar in 2013

•

A finalist for the NDA ECD Awards – Trainer of the Year

Jessica is also on the management committee of a community based
recycling project in Walmer township called The Re-Trade Project.

Asive Dlanjwa
Asive Dlanjwa has helped thousands of students access higher
education. He has been the Human Rights Ambassador at the University
of Free State. In 2016/2017 he was appointed as the Chairperson of the
Dialogues and Associations Council. Under the Right2Learn Campaign,
Asive cycled for 1 000 kms and managed to raise R407 000 that went
towards registration of 80 students, purchasing textbooks for 107
students. He also led the FeesMustFall Campaign in the Free State.
Asive currently runs a food programme aimed at feeding students
during exams.
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ENTREPRENEURSHIP Category
Lungile Victoria Tembe
Lungile Victoria Tembe started ATE Kitchens without any funding.
Today she employs 14 permanent employees from her community.
She currently runs canteens in various hospitals, clinics and office parks.
Lungile has further adopted 70 orphans and school children whom she
assists with food, clothing and bursaries.

Preachman Vuyani Masuku
Preachman Vuyani Masuku owns Pineapple Internet Café.
He is a beneficiary of the NYDA and has received Grant Funding
which enabled him to run his business. He hails from Malekutu in
Mpumalanga.

Siphumelele Fortune Madlala
Siphumelele Fortune Madlala has a passion for improving
communication and bridging the gap between the deaf and the
hearing communities through sensitization and awareness.
Siphumele registered a company called Forch Communications.
As a sign language interpreter she interprets in legal and educational
settings.
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ENVIRONMENT (INCLUDING AGRICULTURE) Category
Nokubonga Mnyango
Nokubonga Mnyango is passionate when it comes to environmental
issues in particular, waste management and recycling. She left her full
time employment to start a waste recycling company. Her business has
since grown to a point where she had to start a community buyback
centre in the township where members of the society can sell their
recyclable to make a living. Nokubonga also runs a “Dress a Child”
initiative in schools in her area for learners who are in need.

Phori Ntsane
Phori Ntsane excels in food gardening using limited resources.
As young as he is, he is in the industry that is the back of South Africa’s
economy – which is agriculture. Phori uses construction plastic to plant
vegetables – a system that accommodates more production on a small
scale.

Siyanda Ntsumpa
Siya Ntsumpa founded the Giving Them Wings Foundation in 2014.
The foundation adopts township schools where he initiates sustainable
living project such as recycling and vegetable gardening.

al
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EXTRAORDINARY CHAMPIONS (DIFFERENTLY ABLED
INDIVIDUALS) Category
Nkosinathi Ndlovu
Nkosinathi Ndlovu served on a Presidential Working Group representing
youth with disabilities. He founded the South African Deaf Youth
Development Project. Nkosinathi has previously represented South
Africa as the 9th African Youth and Governance Conference. President
Cyril Ramaphosa honoured Nkosinathi with the National Order of
the baobab in Silver for his contribution towards People living with
disabilities.

Nkosinathi Mfundo Shoki
Nkosinathi Mfundo Shoki is an author, international speaker and
an entrepreneur. Growing up, he wanted to become a soccer player
however he lost his right leg in an accident. He holds a B-Tech in Public
Relations from the Durban University of Technology. Nkosinathi establish
Uvolwethy Communications at the age of 20 and has previously won an
award at the First Annual Great Impact Awards.

Mathabo Anna Lehoka
Mathabo Anna Lehoka is visually impaired however this has not
prevented her to chase her dream of becoming a singer. She is a singer,
song writer and has performed at numerous events including at the
National Edsteidfords Awards Ceremony where walked away with an
Ambassadors Award.
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SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY & INNOVATION
(INCLUDES MEDICINE) Category
Valentine Saasa
Valentine Saasa obtained a BSc honours in biochemistry in 2012 at
the University of Limpopo, where she specialised in medicinal plant
extraction for diabetes mellitus management. In 2016, she received an
MSc in biochemistry cum laude from UJ, with the Council for Scientific
and Industrial Research (CSIR) as a sponsor. Her master’s project was
aimed at developing a technology to allow diabetic patients to check
their glucose levels without using needles. She is enrolled for a PhD in
biochemistry at UJ and is doing her research project at the CSIR.
She has published articles in the Journal of Diabetes Science and
Technology (in press) and articles and a book chapter in Sensors
and Transducers. She was one of five young South African women
researchers chosen by the British Council and the Academy of Science
of South Africa to attend a Best Practice in Science Communication UK
study tour in 2016.

Xolani Phakathi
Xolani Phakathi has been quietly designing a range of innovative
computer programmes that are helping the KZN Department of Health
save money, while significantly enhancing its ability to deliver services
smoothly and efficiently to the people. These include:
•
•

A revolutionary web-based application that prevents patients
from obtaining multiple devices such as wheelchairs, walking and
hearing aids; and
A computer programme that enables the Department to
consolidate and monitor procurement plans for health facilities –
making it unnecessary for employees to drive to head office from
all over the province to submit dense documents and data, which
are impossible to email.

Inanda-born Xolani, 34, has also designed a system that manages the
application process for nursing training at the KZN College of Nursing
(the Department gets up to 60 000 applications each year). He was
recently nominated by the National Youth Development Agency
among the country’s trailblazers and was recognised by President Cyril
Ramaphosa during this year’s National Youth Day Commemoration
event.
As a youngster, Xolani taught Mathematics and IsiZulu at Ziphembeleni
College, from where he matriculated. Today he holds a Diploma
for IT Practitioner (Systems Support); an Advanced Diploma for IT
Professionals (ICT Systems Support); a B.Tech: Higher National Diploma
in Computer Science; and a Postgraduate Diploma in Strategic Business
Information Technology.
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Moshoeu Makofane
Moshoeu Makofane is an influential businessman, a community
builder, an investor and a philanthropist. He graduated and qualified as
an Engineer in Information and Communication Technology. Moshoeu
runs a company called LeTech which focusses on innovative solutions,
selling smart solutions to the mining industries, government based
organisations and corporates.

SPORTS/HEALTH AND WELLBEING Category
Dumisani Chauke
During the 2018 South African Youth Awards, Dumisani Chauke also
received the Presidential Award. This means she was the overall
winner chosen from the category winners. She is a former SA Netball
player who turned National Coach. Dumisani also formed a foundation
as a form of giving back to the community by empowering young girls
through netball. Her previous achievements include:
•
Graduating with a National Diploma in Sports from the Nelson
Mandela University
•
Been selected for Eastern Province and National Player
•
Appointed as assistant coach for the Gauteng Jaguares in 2016
•
Became Head Coach of the Limpopo Baobabs in 2017
•
Assistant Coach of the Gauteng Golden Fireballs in 22018
Dumisani is currently employed at Tshwane University of Technology as
a Sports Organiser and has enrolled for a B-Tech. She is also a netball
analyst for Super Sport.

Thulani Xolani Mabida
Thulani Xolani Mabida plays a vital role in developing the community
and shaping youngsters into becoming athletes. He became the first
young coach at the age of 21 and has thus far produced 13 athletes to
represent KZN at the National Athletics Championships for youth and
juniors. He was selected to be the coach for South African National
Athletics team for IAU Championships. He holds ASA Level 3.

Katlego Makutulela
Katlego Makutulela established a health gym in Kagiso Township. He
is currently in the process of introducing a kids fitness/care programme
in the township. In collaboration with Prone Wellness, Katlego hosts
township charity fitness events.
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Andile Nkosi

Andile Nkosi from Elukwatini in Mpumalanga received NYDA Grant
Funding, to buy tools and heavy duty industrial machines for his
Trailer Manufacturing business.

Anver Temm
Anver Temm is a young person from Kimberley in the Northern Cape
Province, who successfully completed the Business Management
Training Course facilitated by the NYDA. The programme offers
entrepreneurship training, that responds appropriately and
adequately to the market, as well as business needs of the young
people. He subsequently applied for the NYDA Grant Funding for his
pet grooming business.
The NYDA gave him financial assistance to the value of R 49 957.15 to purchase equipment for his
business. Temm offers a variety of services to pet owners, which include washing, shampooing,
nail trimming and fur cutting.
The business has been operational for a few years and sees growth each year. With its industry
being so small in Kimberley, such a business has a potential to further expand and ensure
sustainability. Pet owners can treat their pets for a day at the young aspiring entrepreneur’s pet
grooming salon.
Awethu Matiwane
Awethu Matiwane is a 33-year-old young man from Eastern Cape
who recently relocated to Delft in Cape Town, Western Cape. He
holds a Trade Certificate and had always possessed the desire to
establish his own business.
He then approached the NYDA Cape Town branch to enquire about the
products and services that could assist Corpelo Business Solution, his
Motor Repairs business.
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The young aspiring entrepreneur went through the process of applying for the NYDA Grant Funding. After
successfully completing the application process, the agency approved the amount of R44 252, 00 to purchase
equipment for his business.
Corpelo Business Solution currently employs two young people on a temporary basis. Awethu intends to expand
the business and to facilitate workshops at various locations. The Eastern Cape-born entrepreneur would like to
thank the NYDA Cape Town branch for their support and he encourages young people to pursue their dreams
and aspirations.

Desiree Phali

Mpumalanga Hatchery is a registered business which was founded
by Mrs Desiree Phali. The company was registered in the year 2016
and has been operating on the client’s private property in Mhluzi
Middleburg for atleast two years. The client has been investing
money in the business to acquire the necessary equipment so that
the business can be able to live up to its name ‘’Hatchery”.
Mpumalanga Hatchery’s core business is layer poultry farming- this means raising egg laying
poultry birds for fertilised egg production. These fertilised eggs are then sold and some
incubated to produce chicks that can be sold as day old chicks.
The business is currently operating from Jackaroo Park where she has erected a movable
structure that has the capacity to house 1500 chickens. The fertilised eggs are incubated at
the clients home where she will be running the hatchery and selling day old chicks and eggs.
Mrs Phali had challenges because her business model requires her to have a minimum of 1500 chickens, she had
then approached the agency for financial assistance to purchase more parent stock. A grant funding amounting to
R 49 680.00 was approved and disbursed. Mrs Phali was further offered a financial management voucher amounting
to R13 200.00 She has been matched with a mentor to assist and guide her on her business dealing especially one
securing a formal market.

Edwin Makhubela
Edwin Makhubela, a 28-year-old from Ivory Park Ext5, co-owner of
Artville Media Production - Video and Audio Production Company.
Edwin has completed a Higher Certificate in Film and Screen Media.
The company does sound recording which includes creating beats for
music artist. The company also does video editing, music video, movie
filming, colour grading, and film events such as graduations, wedding,
music festivals, gala dinner, networking events, parties, conferences, etc.
Edwin went to our Johannesburg Branch to apply for the NYDA Business
Grant and received R9 999,25. The business currently employs three (3)
permanent staff and two (2) temporary staff members.
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Elliot Moloko
Teu Pig Farming & Project is a business that is owned by a 32-year-old
young man from Cokonyane Village in Taung, North West Province.
Motshwarateu Elliot Moloko started his piggery business with only
40 pigs and his primary aim was to breed and sell them.

The young aspiring entrepreneur realised the potential success of his business model and decided to seek
further assistance at the NYDA. After successfully completing all application processes, Teu Pig Farming & Project
applied and received the NYDA Grant Funding of R48 016.00 through the Rustenburg branch.
He currently raises and breeds more than 50 pigs. In the past, Motshwarateu managed to sell almost 100 pigs
and supplied some to a local butchery. The business presently has two permanent staff members that assist him
with his livestock.
Motshwarateu encourages young people to consider entrepreneurship and form cooperatives. He further
advises young aspiring entrepreneurs to understand the type of business they are venturing into, and gather
extensive information about it.
Estelle Michelle Olifant
Estelle Michelle Olifant is a 26-year-old female from Bellville in
Western Cape. She has a Matric Certificate and is currently working
towards completing her degree. The dream of starting her own
business have always been one of her passions and aspirations.
However, lack of funds became a barrier to realising this vision, until
the Agency intervened. The young aspiring entrepreneur approached
the NYDA branch in Cape Town to acquire more information about
the products and services designed for youth development.
One of the consultants advised her that the NYDA offers a Grant Funding to young entrepreneurs. The Grant
ranges from R1000 to R200 000 (for Agriculture and Technology related Projects, the maximum threshold is
R250 000). She was further informed that young people whose business ideas qualify for the Grant Programme,
depending on their individual needs, would also undergo some of the NYDA’s non-financial support services
that include Mentorship, Business Consultancy Services, Market Linkages, Business Management Training
Programme and a Youth Cooperative Development Programme.
The NYDA Cape Town branch approved the Grant Funding to the value of R49 818.00 to purchase products for
Estelle’s IT/Software Sales & Services business based in Kuilsriver. The business currently employs two people;
one on full-time, and the other on a temporary basis. She intends to grow the business and conduct workshops
in different areas to expand her reach.
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Gomolemo

Gomolemo, the young entrepreneur from Griekwastad in the
Northern Cape Province studied Hairdressing and acquired a
certificate at one of the reputable TVET Colleges. She subsequently
started her business as a small, informal Beauty Salon, which
operated at her home.

Induced with the desire for further knowledge, the vibrant young person enrolled for, and completed the NYDA
Entrepreneurship Programme (EDP). The EDP is aimed at creating a conducive environment for young entrepreneurs
to access relevant entrepreneurship skills, knowledge, values and attitudes for their businesses.
The successful completion of the course affirmed her eligibility to apply for the NYDA Grant Funding. The NYDA
assisted her with the Grant Funding to the value of R49 842.00 to purchase equipment for her business. The business
has been able to move to a much bigger and busier space in town. Gomolemo has also expanded her operations by
offering home-based services for the convenience of her clients.
The business currently employs two young people. The young entrepreneur aims to conquer the industry and
eventually expand to neighbouring towns, wherein she would transfer her skills and empower youth to establish
their own businesses.

Hazel Liedemann

The 32-year-old Hazel Liedemann from Table View in the Western
Cape Province has always had a dream of starting her own beauty
business. She strongly believes that seeking for knowledge and
grabbing every available opportunity is one ingredient that ensures
internal fulfilment.

One of her friends advised her about funding opportunities provided by the NYDA. She learnt that the Agency offers
both financial and non-financial assistance to young entrepreneurs who need support with establishing new, and
those expanding their already existing businesses. As part of demonstrating her sense of willingness and hunger for
understanding, the young aspiring entrepreneur approached the NYDA branch in Cape Town.
After successfully completing the Business Management Training, which is a prerequisite for a young person to
apply for Grant Funding, Hazel went through the process of applying for the NYDA Grant Funding. She was approved
financial assistance to the value of R50 000.00 to purchase business equipment and merchandise.
The 32-year-old currently runs a Mobile Beauty Salon, which she aims to expand through venturing into corporate
wellness, opening a training school, as well as establishing an after-hours service. Her business currently employs
two young people. “I would like to thank the Cape Town branch for their pleasant support and, providing continued
assistance,” said Hazel.
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Motlatsi and Dimakatso Mofokeng
Two young people from Bethlehem
in the Free State Province, Motlatsi
and Dimakatso Mofokeng,
founded In-House Media and
Communications. The Company
specialises in Photography,
Corporate Videos, Promotional
Videos and Graphic design services.
Motlatsi acquired his Bachelor of Arts Degree in Motion Picture Medium in 2012 and proceeded to work as
an intern for a Media House, where he gained vast knowledge and skills in photography and videography.
He identified a marketplace and established his business when his internship contract ended. He outsourced
equipment from different suppliers to service his clients. This affected the business’ ability to generate profit and
restricted it from being competitive.
The young aspiring entrepreneur decided to seek financial assistance and approached the NYDA. After
undergoing all application processes. Motlatsi received the NYDA Grant Funding to the value of R49 992.00 to
purchase equipment for the company. The assistance from the NYDA has enabled the business to penetrate
the market and is currently servicing different Municipalities, Motor Dealerships, and Shopping Malls. The
equipment has enabled competitive advantage, and the business’ turnover has increased significantly.
In-House Media and Communications have also received recognition from different stakeholders for the unique
and exceptional work it offers. The founders have expressed their utmost gratitude to the NYDA for believing in
their business.
Keamogetswe Thole
The young and vibrant, Keamogetswe Thole from Bloemfontein in
the Free State Province founded the BFN Culinary and Pastry School.
The institute offers professional courses in pastry, food preparation
and culinary techniques. Students can obtain qualifications such as
a Certificate in Food Preparations and Cooking, Diploma in Patisserie
and, Diploma Culinary Arts, as well Advanced Diploma from the
School.
The 34-year-old received the NYDA Grant Funding to the value of
R89 487.54 to purchase equipment for the School. Since its inception in
January 2018, BFN Culinary and Pastry School has enrolled 11 full-time
students and hosts private clients for Food Preparations and Cooking
Trainings. The institution has other income generating streams such
as Catering and Hosting Semester Events for students. Keamogetswe
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The business has been a success and getting recognition from various institutions within the Free State. The
School is accredited by CathsSETA, endorsed and recognised by FUNDI Finance and, City & Guilds. BFN Culinary
and Pastry Schoolholds membership at South African Chefs Association (SA Chefs).

Kholofelo Hope Nengwenda

When Kholofelo Nengwenda (28), moved from Limpopo to start a
job in Mpumalanga four years ago, she struggled to find a Domestic
worker this motivated her to start a Cleaning Services and a Domestic
worker placement company called Mukhoni Cleaning Specialists.

She said her company has grown to create jobs for about 50 people in just a few years of operation.
“Soon after registering my company the demand became so high that I ended up resigning as a school teacher,”
she said.
“In the beginning, the business focused more on household cleaning services and domestic worker placement,
but two years later we had to expand our services to the commercial and industrial market too,” she added.
In 2016, Nengwenda attended Entrepreneurial Training at the National Youth Development Agency (NYDA), which
empowered her as a business woman.
While she was still attending training, she learned that the NYDA had a Grant Programme for budding entrepreneurs
and she applied for it.
“I specifically applied for grants to purchase equipment for my business because after winning a tender to provide
services for the South African Revenue Services (SARS) we struggled to reach windows that were high up on the
building,” she said.
“The application process took about a year. I received an amount of R49 000.00 from the NYDA in 2017 to buy
equipment for my company. This helped my business to advance because we were able to provide services at
SARS and the Steve Tshwete Municipality in the past year,” she added.
Her company recently expanded its services adding office cleaning, commercial and industrial cleaning to its list.
Among the 50 workers employed by Nengwenda, 35 are permanent. Her company has also made it possible for
close to 20 household domestic workers to be placed.
She said her future plans are to grow the business.
“I would like to expand my services into training cleaners in the hygiene field and to become a business
improvement coach or a business mentor at the NYDA,” she said.
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Ms Mahlalela
Legend Piggery (Pty) Ltd is a 100% black woman
owned business. It was established in 2015 by a young
ambitious woman who obtained her National Diploma
in Animal Production in the year 2010 and currently
studying Bachelor of Technology in Animal Science
through Tshwane University of Technology. She
acquired experience and began her own piggery with
only 3 pigs. She now has 152 pigs that she breeds on
her small farm.
The business is currently operating in Middleburg in a small farm that consists of a 22-sow units’ structure where
she breeds her pigs. The business is still very small and Ms Mahlalela is struggling because of the
ever-increasing feed costs. She has approached the NYDA for assistance to purchase enough feed so that she
can redirect her revenue to other business needs. A Grant amounting to R48 570.90 was approved for Legend
Piggery. Ms Mahlalela has been invited by the Department of Agriculture, Fishery and Forestry to attend a
6 weeks training on Agricultural Products Circulation Technology for Developing countries in China.

Lebogang Mokubela

Lebogang Macdonald Jan Mokubela, a 28-year-old
from Pretoria comes from a family of 5.
Lebogang was referred by a friend to NYDA, he then
decided to visit the Pretoria branch, he was then referred
to NYDA EDP Training after completing the training he
received his certificate, he went back and applied for the
Grant he received R35 000.00 which he bought equipment
with for his business Lemok Group (Pty) Ltd, the business
offers Marketing Services, Branding and Design, the
business currently employs 5 employees,
1 temporary and 4 permanent. Lebogang won multiple
awards, for the business one of them being the Township
Entrepreneurship Awards.
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Makhosazana Reginah Maseko

Makhosazana Reginah Maseko is the owner of TEMANGCANE (PTY)
LTD UYI Medical Spa and a qualified beautician from Boschfontein
in the Nkomazi Municipality, Mpumalanga.

The young and vibrant aspiring entrepreneur applied and received the
NYDA Grant Funding of R42 231.69 through the Mbombela Branch; to
purchase inventories for her business. The NYDA further assisted her with
a Financial Management Voucher to enable her to manage her finances.
Makhosazana’s establishment currently employs one young person and
intends to employ more.
TEMANGCANE (PTY) LTD UYI Medical Spa is presently operating at one
of the reputable lodges in Mzinti, Mpumalanga, where she offers spa
and beauty services such as massages, manicure, pedicure and eyebrow
shaping to her clients.

Keneilwe Maluse

Keneilwe Maluse from Vryburg in the North-West Province is a
32-year-old owner of Maraba Manor, a private house offering
accommodation to paying guests.

She studied Chemical Engineering but decided to take a turn and focus on her own business, which started
with only two rooms. Maraba Manor has about four rooms to date. To guarantee that her guests receive a cosy
and comfortable stay, as in one’s own home, the NYDA assisted the young aspiring entrepreneur with a Grant
Funding of R44 059.00 to purchase furniture including beds, microwave ovens and fridges.
The young and vibrant Keneilwe said the support she received from the NYDA impacted her business greatly
as she is now receiving more bookings from neighbouring towns, due to the improved experience that she has
been able to sell to her clients. As her business is growing rapidly, Keneilwe plans to open another branch soon.
Maraba Manor has about two full-time staff members currently.
She encourages young entrepreneurs to exercise persistence and; asserts that those in the Hospitality Industry
should constantly strive to provide a hygienic and honest service to clients.

143

CELEBRATING 10 YEARS OF YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

BENEFICIARY STORIES

Masego Du-Toit
Deli Take Aways is a Fast Food and Leisure outlet,
which is owned by the 26-year-old Evodia Masego DuToit from Galeshewe in Kimberley.
Masego began her journey as a street vendor where she
sold fat cakes, popularly known as Magwinya. She offered
her services to the public without having a permanently
built structure for a period of 3 years. Driven by her passion
to serve and a desire to expand, the young aspiring
entrepreneur decided to approach the NYDA Kimberley
branch for funding.
She strongly believed that she had acquired adequate skills and experience to serve her customers effectively.
The NYDA approved a Grant Funding to the value of R44, 000 to buy equipment after Masego had undergone all
the required application processes. Deli Take Aways currently employs three young people on a full-time basis.
Her future goals involve seeing her business further expand into a fully functional restaurant and to continue
with her studies, as she believes in continuous personal growth and development. “We need to set achievable
and reasonable goals for ourselves and learn how to create jobs for fellow young people; young people should
be equipped to start cooperatives and business,” said Masego.

Mashudu Gaynor Tshakhuma

Mashudu Gaynor Tshakhuma, 29 years old Chartered Accountant
and owner of Mgt Accounting and Consulting Inc, the business
offers Accounting services including monthly book-keeping /
Management accounts, debtors and creditors, financial statements
preparations, tax services, vat payroll returns and external audit
services. The business is currently based in Rosslyn, Pretoria.
Mashudu went to our Pretoria Branch and applied for the NYDA Business
Grant and she received R50 000.00 which bought her office furniture
and equipment. Mashudu currently employs people and would like
to expand by opening branches in Limpopo and Mpumalanga. “The
business has really grown, now I can focus on the business and not
worry about the basic office things that are required by the business.
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Melissa Diedericks

Melissa Diedericks is a 34-year-old female from in Cape Town,
Western Cape. She grew up in Cape Flats and was raised by a single
mother with 2 siblings, her dream was to start her own business so
she can be able to make a living and assist her mother and provide
for her family. After finding out about the NYDA, she decided to
approach the NYDA branch in Cape Town to enquire about the
products and services offered by the agency.
“I was advised by a friend that the NYDA offers Grants to young entrepreneurs like myself who need assistance
with establishing their businesses. I then visited their office in Cape Town and the assistance received from the
team was warm and humbling” says Ms Diedericks.
Melissa went through the process of applying for the NYDA Grant Funding to the value of R16 701.00 to buy
office equipment and sewing products which was approved in February 2018. She now runs a retail store
selling leather products (shoe & bags) known as Kaali Leather Apparel situated in Simonstown, Cape Town. She
currently employs 1 person on a full-time basis and intends to grow the business and open another branch in
and around Western Cape.
I am limitless, the short-term goal is to open our own little concept space so that people can shop our collection
in person. This will be launched In the near future. I would also like to open an online store to attract international
orders” says Ms Diedericks.
“I would like to thank the Cape Town branch for their excellent service and great assistance. It truely was a
humbling experience. To young people, don’t let your circumstances dictate your future. Work hard and find
opportunities to craft your own path to success. Don’t be scared to ask for assistance and grab every opportunity
that you get and make the most of it. When you found success, pay it forward” says Melissa Diedericks.

Michelle Duduzile Mananyetso

Michelle Duduzile Mananyetso from Kwaggafontein in Mpumalanga
received the NYDA Grant Funding of R46 000.00 to purchase
equipment for her bakery and confectionary business, Mzila Nkatha
Holding. She currently employs two young people.
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Motty Makwena Munyai

The 26-year-old Motty Makwena Munyai from
Thohoyandou in Limpopo received the NYDA Grant
Funding of R36 377.00 for her business, Afrimotty
Beauty Spa. She currently employs two young people

Mpho Makhele
Landercy (Pty) Ltd is a manufacturing business that
deals with sewing and branding (Clothing and Textile
Industry). They specialise in golf t-shirts, jackets and
garment branding. The business was registered in
2017 and is owned by Mpho Makhele.
Mr Makhele started his business as a hobby and realised
that he could turn it into business. He started the business
using his own savings and purchased sewing, embroidery
and vinyl cutting machines. The business is targeting
schools, social club and local areas within the Kwandebele
region in the Thembisile Hani Local Municipality.

Mr Makhele’s marketing strategy to penetrate the market was a success but was struggling to meet the
demand as a lot of orders poured in. He then decided to approach the NYDA for funding to purchase industrial
machines. A Grant Funding amounting to R 48 400.00 was approved and disbursed to chosen suppliers. The
funding was then followed by a Financial Management Voucher to assist Mr Makhele to manage his finances.
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Nokulunga Tonela
Nokulunga Tonela, a 28 year old from Orlando
West received R9 623.00 from the Soweto Branch
which she bought stock and mannequins for her
beading and jewellery business, she is currently
studying jewellery making and design so she can
upskill her herself and improve her business.
Since she was assisted by the NYDA her business
has grown, she is able to make more money, has
recieved more exposure, she is able to show case
her work and people are aware of the business. She
currently has a stand at Florida and an online store.
Her future goals are to have her own store where she
will sell her bead work and her African print material.
Her message of support to young people is follow
your dream, and don’t believe what people tell you
about the NYDA, be patient, work hard and follow
your passion.

Nompumelelo Percephone Mkhwanazi

Nompumelelo Percephone Mkhwanazi is the proud owner of The
Success of Business Solutions, a Professional Financial Services
company that offers Accounting, Tax and Business Advice as well as
Secretarial Services through the CIPC. She has hired one employee
while operating her business at Rondebult in Johannesburg.
Nompumelelo Mkhwanazi applied for the NYDA Business Grant at
Johannesburg Branch and received R17 000.00 which bought her a
laptop and a software for the business she later applied for a Marketing
Strategy voucher for the business which she received.
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Pheagane Collen Lepulana
Pheagane Collen Lepulana, a 28-year-old from
Alexandra, is the proud owner of Whiteball Creative
Solutions (PTY) LTD. The business services are Website
Design, Hosting, IT Support and Photography. Whiteball
Creative Solutions is an Internet and ICT Solutions company
with a focus on the provision of Web based services and
IT Support services and products. Collen visited our
Johannesburg branch to apply for a business Grant, he then
received R46 182.25, which bought equipment to assist in
growing the business.

Sbongiseni Mtsweni

Sbongiseni Mtsweni from Bethal received the
NYDA Grant Funding for his Quadricycle Bike
Manufacturing Business, Success Cravers (PTY) LTD.

Semakaleng Mathapo
Semakaleng Mothapo 30 years old from Bela-Bela
owner of M Court (Township Tours) has completed a
Bachelor of Arts in Social Work.

Semakaleng heard about the NYDA from her father who heard about the NYDA on the radio. So one while
she was in Pretoria she saw the NYDA offices and she decided to go inside since her father told her about
NYDA funding young people in business in South Africa, she went inside and made enquiries. Like most young
people who visit the NYDA branch, Semakaleng had her own opinion that she might not be assisted but to her
surprise she was treated with respect. Semakaleng received a voucher for business plan and then a Branding
and Marketing voucher. Her business gives guided historic Bela-Bela township tours to both Domestic and
International tourist.
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Simo Sizani

Simo Sizani from eMalahleni received the NYDA
Grant Funding of R50 000.00 for his Leather Goods
Manufacturing business, Blaqmor Leather.
He currently employs four young people.

Tebogo Thapelo Solomon Josiah Leshaba

Tebogo Thapelo Solomon Josiah Leshaba a 28-year-old from
Edenburg, owner of Thuso Architects. The business offers
Architectural Consulting, Architectural Drafting, Support, Research
and Project Management.
Tebogo visited our Johannesburg Branch to apply for a Business Grant,
he then received R41 000.00 which bought equipment and stationery.
The business currently employed two permanent staff members.

Thabiso Maphanga
Thabiso Maphanga is a 29-year-old young man from
Pietermaritzburg in KwaZulu-Natal who is currently based in Cape
Town, Western Cape. He approached the NYDA branch in Cape Town
for assistance for his business, Break Bread Group. The company is
a Brand and Marketing Consultancy based in Cape Town, focusing
on Brand Building and Brand Advocacy in the township market of
South Africa.
The Cape Town branch approved the NYDA Grant Funding to the value
of R44 688.00. Break Bread Group continues to grow due to the NYDA’s
intervention.
Thabiso currently employs seven staff members on a full-time basis and intends to expand the business into
other provinces for a wider reach and impact. Thabiso holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree in Marketing,
Supply Chain and Economics and, an Honours Degree in Business Management. He has worked in Sales for
over 12 years, started his sales career at Retail as early as 16 years of age and has been a Business Development
Consultant for over 4 years. “Do not let your circumstances limit you. Learn how to be patient, hardworking
and how to turn nothing into something. I also apply the same principles in my pursuit of happiness towards
business and life in general”, said Thabiso.
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Themba Goodhope Sithole

Jobe Tax & Financial Solutions (Pty) Ltd (Herein referred to as “Jobe
Solutions”), was founded by Themba Goodhope Sithole. Jobe
Solutions is a South African Black owned Company and prides itself
on developing workable solutions to their clients’ tax and financial
concerns, challenges/problems. Mr Sithole holds a Bachelor of
Accounting (CTA) and a Bachelor of Accounting ( Honours) which
he obtained from the University of Kwazulu-Natal. He is currently
pursuing his MBA with Mancosa.

Jobe Tax & Financial Solutions (Pty) Ltd was registered in 2016 by Mr Sithole who is a the Sole Director. The
Business started its operations late 2017 and offers Consulting Services to both Individual, Public and Private
Sector. The business is currently operating from the Director’s house in Highveld Park within the Emalahleni
Local municipality. The business is operating from home with no adequate equipment. He then approached
the NYDA for assistance to purchase office equipment to make their offices look more welcoming and
professional as their target market aims for profiled businesses and individuals. A grant amounting to
R49 661.07 was approved and Mr Sithole was able to purchase the required equipment. He was further
offered a Financial Management Voucher. The business is currently employing three people with a potential
to create more opportunities.

Yandisa Langa

The 34-year-old Yandisa Langa from Eastern Cape relocated to Fish
Hoek in Western Cape, where he currently operates his business.
Working as a security guard in one of the restaurants presented
him with an idea to start his own Agricultural Business. His desire
to produce and supply restaurants with organic vegetables grew.
He identified a market and decided to seek more information and
available funding opportunities.

In his quest to receive assistance, Yandisa approached the NYDA branch in Cape Town to enquire about the
products and services developed to assist young people. After undergoing all processes, he was approved
by the NYDA Grant Funding to the value of R68 000.00 to buy tools to build a walk-in greenhouse for the
vegetable garden, as well as seeds and fertilizers.
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The young aspiring entrepreneur currently employs five young people and, he intends to own a farm with a
processing plant, and an Agriculture Accredited Skills Centre. Yandisa encourages young people to pursue their
dreams and always be prepared to learn and equip themselves with current business knowledge. “Start with
what you have, do not wait for large sums of money, investment and support to realise your dreams,” added
Yandisa.

VOUCHER AND GRANTS
BENEFICIARIES

Analisa Sifunda and Nomsa Mazibuko

Analisa Sifunda from Mpumalanga received the NYDA Grant
Funding of R 34 370 & Financial Management Voucher of
R13 200.00 Nomsa Mazibuko from Mpumalanga received NYDA
Grant Funding of R33 700.00 & Financial Management Voucher
of R13 200.00

Desire Joseph Mathonsi

Desire Joseph Mathonsi from Mpumalanga received the NYDA
Grant Funding of R49 400.00 to purchase equipment, and
Financial Management Voucher of R13 200.00 for his Poultry
Farming business
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Leshego Ceramics

Leshego Ceramics and Pottery Cooperative from Bushbuckridge in Mpumalanga received
the NYDA Grant Funding of R50 000.00 and Financial Management Voucher of R13 200.00

Mduduzi Ernest Mhlabane

Mduduzi Ernest Mhlabane from Nelspruit received NYDA Grant
Funding of R49 698.02 and Financial Management Voucher of
R13 200.00 for his business, Family Best Bakers, which specialises
in Custom Designed Cakes.

Mduduzi Nkosi

Mduduzi Nkosi from Nelspruit received the NYDA Grant Funding
of R49 252.56 and Financial Management Voucher of R13 200.00
for his Architectural Firm, Conceptions Arch Designs.
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Nomahlubi Nkosi

Nomahlubi Nkosi from Mpumalanga received the NYDA Grant
Funding of R45 640.90 and a Financial Management Voucher
of R13 200.00 for her business, Jay Pee Trading. Her company
manufactures Modern African accessories.

GRANT COOPERATIVES

Ngelosi Eggs

Ngelosi Eggs is a Cooperative from Mbonambi in KwaZulu-Natal.
The cooperative is made up of five young people and its main
business is the production of broiler chickens and egg supply. The
NYDA assisted the young people with 320 hens, 600 racks, feeds
and vaccinations.

Siyakhula Ladies Primary Co-op

Siyakhula Ladies Primary Co-op is a bakery based in Nseleni in
KwaZulu-Natal. Five young women who received the NYDA Grant
Funding of R36 000.00 in 2017 to manage the business. They have
managed to run a sustainable business and have a wide range of
pastries.
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Isibaya Esitsha Primary Cooperative

Isibaya Esitsha is a Primary Co-operative that
was established by five young women who
resides in Middelburg within the Steve Tshwete
Local Municipality. The co-operative was
founded in 2015 by local community members
with the intention of farming agronomic
and vegetable crops and livestock breeding
with the aim of attracting and providing job
opportunities to the local youth.
These young people realised that there was a demand in food security and were eager to produce and
close the gap in food insecurity in their community and they leased a farm at a scale of 5ha arable land for
vegetable production and there is enough grazing for livestock. The farm is currently supplying local street
vendors and Mega who is responsible for the school nutrition programme. They specialise in beans, onion,
spinach and cabbage. They are currently under the Department Farmers Support Programme and receiving
intensive mentorship. The co-op has been offered Business Management Training, Cooperative Governance
to ensure they apply their newly acquired skills to the decision making within their operations. A Grant
Funding was also approved to assist them with production inputs, equipment and livestock.
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Jabulile Mtsweni

She got a Permanent Position
Position: Retail Administrator
Company Name: Verimark
Jabulile Mtsweni enrolled on the NYDA’s Job Preparedness training at
JHB branch. She subsequently registered on the Jobs Database and
Matching Service. Through the service, Jabulile was assisted to access
full-time employment as a Retail Admin at Verimark.

Kamogelo Phalane

His from Tembisa in Gauteng is currently enrolled on a
12 months Internship Programme at the ETDP-SETA, which he
accessed through the @NYDARSA’s Job Database and Matching
Service. The Internship Programme commenced on 1 July 2018.

Jobs Beneficiaries from the Rustenburg branch managed to place 60 young people from the NYDA
Jobs Database and Matching Service with Affordable Benefits Company (PTY) Ltd, a company working
with Clientele. The candidates were offered a one week-long training and subsequently placed as Sales
Agents. They are currently based in Boitekong Mall, Phokeng Mall, Brits Mall and Moruleng Mall.
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Tebogo Sediane
Employed by: Catalyx Foundation
Position: Facilitator (Part time) for Rustenburg and Mafikeng.

Mr. Tebogo Sediane was temporarily contracted by NYDA Rustenburg Branch as a Career Guidance Practitioner
(during the then Start Here Campaign in 2015) after submitting his CV to NYDA. Because he was so dedicated to
his work, Mrs. Naomi Siko kept on submitting his CV to different companies, until Catalyx came through with the
jumpstart training.
The Jumpstart programme is in partnership with Mr Price and Spar(nationally) and their main objective is to equip
young people (18-35) with the necessary skills for the retail/work environment, promoting job readiness through
assessments, life skills training and instore work experience. He was contracted in September 2017. The attached
are pictures of the Absa ready to work programme conducted on the 17 of January 2018 (Conducted by Him) with
candidates from the Jobs programme database.

Karabo Moloelang
Karabo Moloelang is a 27-year-old young woman from Soshanguve
in the City of Tshwane, who has completed a National Diploma in
Tourism at the Tshwane North College.
She struggled to find employment for a period of 2 years after she had
completed her studies. However, Karabo’s situation changed through
the NYDA’s Jobs Database and Matching Service. She subsequently
submitted her CV to the NYDA, and currently works at Khirimane Fleet
Services where her roles involve (but not limited to) Administration
and Public Relations practice.
“I am learning so much from this environment and this is contributing
a lot to my career growth,” said Karabo.
156

www.nyda.gov.za

SOLOMON KALUSHI
MAHLANGU SCHOLARSHIP FUND
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About the Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu
Scholarship Fund (SKMSF)
“My blood will nourish the tree that will bear the fruits of freedom. Tell my people that I love them and that
they must continue the fight.”
Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu, 6 April 1979
In its quest to address the challenge of youth unemployment, access to education and shortage of scarce
skills, the Nat onal Youth Development Agency (NYDA) is offering the scholarship to youth under 35 years
of age to give them an opportunity to study at Public universities or University of Technology across South
Africa.
To support this new strategic focus, the NYDA established the Solomon Mahlangu Scholarship Fund (SMSF).
The Fund seeks to avail financial support to youth to enable them to pursue quality education in an
institution of higher learning with youth in rural areas as the primary target.
The Scholarship Fund was established in Honour of Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu who at the age of 23,
was executed under the apartheid laws after being wrongfully accused of murder and terrorism. Fearing
crowd reaction at the funeral, police decided to bury Mahlangu in Atteridgeville.
The Scholarship Fund is designed to create an environment for affording youth with excellent
academic background, an opportunity to further their studies. Financial support will be provided to youth
who pursue full-time degrees that fall within the priority growth sectors, critical and scarce skills areas
outlined in the labor planning frameworks of the country.
The Fund will be accessible to deserving South African youth who meet the minimum entry requirements
set by the NYDA and, who have been admitted to study at public Universities and Universities of
Technology.
Objectives of The Solomon Mahlangu Scholarship Fund:
-

To provide financial support to youth in the form of scholarships to increase their chances of
accessing quality higher education in their field of study.

-

To increase chances of employability or entrepreneurship based on the positive correlation between
level of education and employability.

-

Empower the youth (under 35 years) with education to enable them to compete favourably in
the labourmarket.

-

Contribute to the development of critical and scarce skills.
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Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu
Scholarship FUND (SKMSF)
Galaletsang Motsamai
Galaletsang Motsamai (18) is currently studying towards a BSc degree
in Mathematical and Computer Sciences at Sol Plaatje University,
through Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu Scholarship Fund.

Maria Olifant
The 19-year-old Maleshane Maria Olifant is currently studying towards
a BSc degree in Mathematics at Sol Plaatje University, through the
Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu Scholarship Fund.

Thato Sethibe
Thato Sethibe (19) is currently studying towards a BSc degree in
Mathematical and Computer Sciences at Sol Plaatje University, through
Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu Scholarship Fund.

Melissa Cupido
Melissa Cupido from Wellington, a small town in the Western Cape,
completed her Animal Sciences degree at Stellenbosch University
through the Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu Scholarship Fund (SKMSF).
She graduated in 2017.
“NYDA has funded me since my first year in 2014, until my graduation
last year December. The programme has been absolutely amazing!
It took such a massive burden off my parents’ shoulders and truly
made my university experience much more enjoyable. It’s been such
a blessing to only have the stress of passing modules during these last
four years. I never once had to worry about how we were going to pay
for my studies or accommodation.
The only advice I can give to young people starting out is that they do
what they love. Choose something that will make you happy and work
at. Be kind to others and use what you’ve learnt to better the lives of
the people around you.”
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We have also included below a list of Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu Scholarship Fund graduates of 2018. These
graduates were funded from year one of their studies until completion. Amongst these learners we have top
achievers who have passed with distinctions.

Year

2015-

2015-

Year of Study

First Names

Surname

Institution

2015- First Year

N

Kaziwa

Cape Peninsula University of Technology

2016

2015- First Year

ME

Magwebu

Cape Peninsula University of Technology

2016

2015- First Year

M

Mbedzi

Capricorn College

2016

2016 First Year

Rebakakgosi Ronald

Mohutsiwa

Central University of Technology

2015-

2015- First Year

BN

Xulu

Durban University of Technology

2016

2015- First Year

LV

Khumalo

Mangosuthu University of Technology

2015-

2015- First Year

S.C

Tshaka

Motheo TVET College

2015-

2015- First Year

C

Maqashu

Rhodes University

2015-

2015- First Year

K

Dekeda

Rhodes University

2015-

2015- First Year

Bamanye

Lwana

Rhodes University

2018-

2015- First Year

ML

Moleta

Sol Plaatje University

2016

2015- First Year

OC

Obaray

Sol Plaatje University

2015-

2015- First Year

NJ

Congwane

Sol Plaatje University

2015-

2015- First Year

J

Duiker

Sol Plaatje University

2016

2015- First Year

M

Topkin

Stellenbosch University

2015-

2013 First Year

Amber

Carelse

Stellenbosch University

2015-

2013- First Year

Nhlakanipho Government

Mahagane

Stellenbosch University

2015-

2014 First Year

Wendy

Bailey

Stellenbosch University

2015-

2016 First Year

Portia

Mahlangu

Tshwane University of Technology

2016

2015- First Year

LA

Skhosana

Tshwane University of Technology

2015-

2016 First Year

One Tsholofelo

Mhlanga

Tshwane University of Technology

2015-

2016 First Year

Kgoboko George

Makgai

Tshwane University of Technology

2015-

2015- First Year

NL

Matee

Tshwane University of Technology

2015-

2015- First Year

O

Litsele

Tshwane University of Technology

2018-

2016 First Year

Khomotso Nkosi

Nkosi

Tshwane University of Technology

2015-

2015- First Year

JD

George

University of Cape Town

2015-

2016 First Year

Gcinile Veronica

Nkosi

University of Cape Town

2015-

2015- First Year

S

Nqweniso

University of Fort Hare

2016
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Year of Study

First Names

Surname

Institution

2015- First Year

N

Fubesi

University of Fort Hare

2015- First Year

L

Mthelu

University of Fort Hare

2015- First Year

N

Frans

University of Fort Hare

2016 First Year

Tsholofelo Cathrine

Molefe

University of Johannesburg

2016 First Year

Rosinah Nthabiseng

Moralo

University of Johannesburg

2016 First Year

Zintle Hope

Mhlungu

University of Johannesburg

2015- First Year

S

Nduduka

University of Johannesburg

2016 First Year

Nick Tsepo

Malope

University of Johannesburg

2015- First Year

Malebo L

Miyambu

University of Johannesburg

2015- First Year

LDH

Masenkanye

University of Johannesburg

2015- First Year

M

Ntombela

University of Johannesburg

2015- First Year

BC

Mzobe

University of Kwazulu Natal

2018-First Year

Nhlakanipho

Cwele

University of Kwazulu Natal

2016 First Year

Moeletsi Kotse

Moroasi

University of Limpopo

2015- First Year

TG

Moloto

University of Limpopo

2015- First Year

K Patrick

Kodibona

University of Limpopo

2016 First Year

Zandile Charmaine

Libambo

University of Limpopo

2015- First Year

D

Manganyi

University of Limpopo

2015- First Year

MK

Komape

University of Limpopo

2015- First Year

PT

Mongwane

University of Limpopo

2015- First Year

L

Motau

University of Limpopo

2016 First Year

Orifha

Makuya

University of Limpopo

2015- First Year

K

Machaka

University of Limpopo

2015- First Year

CK

Semosa

University of Limpopo

2015- First Year

LP

Muchavi

University of Limpopo

2015- First Year

K

Tlomatsana

University of Limpopo

2018-First Year

Linda

Nchabeleng

University of Limpopo

2015- First Year

MB

Thabethe

University of Mpumalanga

2015- First Year

T

Nkhodi

University of Pretoria

2015- First Year

V

Van Zyl

University of Pretoria

2016 First Year

Jacobson

Mokgoko

University of Pretoria
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Year of Study

First Names

Surname

Institution

First Year 2017

Anda

Makehle

University of the Free State

First Year 2017

Sibongiseni Wiseman

Msomi

University of the Free State

First Year 2017

Sihle

Masinda

University of the Free State

2016 First Year

Nadine Janet

Vries

University of the Free State

2015- First Year

F

Mabeleng

University of the Free State

2015- First Year

T

Moleko

University of the Free State

2015- First Year

G

Sekuketse

University of the North West Mafikeng Campus

2015- First Year

TE

Debete

University of the North West Mafikeng Campus

2015- First Year

Thato Grace

Mokoto

University of the North West Mafikeng Campus

2015- First Year

GL

Mathiba

University of the North West Mafikeng Campus

2015- First Year

L

Moote

University of the North West Mafikeng Campus

2015- First Year

Thabang

Mogwere

University of the North West Mafikeng Campus

2015- First Year

NM

Jacobs

University of the Western Cape

2015- First Year

Usipile

Mendela

University of the Western Cape

2015- First Year

M

Mlunjwa

University of the Western Cape

2015- First Year

N

Mdlulwa

University of the Western Cape

2015- First Year

A

Pike

University of the Western Cape

2016 First Year

Simangele Annacletta

Buthelezi

University of the Witwatersrand

2016 First Year

Lerato Boitomelo

Nkala

University of the Witwatersrand

2016 First Year

Ongeziwe

Jombile

University of the Witwatersrand

2016 First Year

Percevierence Zinhle

Ginidzi

University of the Witwatersrand

2016 First Year

Kezia Vernice

Plaatjies

University of the Witwatersrand

2016 First Year

Aphelele

Mabophe

Walter Sisulu university

2015- First Year

T

Ngqinjana

Walter Sisulu university

2015- First Year

LA

Thabede

University of Johannesburg

2016 First Year

Mthuthuzeli

Mdukisa

Durban University of Technology

2015- First Year

P

Mankebe

Walter Sisulu university

First Year 2017

Mandla Isaac

Hlaoli

Central University of Technology

2016 First Year

Nangamso Amanda

Mhlontlo

University of Kwazulu Natal

2015- First Year

MM

Khumalo

University of the Free State
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Ms. Faith Zondi, an NYS graduate from Ivory Park in Gauteng

Ms Zondi graduated as a Plumber from a National Youth
Service Programme in Ivory Park, Gauteng. The project
was implemented in partnership with the Department of
Human Settlements and the City of Johannesburg. After the
programme, she registered with Wits University where she
studied for a Bachelor of Science in Science Education and
Bachelor of Education in Physical Sciences and Mechanical
Technology. Faith is currently working for Wits University as a
Laboratory Demonstrator.

Ms. Wilma Mpata Kekana, an NYS graduate from Mogalakwena in Limpopo

Ms. Wilma Mpata Kekana was recruited into the NYS Artisan
skills Development Program that was implemented in
collaboration with Mogalakwena Local Municipality. She
received accredited skills training in plumbing. Upon her
graduation from the project she received a plumbers’
tool box. The tool box is part of the NYS exit strategy to
assist emerging plumbers to get started in their plumbing
enterprises. Today Wilma is a qualified plumber and runs a
small plumbing business where she gets jobs to do basic and
domestic plumbing in and around her community.
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Ms. Sihle Ntshidi

Ms. Sihle Ntshidi participated in a Women’s Build NYS
Programme in 2014-15. The programme was implemented
by the NYDA in partnership with the National Department
of Human Settlement and the National Home Builders
Registration Council (NHBRC). Upon completing the
programme, Ms. Ntshidi was one of the 48 participants who
were accepted to the College of Cape Town TVET. On Friday,
17th May 2019, Ms. Ntshidi received her Certificate N6:
Engineering (Build and Civil) with the College of Cape Town
TVET, Langa Campus, in the Western Cape.
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Solomon Mahlangu Voter Education Campaign

NYS volunteers undergoing Civic Education
training which was facilitated by IEC in
preparation for 2019 National and Provincial
General elections.

NYS volunteers conducting door to door
campaign on voter education in preparation
for the 2019 National and Provincial General
Elections.

Department of Sports and Recreation Youth Camp

NYS volunteers cleaning a classroom as part of
community service during their participation in
the Youth Camp.
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NYS volunteers participating in social cohesion
training activities during their participation in
the Youth Camp.

KwaDukuza Community Service Day

Community service activity at Enduduzweni
Community Care Centre in KwaDukuza with a
representative from the Flemish Government.
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Report on the audit of the financial statements
OPINION
1. I have audited the financial statements of the National Youth Development Agency set out on pages 182
to 225, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and the statement of comparison
of budget and actual information for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.
2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
National Youth Development Agency as at 31 March 2019, and its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice(SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South
Africa,1999 (Act No.1 of 1999)(PFMA).
Basis for opinion
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of this auditor’s report.
4. I am independent of the Public Entity in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code), parts 1 and part
3 of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) and the ethical requirements that are
relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA code.
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.
Emphasis of matter
6. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Material Impairments
7. As disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements, material losses of R81 875 000 was incurred as a result of
a write-off of irrecoverable loans receivables from exchange transactions.
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Responsibilities of the Accounting Authority for the financial statements

8. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA, and for such internal control as
the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
9. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the National
Youth Development Agency’s ability to continue as a going concern disclosing as applicable matters relating
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance
structure either intends to liquidate the Public Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.
Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
11. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the
annexure to this auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report
Introduction and scope
12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general
notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance
information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual performance
report. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
13. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved
performance planning documents of the public entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and
appropriateness of the performance indicators/measures included in the planning documents. My
procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance strategies
and information in respect of future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance
information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.
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14. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the
criteria developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general
notice, for the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the public
entity for the year ended 31 March 2019:

Key performance areas

Pages in the annual
performance report

Key performance area 1: Economic Participation

48 - 54

Key performance area 2: Education and Skills Development

55 - 56

Key performance area 4: Enhanced participation of youth in the National
Youth Service

58 - 61

15. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly
presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved performance planning documents.
I performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable
and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it
was valid, accurate and complete.
16.		I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information
for the following programmes:
•

Key performance area 1: Economic Participation

•

Key performance area 2: Educations and Skills Development

•

Key performance area 4: Enhanced participation of youth in the National Youth Service

Other matter
17. I draw attention to the matter below.
Achievement of planned targets
18. Refer to the annual performance report on pages x to x; x to x for information on the achievement of planned
targets for the year and explanations provided for the over achievement of a number of targets.
19. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. These material
misstatements were on the reported performance information of Key Performance area 1: Economic
participation, Key Performance area 2 - Education and Skills Development Key Performance area 4:
Enhanced participation of youth in the National Youth Service. As management subsequently corrected
the misstatements, I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information.
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Adjustment of material misstatements
Report on the audit of compliance with legislation
Introduction and scope
20. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report
material findings on the compliance of the public entity with specific matters in key legislation. I performed
procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
21. I did not raise material findings on compliance with the specific matters in key legislation set out in the
general notice issued in terms of the PAA.
Other information
22. The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report. The other information does not include the financial statements,
the auditor’s report and those selected performance areas presented in the annual performance report that
have been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.
23. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and
compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
24. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected key
performance areas presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
25. I did not receive other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When I do receive and receive this
information, if I conclude that there is a material misstatements therein, I am required to communicate the
matter to those charged with governance and request that the other information be corrected. If the other
information is not corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as
appropriate. However, if this is corrected this will not be necessary.
Internal control deficiencies
26. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance
information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form
of assurance on it. I did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control.
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Other reports
27.I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could have, an
impact on the matters reported in the public entity’s financial statements, reported performance information,
compliance with applicable legislation and other related matters. These reports did not form part of my
opinion on the financial statements or my findings on the reported performance information or compliance
with legislation.
Investigations
28. During the 2011 financial year, an investigation was initiated by the Public Protector to probe whether the
hosting of the World Festival of Youth and Students held in December 2010 was within the NYDA’s mandate,
if the allocated funds were not misappropriated and whether the relevant supply chain management
prescripts were followed. The investigation has not yet been finalised as at the date of this report.

Pretoria
31 July 2019
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Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit
1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures performed on reported
performance information for selected key performance areas and on the public entity’s compliance with
respect to the selected matters.
Financial statements
2. In addition to my responsibilty for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s report,
I also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and to obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaments
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresenations, or the override of internal control
• Obain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
appropriate in their circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the public entity’s internal control
• Evaluate the appropriatness of the accounting policies used and the reasonablenes of acccounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the accounting authority
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting authority’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainity exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the National Yout Development Agency’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material
uncertainity exists. I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements about the material uncertainity or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the
opinion of the financial statements. My conclusion are based on the information available to me at the date
of the auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause a public entity to cease continuing as
a going concern

Communication with those charged with governance
3. I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including and significant deficiencies in internal control
that identify during my audit.
4. I also confirm to the accouting authority that have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate all relationships and other maters that may reasonably be though to have
a bearing on my independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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Audit Committee Report

The Committee is pleased to present its final annual report for the financial year ending 31 March 2019.
This report is presented in accordance with the requirements of Section 77 of the Public Finance Management
Act No. 1 of 1999, and Treasury Regulation paragraph 27.1.8 as amended and the recommendations contained
in the King Report on Governance for South Africa and the King Code of Governance Principles (King IV).
Audit Committee Members and Attendance
The National Youth Development Agency has a constituted Audit Committee for the financial year under review.
During the current financial year, eight (four special) Audit Committee meetings were held. Interactive meetings
are held between the Chairperson and Management as the need arises. The meeting attendance details during
the 2018/2019 financial year were as follows:

Name of member

Number of Ordinary
meetings attended

Number of Special
meetings attended

Total

Ms Rachel Kalidass (Independent
Non-Executive Chairperson appointed

4

4

8

2

2

4

1

1

2

2

3

5

4

4

8

01 October 2018)
Mr Gideon Labane (Independent
Non-Executive Member appointed
01 October 2018)
Mr Tayron Tshitaudzi (Independent NonExecutive Member – Contract lapsed
31 July 2018)
Ms Khomotjo Joy Maimela
(Non-Executive Board Member
- (Chairperson of Social & Ethics
Committee)
Mr Yershen Pillay (Non-Executive Board
Member)

Audit Committee responsibility
We report that we have adopted appropriate formal terms of reference in our Charter in line with the
requirements of Treasury Regulations paragraph 27.1.6, and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained
therein.
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The effectiveness of internal control

The system of internal controls is designed to provide cost-effective assurance that assets are safeguarded
and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. The system of internal control applied by the
NYDA over financial and risk management is partially effective, efficient and transparent, with the exception
of consistent reporting of Performance Information with planned targets and material impairment of the loan
book.
In accordance with the PFMA and the King IV Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit
provided the Audit Committee and Management with assurance whether the internal control environment is
appropriate and effective.
This is achieved by means of the risk management, as well as the identification of corrective actions and
suggested enhancements to the internal controls and processes.
In the past financial year, internal control environment related audit findings (leadership, management and
governance) are reflected as below:
•		 Improvement in financial management from 86% to 100%
•		 Improvement in performance information reporting from 58% to 83%
•		 Improvement in compliance from 92% to 100%
Irregular expenditure has significantly reduced over the years - from R133 million in 2011/12 to R62 million in
2012/13, reduced further to R16 million in 2013/14, to R580 000 in 2014/15, R74 000 in 2015/16, R600 000 in
2016/17, R3 000 in 2017/18, and zero irregular for 2018/19.
From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Auditor-General Report on the Annual Financial
Statements and the Management Letter of the Auditor-General, it was noted that there has been a stabilisation
of the organisations internal control environment which has culminated in the NYDA sustaining the clean
audit again for the 2018/19 financial year (five years in succession). Of significance, is the 100% achievement
of planned targets.
The quality on in-year management and monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and
Division of Revenue Act
The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of monthly reports prepared and issued by the
NYDA during the year under review, noting that there has been significant improvement around performance
information compilation and reporting.
The Audit Committee will continue to monitor the achievement of all planned targets for the forthcoming
financial year to sustain the 100% achievement of planned targets.
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Evaluation of financial statements
The Audit Committee has:
•		 Reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements to be included in the Annual Report, with
			 the Auditor-General and the Accounting Authority
•		 Reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa’s management report and management’s
			
report thereto
•		 Reviewed the Agency’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions
•		 Reviewed significant adjustment resulting from the audit
•		 Review of the information on predetermined objectives to be included in the annual report
Internal audit
We are satisfied that the Internal Audit function is operating effectively, with the support of Management, and
that is has addressed the risks pertinent to the NYDA in its internal audits.
Auditor-General of South Africa
We have met with the Auditor-General of South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved issues, and we
concur with the conclusions of the Auditor-General of South Africa for the 2018/19 financial period.
Other matters/Investigations
The Audit Committee received allegations through the whistle-blowing hotline. These were referred to Internal
Audit to determine their validity thereof, and for further investigation. The Audit Committee on a regular basis
receives progress reports on the status of these investigation and reviewed these forensic and investigation
reports, ensuring that the necessary correction action is taken by Management.
Appreciation
We would like to extend our appreciation to the Accounting Authority, Management, and Internal and External
Auditors for their tireless efforts in supporting and co-operating with us during the year. We look forward to
another successful year ahead.

Ms Rachel Kalidass
Chairperson: Audit Committee
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Accounting Authority’s Responsibilities and Approval
The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA), Section 3A Public Entity was established by the National Youth
Development Agency Act, 2008 (Act No.54 of 2008) (NYDA Act) through the merger of the National Youth Commission
(NYC) and the Umsobomvu Youth Fund (UYF).
The merger was pursuant to section 21(2) of the NYDA Act, effective from 1 October 2009. This report and the
accompanying financial statements cover the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019. The NYDA is governed through
the NYDA Act and focuses on youth development between the ages of 14 & 35 through the Key Programmatic Areas
of Economic Development, Education and Skills Development and Research and Knowledge Management.
The NYDA is established within the Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation which is the transferring
Department of the Agency and represents the Executive Authority.
The Accounting Authority is the NYDA Board of Directors.
The Accounting Authority is required by the Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999 (PFMA), as amended, to
maintain adequate accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and
the related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements
fairly present the state of affairs of the NYDA as at the end of the financial period, and the result of operations and cash
flows for the period then ended, in conformity with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (Standard
of GRAP), and directives and guidelines issued by the Accounting Standard Board (ASB). The external auditors are
engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements and are given unrestricted access to all
financial records and related data.
The annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Standards of GRAP, including any
interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the ASB. These annual financial statements are based upon
appropriate accounting policies which were consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements
and estimates. The Accounting Authority acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal
financial control established by the NYDA, and places considerable importance on maintaining a strong control
environment. To enable the Accounting Authority to meet these responsibilities, the authority sets standards for internal
control, aimed at reducing the risk of errors in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of
responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties,
to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored by the NYDA and all employees are required to
maintain the highest ethical standard in ensuring that the NYDA's business is conducted in a manner that is above
reproach, in all reasonable circumstances. The focus of risk management is on identifying, assessing, managing and
monitoring all known forms of risk across the NYDA. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the NYDA
endeavours to minimise risk by ensuring the appropriate management and application of infrastructure, controls,
systems and ethical behaviour, with predetermined procedures and constraints.
The Accounting Authority was of the opinion that the system of internal control provided reasonable assurance that the
financial records were reliable for the preparation of these annual financial statements. However, any system of internal
control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute assurance against any misstatement or loss. The annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, which were prepared on a going concern basis, were approved for issue
by the Accounting Authority and were signed on its behalf by:

_______________________________
Mr Waseem Carrim
Chief Executive Officer
31 July 2019
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Accounting Authority’s Report
The Accounting Authority of the National Youth Development Agency is pleased to submit its report, together with the
NYDA’s annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.
Board of Directors
The members of the Board of Directors are comprised as follows:
Board of Directors
Mr Sifiso Mtsweni
Ms Bavelile Hlongwa
Mr Yershen Pillay
Mr Kenny Morolong
Ms Zandile Majozi
Ms Joy Maimela
Mr Waseem Carrim CA (SA)

Role
Executive Chairperson
Deputy Executive Chairperson
Non-Executive member
Non-Executive member
Non-Executive member
Non-Executive member
Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer is an ex officio member of the Board without voting rights.
Bankers
Standard Bank of South Africa Limited
Auditors
Auditor General of South Africa
Company Secretary
Mr Tshediso Dassie
The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, as set out on pages, which have been prepared
on a going concern basis, were approved by the Accounting Authority and signed on its behalf.

________________________________
Mr Waseem Carrim
Chief Executive Officer
31 July 2019
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2019
Note
Assets

2019

2018

R‘000

R‘000

Current assets
Receivables from exchange transactions

2

4 974

2 446

Receivables from non-exchange transactions

3

10 187

2 101

Cash and cash equivalents

4

99 128

82 629

114 289

87 176

Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment

5

27 862

23 418

Intangible assets

6

12 118

13 591

Loan receivables from exchange transactions

7

-

-

5 356

3 794

45 336

40 803

159 625

127 979

Rental deposit
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Finance lease obligation

8

805

683

Payables from exchange transactions

9

73 169

66 215

Employee cost provisions

10

10 851

12 441

Deferred income

11

11 508

6 997

Deferred expenses

12

435

435

96 768

86 771

Non-current liabilities
Finance lease obligation

8

223

706

Deferred expenses

12

6 010

4 631

6 233

5 337

103 001

92 108

Net Assets

56 624

35 871

Accumulated surplus

56 624

35 871

Total Liabilities
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Statement of Financial Performance
Notes
Revenue

2019

2018

R‘000

R‘000

Revenue from exchange transactions
Fair value adjustments

16

-

42

Interest income

14

5 750

7 461

Other income

15

410

876

55

-

6 215

8 379

477 145

432 806

31 047

18 061

508 192

450 868

514 407

459 247

17-21

(150 517)

(138 799)

22

(31 047)

(18 061)

(114)

(188)

Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Grant income – Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation
Donor funding income

22

Total revenue
Expenditure
Operating expenses
Donor funding disbursements
Finance costs
Project disbursements

24

(253 292)

(239 621)

Grant disbursements

23

(58 686)

(34 611)

-

(24)

(493 655)

(431 304)

Loss on disposal of asset
Total expenditure
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year

20 751

27 943

6
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Balance at 1 April 2017

Accumulated
Surplus
R‘000
7 930

Total net assets
R‘000
7 930

Surplus for the year

27 943

27 943

Balance at 1 April 2018

35 873

35 873

Surplus for the year

20 751

20 751

Balance at 31 March 2019

56 624

56 624
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Cash Flow Statement
Notes
Cash flows from operating activities

2019
R‘000

2018
R‘000

Receipts
Transfer income

477 145

432 806

7 204

2 858

29 432

840

-

42

513 781

436 546

Employee costs

(180 343)

(168 548)

Suppliers

(298 839)

(231 915)

(3 611)

-

(668)

10 794

(483 461)

(389 669)

30 320

46 877

(11 953)

(15 594)

167

60

Interest income received
Other receipts
Fair value adjustment
Payments

Interest paid
Changes in working capital
Net cash flows from operating activities

25

Cash flows from investing activities
Property, Plant and Equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Receipts from loans

-

96

Receipts from investment in associate

-

5 169

(25)

(95)

(11 811)

(10 364)

Cash flows from financing activities

(2 010)

(750)

Finance lease payments

(2 010)

(750)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

16 499

35 763

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

82 629

46 866

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

99 128

82 629

Purchase of intangible assets
Net cash flows from investing activities

8
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on a Cash Basis

Statement of Financial
Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Interest and loan income
Fair value adjustments
Other income

Approved
Budget

Adjustments

Final budget

R’000

R’000

R’000

6 000

(2 000)

4 000

-

-

-

Actual
amounts on
comparable
basis
R’000

Difference
between final
budget and
actual
R’000

5 750

1 750

-

-

410

410

104

104

-

-

-

-

-

-

6 000

(2 000)

4 000

6 264

2 264

Department of Planning,
Monitoring and Evaluation
Donor funded income

446 461

30 684

477 145

477 145

-

28 400

-

28 400

31 047

2 647

Total revenue from nonexchange transactions
Gross revenue

474 861

30 684

505 545

508 192

2 647

480 861

28 684

509 545

514 456

4 911

11 705

2 700

14 405

14 524

(119)

17 043

-

17 043

17 025

18

170 000

8 900

178 900

178 859

41

Information Technology

27 977

(4 300)

23 677

23 596

81

Outsourcing and External
Services
Seminars and Training

10 118

300

10 418

10 735

(317)

10 175

4 200

14 375

14 361

14

7 630

5 600

13 230

13 254

(24)

-

-

-

114

(114)

131 828

(10 000)

121 828

121 688

140

Gains on disposals of
assets
Total revenue from
exchange transactions
Revenue from nonexchange transactions
Transfer revenue

Expenditure
Administration and
Overheads
Communications and
Public Relations
Employee costs

Travel and Accommodation
Interest Paid
Project Disbursements
Impairment, write off’,
depreciation, amortisation
Donor funded expenditure

-

-

-

9 815

(9 815)

28 400

-

28 400

31 047

(2 647)

Grant disbursements

37 490

21 284

58 774

58 686

88

Total expenditure

452 366

28 684

481 050

493 704

(12 654)

Capital expenditure

28 495

-

28 495

11 977

16 518

Gross expenditure

480 861

28 684

509 545

505 681

3 864
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Accounting policies
Basis of preparation
The NYDA was established by the South African Government through the National Youth Development Agency Act,
2008 Act, (No. 54 of 2008). This Act, in particular Section 21(2), made provision for the merger between the
Umsobomvu Youth Fund and the National Youth Commission, to form the NYDA. It is classified as a National Public
Entity under Part A of Schedule 3 of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999(Act No. 1 of 1999) as
amended.
Statement of Compliance:
The annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP), including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the
Accounting Standards Board.
The following Standards and Interpretations of GRAP are approved but not yet effective:
GRAP 20

Related Party Disclosures

GRAP 32

Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor

GRAP 34

Separate Financial Statements

GRAP 35

Consolidated Financial Statements

GRAP 36

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

GRAP 37

Joint Arrangements

GRAP 38

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

GRAP 108

Statutory Receivables

GRAP 109

Accounting by Principals and Agents

GRAP 110

Living and Non-living Resources

IGRAP 17

Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession Arrangements Where a Grantor
Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset

IGRAP 18

Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Recognition and De-recognition of Land.

IGRAP 19

Liabilities to pay levies

The Standards in respect of Related Party Disclosures, Joint Ventures, Statutory Receivables and Accounting by
Principals and Agents are expected to have a material future impact on the Agency. Finance senior management
shall attend training workshops to familiarise with the new Standards once effective and shall devise a strategy and
implementation plan to ensure adherence to new Standards.
Basic of measurement:
These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with
historical cost convention, unless otherwise specified. The NYDA’s functional currency is the South African Rand and
the annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand. Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have
not been offset, except where offsetting is required, or permitted, by a Standard of GRAP.
1.1 Significant estimates, assumptions and judgements
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimations, and uncertainty at reporting date,
which hold a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below:

10
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Financial Assets and Liabilities
Investment in associates
Management makes assumptions when determining the fair value of investments in associates. Fair value is the
amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arms-length transaction. The NYDA uses the discounted free cash-flow valuation technique or net asset value as the
primary basis of valuing investment in associates. The NYDA uses discount rates of 20% - 40% to discount estimated
future cash flows. Where reliable information necessary for the application of the discounted free cash-flow valuation
technique is not available, the investments are carried at cost. In circumstances where the NYDA makes a loan to an
associate and such loan is impaired, this will be regarded as an impairment indicator of the investment. The NYDA
does not have any financial instruments which are actively traded in the financial markets.
Determination of recoverable amount and impairment of non-financial assets:
Cash generating assets

Where impairment indicators exist, the determination of the recoverable amount of non-financial assets requires
management to make assumptions on cash generating assets to determine the recoverable amount. On each
reporting date, the NYDA assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the NYDA estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, and is determined for an individual asset. If the asset
cannot be assessed individually, it will be assessed as part of a cash-generating unit (CGU). Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or CGU is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value, using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.
Non-cash generating assets (services)
For non-cash generating assets, when an impairment indicators exist, management must determine a recoverable
service amount. The recoverable service amount is the higher of assets fair value less costs to sell or value in use. It
may not be possible to determine fair value less costs to sell in which case the alternative methods may be used to
estimate fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is the present value of the assets remaining service potential.
Determination of recoverable amount and impairment of financial assets:
Where impairment indicators exist, the determination of the recoverable amount of financial assets requires
management to make assumptions to determine the recoverable amount. On each reporting date, the NYDA
assesses whether a financial asset is impaired.
Individual financial assets are reviewed for any indicators of impairment. If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on a financial asset has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). When an amount is
outstanding in excess of 90 days, this is considered by management as objective evidence that an impairment loss
has occurred. However, there may be other objective evidence, either indicating or not indicating impairment, which
management considers when assessing a financial asset.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation and carrying value of property, plant and equipment
Residual values are the estimated amounts that could be currently obtained from disposal of the asset after deducting
costs of disposal if the asset was already or age and condition expected at the end of useful lives. The estimation of
useful lives and residual values of assets is based on management’s judgment. Any material adjustments to the
estimated remaining useful life and residual value of assets will have an impact on the carrying value of those items
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Change in useful lives of assets
The useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets were assessed at year
end and the following adjustments made:


Residual value for furniture and fittings will be adjusted to nil effective from the 01st April 2019.

This adjustment will be accounted for prospectively.
Provision for Bonus
The provision for bonus is estimated based on management's best estimate of the expected bonus pay-out which is
based on average employee and organisational performance.
1.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
Definition of property, plant and equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment is a tangible item that is held for use in the production or supply of goods and
services, for rental to other of for administrative purposes and is expected to be used during more than one reporting
period
Initial recognition of equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:



It is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity;
and
The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, Plant and Equipment is initially measured at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is
the purchase price and other costs attributable to bringing the assets to location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at
the cost.
Where an asset is acquired for no consideration or for nominal consideration, its cost shall be its fair value as at date
of acquisition.
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent recognition of property, plant and equipment
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an
item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over its expected useful life on a straight-line basis, at rates estimated
to write each assets down to its estimated residual value over the term of the useful life. Depreciation on equipment
begin when an asset is available for use. Property, plant and equipment is carried cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each reporting date and, if expectations differ
from previous estimates the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimates.
At each reporting date, all items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for any indication that they may be
impaired. Impairment exists when ab assets carrying amount is greater than each recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and it’s in value in use. If there is
an indication of impairment, the assets recoverable amount is calculated. An impairment loss is recognised in surplus
or deficit and the depreciation charge relating to the assets is adjusted for future periods.
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Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment (continued)
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative period is as indicated
below:
Motor vehicles

Straight line 4-6 years

Office equipment

Straight line 5-10 years

Computer hardware

Straight line 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements

Straight line

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight line over shorter of the term of the lease or the useful life
thereof. Useful life is between 5 -10 years while lease terms range from 5 – 7 years.
De-recognition of property, plant and equipment
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised:



on disposal
when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or
deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
1.3 Intangible assets
An asset is identifiable if it either:




Is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed,
rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability,
regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or
Arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.

Initial recognition for intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when:



It is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the entity; and
The cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
The cost of an intangible asset acquired for no consideration or for a nominal consideration shall be its fair value as at
the date of acquisition.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is
incurred.
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised
when:






192

It is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
There is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
There is an ability to use or sell it.
It will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.
There are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the asset.
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The expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Subsequent measurement of intangible assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. An
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortized.
Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a
straight line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets with finite useful life are reviewed at each
reporting date. If the expected useful life of the asset is different from the previous estimates, the amortisation period
is charged accordingly. If there was a change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
or service potential embodied in the asset, the amortisation method is charged to reflect the change pattern. Each
change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimates, in accordance with the standard of GRAP on
Accounting Policies, and Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values. The
NYDA amortises its intangible asset at a rate of 14-20% per annum. Developed software is amortised when the
software becomes available for use. Amortisation of these assets are recognised in surplus of deficit.
At each reporting date, all items of intangible assets are reviewed for any indication that they may be impaired.
Impairment exists when an asset's carrying amount is greater than its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
of an asset or CGU should be higher than its fair value less cost to sell and it value in use. If there is an indication of
impairment, the asset's recoverable amount is calculated. An impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit and
the amortization charge relating to the asset is adjusted for future periods.
De-recognition of intangible assets
Intangible assets are derecognised:



On disposal; or
When no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an intangible assets is included in surplus or deficit when the asset is
derecognised (unless the Standards of GRAP on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback).
1.4 Investments in associates
An associate is an entity in which NYDA has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.
The NYDA invests in equity of the young, rapidly growing companies that have the potential to develop into significant
economic contributors and expanding companies that also create jobs in the economy. The NYDA meets the
definition of the venture capital organisation as it invests in new companies with limited operating history and too
small to raise capital in the public markets and have not reached a point where they are able to secure a bank loan or
complete debt offering. NYDA has therefore opted to elect the venture capital organisation exemption and these
investments in associates, upon initial recognition, are designated as at fair value through surplus or deficit in
accordance with GRAP 104.
Fair value adjustments are recognised through surplus or deficit. The NYDA uses the discounted free cash-flow
valuation technique or net asset value as the primary basis for valuing investments in associates. The NYDA uses
discount rates of 20%–40% to discount estimated future cash flows. Where reliable information necessary for the
application of the discounted free cash flow valuation technique is not available, the investments are carried at cost.
In circumstances where the NYDA makes a loan to an associate and such a loan is impaired, this will be regarded as
an impairment indicator of the investment.
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1.5 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A
lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership.
Finance lease - Initial recognition
At the commencement of the lease term, the NYDA recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities in its
Statement of Financial
Position, at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased assets or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in
the lease, if this is practicable to determine. If not, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Any initial direct
costs of the lessee are added to the amount recognised as an asset.
Subsequent measurement
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability.
The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term, so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Contingent rents shall be charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
Classification of finance lease
The leases are classified as finance leases as the assets will be used for the majority of their economic life.
Operating leases
Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis
over the lease term, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit.
1.6 Revenue from exchange transactions
An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives an approximate equal value to the other party in the exchange.
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period, when those inflows
result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Interest
Interest income is recognised in surplus or deficit for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset and of allocating the interest income over the average expected life of the financial instruments. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the NYDA estimates cash flows, considering all contractual terms of the
financial instruments, but does not consider future credit losses.
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1.7 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an
entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives
value to another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
Government grants
Government grants are recognised as revenue.




When it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to
the entity.
When the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.
To the extent that there has been compliance with any restrictions associated with the grant.

The entity assesses the degree of certainty attached to the flow of future economic benefits or service potential on
the basis of the available evidence. Certain grants payable by one level of government to another are subject to the
availability of funds. Revenue from these grants is only recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity. An announcement at the beginning of a
financial year that grants may be available for qualifying entities in accordance with an agreed programme may not
be sufficient evidence of the probability of the flow. Revenue is then only recognised once evidence of the probability
of the flow becomes available.
Grants are measured at the fair value received or receivable
The government grant received does not have any specific condition attached and is recognised as revenue once
committed.
Gifts and donations
Gift and donations are recognised as revenue when:



It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity
The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Gifts and donations are measured at the increase in net assets.
1.8 Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to legislation, including, but not limited to the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA) and National Treasury regulations.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and could have been avoided had
reasonable care been exercised.
Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The amount recorded is
equal to the value of irregularity unless it is impracticable to determine, in which case reasons are provided in the
note. Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant authority or
transferred to receivables for recovery.
1.9 Budget information
The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance
outcome objectives. The budget period is aligned to the financial statement period.
The financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting, and a comparison with the budgeted
amounts for the reporting period has therefore have been included in the statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts. Comparative information is not required.
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1.10 Related Parties
The NYDA operates in an economic sector, currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled
by the South African
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South
Africa, only entities within the national sphere of government within the same Department structure are considered to
be related parties.
Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity. We regard all members of the Operations Executive Committee, reporting
directly to the Chief Executive Officer, as key management individuals.
1.11 Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement
On initial recognition, an instrument is classified as either a financial asset or a financial liability and recorded at fair
value plus, in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through surplus or deficit,
any directly attributable incremental costs of acquisition or issue.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a timeframe established by regulation or
conversion in the marketplace (regular way of purchases), are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the
NYDA commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial instruments carried on the Statement of Financial Position is on the following
basis:
Investments
Investments in equity instruments are designated as at fair value through surplus and deficit. All changes in fair value
are recognized directly in surplus or deficit.
Loans receivable
Loans receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market.
Such assets are carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, less any allowance for
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised through surplus and deficit when the loans receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as interest through the amortisation process.
Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
Where the impact of discounting is not material, receivables are carried at the original invoice amount, less any
allowance for impairment.
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables are initially recognised and carried at fair value and, subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method. Trade payables are derecognised when the obligation under the liability has been
discharged.
Cash and cash equivalents including cash on call

Cash and cash equivalents, including cash on call comprise of demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash. Cash and cash equivalents, including cash on
call, are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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Rental deposits
Rental deposits include all monies paid by the NYDA as deposits for the rental of the buildings. Rental deposits are
initially recognized and carried at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Investment in associates
Refer to note 1.4
Impairment of financial assets
Assets carried at amortised cost
At each reporting date, the NYDA assesses whether a financial asset is impaired. Individual financial assets are
reviewed for any indicators of impairment. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
When an amount is outstanding for longer than 90 days, this is considered by management as objective evidence
that an impairment loss has occurred. However, there may be other objective evidence that may or may not indicate
impairment. Management considers such objective evidence when assessing a financial asset. The carrying amount
of the financial asset is reduced through use of an allowance account, when there is objective evidence that the asset
may be impaired directly and against carrying value of an asset, when the asset is considered irrecoverable. The
amount of the loss is recognised through surplus or deficit. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset
does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in surplus or deficit.
De-recognition of financial instruments




If the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.
If the NYDA retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement.
If the NYDA has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and has either transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the NYDA has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the NYDA’s continuing involvement of the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the
form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the NYDA could be required to repay.
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Cash-generating assets and non-cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. As asset generates a
commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity. Holding an
asset to generate a “commercial return” indicates that the NYDA intends to generate positive cash inflows from the
asset (or from the cash-generating unit of which the asset is a part) and earn a commercial return that reflects the risk
involved in holding the asset. Non cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.
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1.12 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid
vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the
period in which the service is rendered.
Liabilities for short-term employee benefits which are unpaid at year-end are measured at the undiscounted amount
that the entity expects to pay in exchange for that service and had accumulated at the reporting date.
Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The entity
has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions, if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to services in the current or prior periods. The entity’s contributions to the defined
contribution funds are established in terms of the rules governing those plans. Contributions are recognised in surplus
or deficit in the period in which the service is rendered by the relevant employees, unless the standard requires or
permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or reduction in future payments is available.
Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted, using a risk-free rate, determined by
reference to market yields at the reporting date on government bonds or by reference to market yields on high-quality
corporate bonds.
Termination benefits
The NYDA recognizes termination benefits as a liability and an expense when, and only when, the entity is
demonstrably committee to either








Terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date, or
Provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.
The NYDA is demonstrably committed to a termination when, and only when, it has detailed formal plan for
the termination and is without realistic possibility of withdrawal. The detailed plan shall include, as a
minimum:
The location, function and approximate number of employees whose services are to be terminated;
The termination benefits for each job classification or function; and
The time at which the plan will be implemented. Implementation shall begin as soon as possible and the
period of time to complete implementation shall be such that material changes to the plan are not likely.

1.13 Project disbursements
Disbursements to projects are categorised and disclosed as follows:
Project disbursements are approved grant funding made to third-party service providers, who plan, implement, and
manage youth development projects, as well as payments relating to youth development projects, managed internally
by the NYDA, using its own capacity.
1.14 Commitments
Where a project has been approved, but has not been accrued for, or provided for, it is disclosed as commitments in
the notes to the annual financial statements.
1.15 Deferred income
Deferred income represents revenues collected but not earned, as at reporting date. This includes grants from foreign
institutions.
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1.16 Joint Ventures
A joint venture is a binding arrangement, whereby two or more parties are committed to undertake an activity that is
subject to joint control.
Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding arrangement, and exists only when the
strategic financial and operational decisions relating to the activity require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control (the ventures). The binding agreement establishes joint control over the joint venture. Such requirement
ensures that no single venture is in a position to unilaterally control the activity
Jointly controlled operations
Where the operation of a joint venture comprises the use of the venture’s assets and other resources, without the
establishment of a separate entity, the joint venture is referred to as a jointly controlled operation
The entity recognises, in its separate annual financial statements and, consequently, in its annual financial
statements:



The assets that it controlled and the liabilities that it incurred
The expense that it incurred and its share of the revenue that it earned from the sale or provision of the
goods or services by the joint venture

Jointly controlled assets
Where the entity undertakes its activities under a joint-venture arrangement directly, the controlling entity’s share of
jointly controlled assets, and any liabilities incurred jointly with other ventures, is recognised in the statement of
financial position of the entity and classified according to their nature. Revenue from the sale or use of the entity’s
share of the output of jointly controlled assets, and its share of joint venture expense are recognised in surplus or
deficit.
1.17 Grant disbursements
Grant disbursements are recognised once the grant has been approved and the grant holder has been informed of
such approval.
1.16 Voucher disbursements
The Voucher Programme results in the following accounting treatment:
The issue to a young person of a voucher that is not yet redeemed is disclosed as a contingent liability as at financial
year end, as there is only a possible obligation, contingent upon redemption of the voucher and delivery of the
product.
The redemption of the voucher and delivery by a service provider without a product having passed all quality
assurance create a constructive obligation and a provision is determined and accounted for.
The delivery by a service provider which has passed quality assurance is accounted for as a liability.
1.17 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets held for sale are classified and disclosed as current assets when there is an approved decision to
dispose of the assets, and plans have been implemented to market the assets for sale and the sale is expected to be
concluded within twelve months.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
2. Receivables from exchange transactions

2019
R’000

2018
R’000

Sundry debtors

1 754

1 707

Prepaid expenses

4 549

2 169

12

12

561

460

(1 902)

(1 902)

4 974

2 446

Fixed asset receivables
Interest receivable banks
Less: Allowance for impairment

Receivables allowance for impairment reconciliation 2019

Allowance for impairment

Allowance
for
impairment
2018

Impairment
expense

1902

Allowance
for
impairment
2019
-

1 902

Receivables allowance for impairment reconciliation 2018

Allowance for impairment

3. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Allowance
for
impairment
2017
835

Impairment
expense
1 067

Allowance
for
impairment
2018
1 902

2019
R’000
446

2018
R’000
-

Flanders

578

556

Staff Loans

782

707

Department of Arts and Culture

1 000

-

Services Sector Training Education Authority

7 381

838

10 187

2 101

National Student Financial Aid Services (NSFAS)
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4. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

2019
R’000

2018
R’000

98 792

80 900

336

12

-

1 717

99 128

82 629

Unrestricted cash
Cash at bank on hand:
Restricted cash
CIPC
Joint venture: University of Johannesburg Institute*
Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash represent funds earmarked for specific projects where the NYDA is in partnership with third parties,
hence such funds are restricted and cannot be used for any purpose other than the purpose as stipulated in the
partnership agreement.
* The joint venture agreement between the NYDA and the University of Johannesburg Institute ended on the 31st
March 2019, this has resulted in the release of the restricted cash as at 31 March 2019.

5. Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost

Motor
vehicles
Office
equipment
Leasehold
improvements
Furniture
Computer
equipment

R’000

2019
Accumulated
depreciation
and
impairment
R’000

Carrying value

Cost

R’000

R’000

2 141

4 207

2018
Accumulated
depreciation
and
impairment
R’000

(1 628)

Carrying value

R’000

4 207

(2 066)

2 579

9 502

(5 671)

3 831

8 394

(4 856)

3 538

25 162

(15 897)

9 265

21 268

(15 628)

5 639

15 558
24 713

(10 398)
(17 248)

5 160
7 465

13 351
23 098

(8 607)
(16 180)

4 744
6 918

79 142

(51 280)

27 862

70 319

(46 900)

23 418

22
201

202

Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Leasehold improvements
Furniture
Computer equipment

Reconciliation of equipment – 2018

Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Leasehold improvements
Furniture
Computer equipment

Reconciliation of equipment – 2019

267
2 065
4 011
2 215
3 863
12 423

Opening
balance
R’000

Opening
balance
R’000
2 579
3 538
5 639
4 744
6 918
23 418

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(7)
(34)
(43)
(84)

R’000

R’000
2 424
2 497
2 644
3 395
5 202
16 162

Disposals

Additions

(27)
(212)
(239)

R’000

R’000
1 770
5 101
1 960
3 122
11 953

Disposals

Additions

National Youth Development Agency

(113)
(1 015)
(1 009)
(754)
(2 026)
(4 917)

R’000

Depreciation

(438)
(1 346)
(1 475)
(1 510)
(2 303)
(7 072)

R’000

Depreciation
(104)
(34)
(60)
(198)

R’000
(9)
(-)
(78)
(78)
(166)

Impairment loss

R’000

Impairment loss

23

2 579
3 538
5 639
4 744
6 918
23 418

R’000

Total

2 141
3 831
9 265
5 160
7 465
27 862

R’000

Total
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6. Intangible assets

Software developed in
house
Computer software
purchased
Software under
development
Total

2019

Cost

R’000
12 633

Accumulated
amortisation
and
impairment
R’000
(10 895)

4 677

Carrying
value

Cost

2018

R’000
1 738

R’000
12 633

Accumulated
amortisation
and
impairment
R’000
(9 840)

Carrying
value

(3 284)

1 393

4 652

(2 841)

1 811

8 987

-

8 987

8 987

-

8 987

26 297

(14 179)

12 118

26 272

(12 681)

13 591

R’000
2 793

24
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Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2019
Opening
Additions
Disposals
balance
R’000
R’000
R’000
Software
2 793
developed in
house
Software
1 811
25
purchased
Software under
8 987
development
13 591
25
Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2018
Opening
Additions
Disposals
balance
R’000
R’000
R’000
Software
3 915
developed in
house
Software
2 175
94
purchased
Software under
8 987
development
15 077
94
-

204

Transfers
-

R’000
(1 055)

Impairment
loss
R’000
-

-

(443)

-

1 393

-

-

-

8 987

-

(1 498)

-

12 118

Transfers

Amortisation

R’000
2 792

R’000

R’000

Amortisation

Total
R’000
1 738

-

R’000
(1 123)

Impairment
loss
R’000
-

Total

-

(458)

-

1 811

-

-

-

8 987

-

(1 581)

-

13 590

25
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7. Loans receivable from exchange transactions
Small Medium Enterprise

2019
R’000
258 335

2018
R’000
259 476

Micro loans, direct lending and intermediaries

114 695

113 565

11 233

11 233

Gross advances

384 263

384 274

Add: Interest Receivables

112 003

110 030

Less: Loans written off

(213 451)

(130 956)

Less: Cumulative capital repayment

(230 626)

(230 647)

-

-

52 189

132 701

Allowance for impairment

(52 189)

(132 701)

Small and medium enterprise

(30 447)

(111 749)

(9 928)

(9 892)

(11 814)

(11 060)

Net loans receivable from exchange transactions

-

-

Due within one year

-

-

Due within more than one year

-

-

Co-operatives

Less: Transfer from loans receivables
Sub-totals

Micro, loans, direct lending and intermediaries
Co-operatives

Loans written off were written off after the following criteria had been met:
The loan holders had no recoverable assets as surety against which to recover loans; the legal process was
exhausted against loan holders; loan holders were not traceable through debt recovery procedures.
Loans receivable allowance for impairment
reconciliation 2019

Small and medium enterprises
Micro, loans, direct lending and intermediaries
Co-operatives

Loans receivable allowance for impairment
reconciliation 2018

Small and medium enterprises
Micro, loans , direct lending and intermediaries
Co-operatives

Allowance
for
impairment
2018
R’000
111 749

Impairment
change in
provision
R’000
(81 738)

Impairment
reversal
R’000

436

Allowance
for
impairment
2019
R’000
30 447

9 892

36

-

9 928

11 060

754

-

11 814

132 701

(80 948)

436

52 189

Allowance
for
impairment
2017
R’000

Impairment
change in
provision

Impairment
reversal

R’000

R’000

Allowance
for
impairment
2018
R’000

108 527

3 222

-

111 749

9 377

515

-

9 892

10 362

698

-

11 060

128 266

4 435

-

132 701
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Financial

7. Loans receivable from exchange transactions (continued)
In assessing its loan book for any indicators of impairment, the NYDA considered the following factors over and
above the amount in excess of 90 days:
Whether the borrower was trading or not;
The age of the debt;
Progress of the attorneys in recovering the debt and their opinion on the recoverability;
The reliance of the borrower on the few customers and the loss of this customer base;
The cash flows of the business as shown on the bank statement and or management accounts;
Defaults on expected repayments of interest and principal amounts by the borrower.








Range of interest rates
Small and medium enterprise

2019
R’000
6 – 18%

2018
R’000
6 – 18%

Micro, loans, direct lending and intermediaries

6 – 24%

6 – 24%

3.5 – 10%

3.5 – 10%

2019
R’000

2018
R’000

Co-operatives

8. Finance lease obligation
Minimum lease payments due
-

Within one year

805

683

-

In second to fifth year inclusive

223

706

1 028

1 389

(94)

(153)

1 122

1 236

Less: Future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments
Present value of minimum lease payments due:
-

Within one year

805

683

-

In second to fifth year

223

706

1 028

1 389

Non-current liabilities

223

706

Current liabilities

805

683

1 028

1 389

The NYDA has leased photocopiers from Konica Minolta for a period ranging from 31-36 months for fixed monthly
rental payable in arrears with no residual value. Ownership of these machines will not pass to the end of the lease
term.
9. Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables

2019
R’000
16 882

2018
R’000
6 844

Accruals

56 307

59 371

73 169

66 215

The NYDA trade payables generally do not exceed a maturity of four months and the fair value is considered to be a
reasonable approximation of the carrying value.
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10. Employee cost provisions
Reconciliation of employee cost provisions 2019
Opening
Additions
balance
Employee termination
Provision for leave
Provision for performance
bonus
Other employee
provisions

95
3 277
9 657

Utilised
during the
year
R’000
(1 700)
(3 570)
(9 373)

-

24

-

-

24

12 441

13 053

(14 643)

-

10 851

R’000
1 605
3 903
6 933

R’000

Reconciliation of employee cost provisions 2018
Opening
Additions
balance
Employee termination
Provision for leave
Provision for performance
bonus

R’000
1 090
4 710
6 452
12 252

R’000

515
4 417
9 878

14 810

Utilised
during the
year
R’000

(5 225)
(9 397)

Reversed
during the
year
R’000

Reversed
during the
year
R’000

(14 622)

Total

-

R’000

3 610
7 217

Total

-

R’000
1 605
3 902
6 933

-

12 441

Staff bonuses are expected to be paid during the new financial year, the leave pay accrual is expected to be utilised
when employee takes leave or resigns.
11. Deferred income

2019
R’000
587

2018
R’000
340

Department of Trade and Industry

-

-

MERSETA

-

-

236

236

Independent Development Trust

3 359

3 359

Industrial Development Corporation

3 000

-

Front end fees

-

9

Education, Training and Development Practices

-

-

Kwa-Zulu Natal ETDP

1 517

5

The Young Patriots Programme

2 808

3 048

11 508

6 997

Flemish government – donor funding

Princes Youth Business International

Deferred income is comprised of the following:





Flemish government: Donor support for conferencing, research, development and implementation of a
National Youth Service volunteer programme.
Department of Trade and Industry: Donor support for the Economic Development programme of the Agency.
MERSETA: Donor support for the career guidance programme of the Agency.
Princes Youth Business International: Donor support by the Princes Fund for youth development Economic
Development programmes.
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Independent Development Trust: Donor support for the implementation of the youth component of the
Expanded Public Works Programme.
Industrial Development Corporation: Donor support for the voucher programme of the Agency.
KZN ETDP: The KZN Provincial Government contributes to the NYDA Grant Program.
Front end fees: Fees charged at the issuing of a loan and amortised over the period of the loan.
Education, Training and Development Practices: Donor support for the Education programme of the Agency.
The Young Patriots Programme: Donor support by the Department of Arts and Culture for the
implementation of a National Youth Service programme.

12. Deferred expenses
Operating lease deferred expense

2019
R’000
4 342

2018
R’000
2 529

435

435

1 667

2 102

6 445

5 066

Tenant Installation Allowance – current portion
Tenant Installation Allowance – non-current portion

13. Financial Instruments
Set out below is the classification of financial instruments held by the NYDA at 31 March 2019
2019

Assets
Rental deposit
Receivables from exchange
transactions
Receivables from non-exchange
transactions
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial
assets at
amortised cost
R’000

Financial
assets at fair
value through
surplus /
(deficit)
R’000

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

Total

R’000

R’000

5 326
4 974

-

-

5 326
4 974

10 187

-

-

10 187

99 128

-

-

99 128

119 645

119 645

Liabilities
Finance lease obligation

-

-

1 028

1 028

Trade and other payables from
exchange transactions

-

-

73 169

73 169

74 197

74 197
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13. Financial Instruments (continued)
2018

Assets

Financial
assets at
amortised cost
R’000

Financial
assets at fair
value through
surplus /
(deficit)
R’000

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

Total

R’000

R’000

Rental deposit

3 794

-

-

3 794

Receivables from exchange
transactions
Receivables from non-exchange
transactions
Cash and cash equivalents

2 446

-

-

2 446

2 101

-

-

2 101

82 629

-

-

82 629

90 970

90 970

Liabilities
Finance lease obligation

-

-

1 389

1 389

Trade and other payables from
exchange transactions

-

-

66 215

66 215

67 604

67 604

The primary risks associated with the financial instruments held by the NYDA are credit, liquidity, market, interest rate
and portfolio risk
Credit risk
One of the NYDA’s core business activities was to invest in small and medium enterprises. Consequently, the Agency
was exposed to credit risk, which refers to the risk that loans made to third parties will not be repaid. The objective of
credit risk management was to minimise financial losses that may arise as a result of third parties failing to discharge
their obligations. The credit risk at the investment stage of any potential investment was researched and assessed by
means of a due diligence process, whereby the entrepreneur was evaluated, the viability of the enterprise was
considered, and various other indications were established and verified. In addition, the NYDA implemented a credit
policy which assisted in managing credit risk. It comprises the following key elements:
• Approval process
• Cash flow-based lending methodology
• Attaching protective covenants to funding arrangements
• Collections policy and procedures
• Delinquency management
• Monitoring
• Mentorship
There have been no changes in the exposure or the policy used to manage credit risk.
Maximum exposure
During the period that the NYDA has exposure to a borrower or investee company, the Agency conducts an ongoing
evaluation of the business and does not provide loans to any single entity in excess of R5 million. The NYDA places
its cash reserves, which are in the form of cash and cash equivalents and rental deposits with the South African
13. Financial Instruments (continued)
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Reserve Bank and local financial institutions which have a minimum rating of AAA. Loans are advanced to
individuals, small and medium enterprises and co-operatives located in rural areas.
Investments in associates include investments in small and medium enterprises located in rural areas, as well as
funds invested by local financial institutions, which have a minimum rating of AAA. Changes in credit exposure and
the maximum credit exposure for all financial assets are detailed in the table below:
Loans receivable from exchange transactions

2019
R’000
-

2018
R’000
-

Micro loans, direct lending and intermediaries

-

-

Co-operatives

-

-

-

-

Rental deposit

5 356

3 794

Receivables from exchange transactions

4 974

2 446

Receivables from non-exchange transactions

10 187

2 101

Cash and cash equivalents

99 128

82 629

119 645

90 970

119 645

90 970

Small Medium Enterprise

General

Collateral and other credit enhancement on loans receivable
The nature of the NYDA’s target market is black youth who have not accumulated assets which are significant, in
relation to the loans advanced to them. Therefore, the value of tangible security offered is not adequate. For loans
less than R100 000, a third party stands as surety and co-principal debtor for a portion (10 to 50%) of the loan. The
surety provider must be in salaried employment with no record of defaulting on loans. During the year under review,
the NYDA did not take possession of any collateral in respect of loans. There is no collateral held for other classes of
financial assets. The NYDA does not take possession of collateral for use in its own operations.
2019

Assets
Rental deposit

Neither
past due
nor
impaired
R’000

Value in
arrears for
1 – 30
days
R’000

Value in
arrears for
31 – 60
days
R’000

Value in
arrears for
61 – 90
days
R’000

Value in
arrears for
>90 days

Total

R’000

R’000

5 356

-

-

-

-

5 356

-

-

-

4 974

-

4 974

-

-

-

10 187

-

10 187

99 128

-

-

-

-

99 128

106 684

-

-

12 961

-

119 645

Investment in associates
Receivables from
exchange transactions
Receivables from nonexchange transactions
Cash and cash
equivalents
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13. Financial Instruments (continued)
2018

Neither
past due
nor
impaired
R’000

Assets
Rental deposit

Value in
arrears for
1 – 30
days
R’000

Value in
arrears for
31 – 60
days
R’000

Value in
arrears for
61 – 90
days
R’000

Value in
arrears for
>90 days

Total

R’000

R’000

3 794

-

-

-

-

3 794

-

-

-

2 446

-

2 446

-

-

-

2 101

-

2 101

82 629

-

-

-

-

82 629

86 423

-

-

4 547

-

90 970

Investment in associates
Receivables from
exchange transactions
Receivables from nonexchange transactions
Cash and cash
equivalents

Loans past due but not impaired (loans renegotiated)
During the year under review no loans were renegotiated.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the NYDA will not be able to meet its funding commitments and other financial
obligations, as and when they fall due. The funding provided to small and medium enterprises is usually
characterised by fixed maturities of up to five years, scheduled repayments and a limited moratorium on capital
repayments and interest. One of the cornerstones of the lending practice adopted is consideration of the certainty of
cash flows, and the ability of the borrower to absorb and service debt. The NYDA has adopted a conservative cashflow management policy to manage the risk of investment made in instruments which are not readily realisable, in
order to keep a healthy liquidity position.
The NYDA has the following mechanisms in place to ensure that it has the funds available to meet its commitments:








A strategic plan and a three-year budget are prepared and approved by the Board of Directors prior to the
start of the financial year
At half-year, the NYDA conducts a revision of its annual budget and reassesses its liquidity needs. In
addition, an application for recapitalisation is made to its Executive Authority and National Treasury.
On a quarterly basis, the strategic plan and budget are reviewed by a committee comprised of divisional
heads, the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer
Once a commitment has been made, NYDA keeps record of all gross commitments and drawn-down
commitments or cancelled commitments and undrawn commitments.
A distinction is made between encumbered and unencumbered cash resources of the NYDA.
Three-year projections of cash flow, undrawn commitments brought forward, new commitments, cancelled
commitments and undrawn commitments carried forward are prepared.
Disbursements on commitments are made in several tranches, based on individual project needs.

Expected maturity dates: financial liabilities
The NYDA’s short-term liabilities are mainly comprised of debts arising in the ordinary course of business and
commitments to making grants for the implementation of National Youth Service and Skills Development projects.
Debts arising in the ordinary course of business are normally settled over a period of not more than two months from
the date of invoice.
Grant commitments are usually made over a period of 12 to 18 months and finance leases over a period of 31 to 36
months.
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Expected maturity dates: financial assets
The NYDA’s financial assets comprise mainly cash in current accounts with local financial institutions and loans due
from small businesses. Except for loans due from small businesses and restricted cash, other financial assets are
very liquid and not subject to any notice periods for draw down.
The NYDA’s exposure to illiquid assets is comprised of investments in restricted cash flows. This accounts for less
than 7% of the carrying value of financial assets
The NYDA manages its liquidity risk by placing funds in short-term, highly liquid investments and ensuring that the
maturities of financial assets match those of its financial liabilities.

2019

Due
immediately or
within one
month
R’000
-

Due later than
one month but
not later than
twelve months
R’000
4 974

Due later than
twelve months

-

R’000
4 974

-

10 187

-

10 187

5 356

-

-

5 356

99 128

-

-

99 128

106 684

12 961

-

119 645

Finance lease obligation

-

(805)

(223)

(1 028)

Trade and other payables from
exchange transactions
Total current liabilities

-

(73 169)

-

(73 169)

-

(73 974)

(223)

(74 197)

106 684

(61 013)

(223)

45 448

Due
immediately or
within one
month
R’000
-

Due later than
one month but
not later than
twelve months
R’000
2 446

Due later than
twelve months

-

Receivables from exchange
transactions
Receivables from non-exchange
transactions
Rental deposit
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Net liquidity of continuing
operations
2018

R’000

Total

-

R’000
2 446

2 101

-

2 101

3 794

-

-

3 794

Cash and cash equivalents

82 629

-

-

82 629

Total current assets

86 423

4 547

-

90 970

Finance lease obligation

-

(706)

(683)

(1 389)

Trade and other payables from
exchange transactions
Total current liabilities

-

(66 215)

-

(66 215)

-

(66 921)

(683)

(67 604)

86 423

(62 374)

(683)

23 366

Receivables from exchange
transactions
Receivables from non-exchange
transactions
Rental deposit

Net liquidity of continuing
operations

212

R’000

Total
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13. Financial Instruments (continued)
Market risk
Market risk is defined as the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate,
because of changes in market prices and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk (which are
factors other than currency and interest rate risk that may influence fair value of the financial asset). The entity is
primarily exposed to interest rate risk. Its objective is to ensure that it minimises losses of interest income as a result
of utilising cash which attracts interest at a variable rate, to invest in other financial assets bearing interest at fixed
rate. Hence, not all its loans granted are variable rate loan.
The NYDA is not directly exposed to currency risk as it does not enter into foreign currency transactions.
There have been no changes in the exposure or the policy used to manage market risk.
Interest rate risk
Changes in interest rates will affect the revenue stream of the NYDA, as most of the financial assets’ returns are
linked to the prime rate.
Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2019, if interest rates had been 100 basis points higher, with all other variables held constant, interest
income would have increased by approximately R991 000 (2018: R648 000). Consequently, income and
accumulated reserves would have increased accordingly. If interest rates had been 100 basis points lower, with all
other variables held constant, interest income would have decreased by approximately R991 000 (2018: R648 000).
Consequently, income and accumulated reserves would have decreased accordingly.
The change would have occurred because of variable rate interest which NYDA earns from its financial assets which
include cash and loans.
The NYDA’s exposure to interest rate risk is as follows:

Small Medium Enterprise
Micro loans, direct lending and intermediaries
Cash and cash equivalents

2019
R’000
-

2018
R’000
-

-

-

99 128

82 629

99 128

82 629

Fair values
Fair value hierarchy of financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit
The NYDA measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making measurement:
Level 1: Quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the financial assets either directly
(as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices)
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data.
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15. Other income

2019
R’000
9

2018
R’000
24

16

840

-

12

385

-

410

876

2019
R’000
-

2018
R’000
42

-

42

17. The nature of operational expenses is as follows:

2019
R’000

2018
R’000

Admin costs

5 894

5 381

Amortization

1 170

1 380

Audits

Front end fees
Unallocated deposits
Bad debt and legal fee recovery
Recovery from fraudulent payments

16. Fair value adjustment
Fair value adjustment to designated investments in associates

6 202

5 600

Capacity building

580

2 898

Communications

17 025

8 519

4 621

2 785

49 973

47 894

204

-

23 597

27 576

(80 468)

5 671

1 985

2 489

-

92

Depreciation
Employee costs
Human Resources costs
ICT
Impairment loss
Legal Fees
Other
Rental

7 947

9 663

Repairs and Maintenance

248

488

Research

112

-

1 969

2 217

Risk
Staff Training
Travel
Workshops
Write offs

214

6 100

4 944

13 255
8 059

8 482
1 942

82 044

777

150 517

138 799
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17. Auditor’s remuneration

2019
R’000
5 809

2018
R’000
4 602

393

998

6 202

5 600

2019
R’000

2018
R’000

Depreciation – Computer equipment

2 303

2 222

Depreciation – Office Equipment

1 346

1 015

Depreciation – Furniture

1 510

754

Depreciation – Leasehold improvements

1 475

845

438

113

7 072

4 949

(2 772)

(2 164)

4 300

2 785

1 498

1 380

-

-

1 498

1 380

2019
R’000
160 809

2018
R’000
148 255

9 476

8 492

302

2 888

Internship programme and temporary staff

3 118

708

Travel and reimbursed expenditure

5 525

8 013

179 230

168 356

(128 811)

(120 462)

External audit fees
Internal audit fees

18. Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation

Depreciation – Motor Vehicles
Total depreciation
Less: Depreciation attributable to project disbursements
Depreciation attributable to operating expenses
Amortisation
Intangible assets
Less: Attributable to project disbursements
Amortisation of intangible assets

19. Employee related costs
Salaries and allowance
Provident fund: Defined contribution
Termination benefits

Total employee cost
Attributable to project disbursements

In 2018 the termination cost included a settlement to a former director for unfair dismissal equating to R1.1 million.

37
215

CELEBRATING 10 YEARS OF YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

National Youth Development Agency
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

National Youth Development Agency
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
20. Allowance for impairment of assets

2019
R’000
-

2018
R’000
3 222

Micro loans, direct lending and intermediaries

-

515

Co-operatives

-

698

-

4 435

Equipment impairment

45

166

Intangibles impairment

-

-

Trade and other receivables

-

1 069

45

1 235

2019
R’000
-

2018
R’000
-

Micro loans, direct lending and intermediaries

-

-

Co-operatives

-

-

-

-

(80 513)

-

(80 468)

-

2019
R’000
81 875

2018
R’000
-

Equipment written off

153

394

Intangibles written off

-

-

16

383

82 044

777

2019
R’000
21 859

2018
R’000
22 393

(14 549)

(12 368)

7 310

10 025

21 992

13 924

74 474

58 869

Small and medium enterprises

Reversals of impairment
Small and medium enterprises

Loans receivable from exchange transactions

Write-off assets
Loans receivable from exchange transactions

Trade and other receivables written off

21. Operating lease
Buildings
Less: Attributable to project disbursements

Future minimum rentals under non-cancellable operating leases within one
year
After one year but not more than five years

The leases relate to the buildings occupied by the NYDA and the average terms vary from 5 - 7 years and the
escalation rates range from 8 - 10%. There are renewal options up to the period of 2 years, there is however no
option to purchase.
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22. Donor funding disbursements
The respective donor funding disbursements are as follows:
Bricks
Services SETA Internship Programme

2019
R’000

2018
R’000

2 921

-

38

-

150

446

-

The Young Patriots Programme

9 240

11 364

Flemish government

1 615

4 789

-

(575)

Industrial Development Corporation

3 745

-

Kwa-Zulu Natal ETDP

1 988

1 495

11 092

838

31 047

18 061

2019
R’000

2018
R’000

22 570

8 359

1 988

1 495

-

327

83

958

3

22

Printing of Manuals

203

190

Temporary Staff

446

473

4 982

5 433

-

100

772

703

31 047

18 061

2019
R’000

2018
R’000

58 686

29 502

-

5 109

58 686

34 611

NSFAS

Independent Development Trust

Services SETA Apprenticeship Programme

Donor funds were disbursed as follows:

Capacity building
KZN Dep of EDTEA Grants - Individuals and Groups
Launches
Media Products
Other

Travel
Website Maintenance
Workshops

23. Grant disbursements
The respective grant disbursements are as follows:
Grant disbursements – individuals and cooperatives
Grant disbursements – special projects
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24. Project disbursements

2019
R’000

2018
R’000

197 327

187 615

5 511

7 709

20 501

20 807

7 092

7 070

22 861

16 782

253 292

239 984

Admin costs

2019
R’000
10 416

2018
R’000
8 938

Capacity building

47 707

52 340

Communications

2 276

597

Depreciation

2 772

2 164

128 811

120 462

40

-

-

15

13 952

12 729

630

233

1 817

1 359

-

91

3 245

6 132

23 207

17 061

8 388

6 878

10 032

10 622

253 292

239 621

The respective disbursements are as follows:
Programme Design, Delivery and Development
Corporate Partnerships and International Relations
National Youth Service
Research and policy
Executive Directors Projects
Total project disbursements

The nature of project expenses is as follows:

Employee costs
ICT
Legal Fees
Rental
Repairs and Maintenance
Research
Risk
Sponsorship
Travel
Vouchers
Workshops
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25. Net cash flows from operating activities

2019
R’000
20 751

2018
R’000
27 943

(55)

24

-

(42)

(5 750)

(7 461)

7 204

2 863

Write-off assets

323

777

Impairment loss

198

5 670

-

-

(1 590)

(189)

8 571

6 498

Increase / (decrease) in receivables from exchange transactions

(2 528)

5 525

Increase / (decrease) in receivables from non-exchange transactions

(8 086)

9 868

Increase in deferred expenses

1 379

1 288

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables

6 954

(3 585)

(1 562)

(12)

4 511

(2 290)

30 320

46 877

Surplus / (Deficit)
Adjusted for:
Loss on sale of assets and liabilities
Fair value adjustments
Interest income
Interest received

Reversal of impairment loss
Movements in provisions
Depreciation and amortisation
Changes in working capital

(Increase) / decrease in rental deposit
Increase / (decrease) in deferred income
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26. Directors emoluments
2019

Board of Directors
Chairperson of the Board
– Mr Sifiso Mtsweni
Deputy Chairperson of
the Board – Ms Bavelile
Hlongwa
Member of the Board –
Mr Yershen Pillay
Member of the Board –
Mr Kenny Morolong
Member of the Board –
Mr Ndumiso Mokako
(resigned 31 March
2018)
Member of the Board –
Ms Zandile Majozi
Member of the Board –
Ms Joy Maimela
Independent audit
committee chairperson –
Ms. Rachel Kalidass
Independent audit
committee member – Mr.
Tayron Tshitaudzi
Independent HR member
– Mr. Aobakwe Leepile
Chief Executive Officer –
Mr Waseem Carrim CA
(SA) (Appointed 01 April
2018)
Executive Directors
Chief Financial Officer –
Mr Thami Mkhwanazi CA
(SA) (Appointed 01
October 2018)
Executive Directors
Ms Ankie Motsoahae
Ms Juliet Tshoke
Mr Lwazi Mboyi
(Resigned 16 May 2018)
Mr Siyabonga Mbambo
(acted 1 April 2018 – 31
July 2018, appointed
Executive Director 01
August 2018)
Ms Palesa Notsi (Acted
29 May 2018 – 30
November 2018,
appointed Executive
Director 01 December
2018)
Ms Mafiki Duma
(Appointed 01 February
2019)

220

Short term
employee
benefits
R’000

Bonus

Expense
allowance

R’000

R’000

Defined
contribution
plan
R’000

Total
R’000

1 124

-

-

47

1 171

994

-

10

-

1004

277

-

12

-

289

314

-

15

-

329

-

-

-

-

-

335

-

6

-

341

246

-

-

-

246

12

-

-

-

12

47

-

13

-

60

-

-

-

-

-

1 950

378

257

143

2 728

842

-

17

51

910

1 290
1 165
151

246
267
-

3
81
103

76
201
18

1 615
1 714
272

986

196

131

249

1 562

941

152

266

83

1 442

241

-

3

36

280

10 915

1 239

917

904

13 975
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26. Directors emoluments
2018

Board of Directors
Chairperson of the Board – Mr
Sifiso Mtsweni
Deputy Chairperson of the Board
– Ms Bavelile Hlongwa
Member of the Board – Mr
Yershen Pillay
Member of the Board – Mr
Kenny Morolong
Member of the Board – Mr
Ndumiso Mokako (resigned 31
March 2018)
Member of the Board – Ms
Zandile Majozi
Member of the Board – Ms Joy
Maimela
Independent audit committee
chairperson – Ms. Rachel
Kalidass
Independent audit committee
member – Mr. Tayron Tshitaudzi
Independent HR member – Mr.
Aobakwe Leepile
Chief Executive Officer – Mr
Khathu Ramukumba (resigned
31 October 2017)
Acting Chief Executive Officer –
Mr Waseem Carrim (acted 1
November 2017 – 31 March
2018)
Executive Directors
Chief Financial Officer – Mr
Waseem Carrim
Executive Directors
Ms Nthuseng Mphahlele
(resigned 31 January 2018)
Ms Ankie Motsoahae
Ms Juliet Tshoke
Mr Lwazi Mboyi
Mr Siyabonga Mbambo (acted 1
February 2018 – 31 March 2018)

Short term
employee
benefits
R’000

Bonus

1 069

R’000

Expense
allowance
-

1

Defined
contribution
plan
R’000
-

R’000

Total
R’000
1 070

913

-

1

-

914

215

-

-

-

215

258

-

-

-

258

21

-

-

-

21

191

-

-

-

191

195

-

-

-

195

72

-

-

-

72

-

-

1

-

1

45

-

-

-

45

1 422

446

18

102

1 988

753

-

44

37

834

904

308

57

48

1 317

1 129

261

4

61

1 455

1 250
1 034
1 221
157

261
285
-

2
9
-

72
171
72
25

1 585
1 490
1 302
182

10 849

1 561

137

588

13 135
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27. Commitments
Enterprise Resource Planning System

2019
R’000
8 400

2018
R’000
-

Computer Equipment

4 399

-

Vehicles

3 333

-

3 665
19 797

-

Office furniture and fittings

28. Contingent liability and assets
Contingent liability
A contingent liability is an existing condition or situation involving uncertainty as to possible loss to an organisation,
which will ultimately be resolved when one or more future event occur or fail to occur. A contingent liability is
recognised by the NYDA when that uncertainty will ultimately be resolved, if one or more future events occurs, not
wholly within the agency's control, or fail to occur. Resolution of the uncertainty may confirm the loss or the
incurrence of a liability.
The NYDA has the following contingent liabilities which meets the definition as provided above:
•
•

Vouchers: The Agency has in issue R1.8 million vouchers which have not yet been utilised.
Contractual matters: The former employee is disputing the settlement paid to them for the voluntary
severance package for an amount of R100k.

29. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

2019
R’000
5 950

2018
R’000
5 859

Late cancellation of contract

-

20

Interest paid

-

71

Staff loans

-

-

5 950

5 950

2019
R’000
280 936

2018
R’000
280 933

Irregular expenditure incurred

-

3

Irregular expenditure condoned

-

-

280 936

280 936

Opening balance

30. Irregular expenditure
Opening balance

No irregular expenditure was incurred during the current financial year. 2018 irregular expenditure relates to noncompliance with the Public Finance Management Act, Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act and National
Treasury Regulation with respect to Supply Chain Management prescripts.
The auditor general identified a potential conflict of interest on two procurements to the value of R164,178.00, where
an employee of the NYDA did not declare the associate relationship with the service provider, the NYDA will be
conducting an investigation on the two procurements. This expenditure has a potential of being irregular in the new
financial year.
The agency has taken necessary action against individuals who contributed to the incurrence of irregular expenditure
by enforcing disciplinary action. An application to treasury to write off fruitless and wasteful expenditure as well as
irregular expenditure has been done, we are awaiting feedback.
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31. Going Concern
The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) prepares its annual financial statements in terms of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP).
GRAP 14, Paragraph 14 requires the entity to determine whether the going concern assumption is appropriate at
the reporting date. Management has determined that the going concern assumption is not appropriate due to the
following:
GRAP 14, Paragraph 15 states that “An entity shall not prepare its financial statements on the going concern
basis if management determines after the reporting date either that there is an intention to liquidate the entity
or to cease operating, or that there is no realistic alternative but to do so. There is no intention by the
shareholder to liquidate the entity, cease operations or transfer the functions and activities of the entity.
The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) is considered to be a going concern after consideration of the
following factors:





The Agency’s total assets exceeds total liabilities.
The Agency’s current assets exceeds current liabilities.
The Agency has accumulated equity surplus reserves.
The Agency holds enough cash reserves to meet debt obligations as they become due and payable.

The Agency has received an allocation of R459 million from the Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation
which will fund operations and projects for the 2019 / 2020 financial year.
The NYDA is established by an Act of Parliament with an aim to achieve a specific government mandate of youth
development. Parliament has not given any indication of changing the delivery method on youth development and
there are no indications that suggest they will do so in the foreseeable future.
The NYDA holds within its budget a R5 million as a contingency reserve which can aid in respect of any further
budget deficits.
The financial statements of the NYDA for the year ended 31 March 2019 have therefore been prepared on a going
concern basis after the above factors have been considered.

32. Events after the reporting date
The NYDA has one event that occurred after the reporting date:
Three members of the NYDA Board were sworn in as Members of Parliament in the sixth administration and
therefore ceased to be members of the Board as from 22 May 2019. The Board cannot meet a quorum based on its
remaining members. The Executive Authority has been made aware and is consulting with the relevant structures to
reconstitute the accounting authority.
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33. Budget against actual expenditure:
Material variance analysis:
Variances above 10% are considered material by the NYDA and thus should be explained.
The reason for material variances in budget against actual expenditure are the following:
Interest income: Actual interest income increased by 43% compared to budget, the reason for the increase is since
the budget considers only interest that can be collected in cash while the financial statements accounts for interest
which is recognised but subsequently impaired.
Depreciation, amortisation and write-off: These items are non-cash in nature and are not budgeted for.
Capital expenditure: The capital expenditure budget was underspent by 57% due to the ERP system
implementation delays. The service provider managed to complete phase 2 of this project on the 31 st March 2019 and
the amount has been disclosed as a capital commitment in note 27.
Budget adjustments:
The Agency undertakes a budget adjustment process which resulted in the following amendments to the budget:
Employee costs:
The employee costs are adjusted for temporary staff and internships which are reported as project costs on the
management accounts as well as reimbursed travel which is reported as travel expenditure.
Information Communication and Technology (ICT):
The ICT budget surplus realises from cost savings implemented on internet connectivity and telephone costs.
Outsourcing and external services:
In respect of Human Resources, there was a high level of demand for the bursary program of the NYDA. The external
auditors also adjusted their billings to conduct greater levels of work prior to the 31 March 2019 year end.

Administration:
The administration budget was set too aggressively and the costs of supporting new district centers necessitated a
budget adjustment.
Grant disbursements:
The demand for the grant program and additional funding necessitated a budget adjustment.

34. Related Parties
The NYDA is established within the Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation (DPME) which is the
transferring Department of the Agency and represents the Executive Authority. The related parties of the NYDA
consist mainly of government departments, and other public entities in the national sphere of government, as well as
directors and key management personnel. There were no related party transactions between the NYDA and DPME
other than the revenue from transfers.
The joint venture agreement between the NYDA and the University of Johannesburg Institute ended on the 31 st
March 2019, this had previously resulted in certain funds being ring fenced for the specific purpose of the joint
venture activities, the interest on the ringfenced funds is disclosed in the interest received note. These restricted
funds were released on 31 March 2019.
There were no related party transactions between the NYDA and key management personnel, other than the
remuneration which has been disclosed in note 26.
All transactions with the related parties are concluded on an arms-length basis.
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Revenue
Revenue received by 12% from R459m in the prior year to R514m in the current financial year. This was mainly
due to an increase in Donor Funding of R13m in the current financial year as well as a 10% increase in the grant
from treasury.
Expenditure
•		Operating expenses increased by 8% compared to the previous financial year.
•		Donor funding disbursements increased by R13m (72%) due to additional donor funds received in the
		current financial year.
•		Project expenditure increased by 6% in the current year.
•		A 7% increase in the grants disbursed was due to additional grant funding received from national treasury\
		through the jobs fund programme.
•		The NYDA generated a surplus of R20,7m and had commitments of R19,7m at year end.
•		The bank balance for the current year is R99m compared to R82m in the prior financial year.
•		Creditors and accruals increased by 10,5% compared to the prior year. Whilst receivables increased by
		233%, this is mainly due to outstanding donor funds at year end as well as deposits and prepayments.
•		There were no fruitless, wasteful nor irregular expenditure incurred in the current financial year.
The NYDA continues to operate as a going concern with a healthy financial outlook for the future.
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NYDA FOOTPRINT

HEAD OFFICE

54 Maxwell Drive, Woodmead North Office Park, Woodmead, 2191
Switchboard: 087 158 6345 / 5738		

Call Centre: 0800 52 52 52		

Email: info@nyda.gov.za

BRANCHES

EASTERN CAPE

GAUTENG

East London Full Service Branch

Johannesburg Full Service Branch

2nd Floor, FNB, Building,

28 Harrison Street

73 Oxford street

6th Floor

East London

Johannesburg

Tel: 043 704 4600
Randfontein Full Service Branch
uMtata Full Service Branch

Shop No. 2, Cnr Sutherland & Park Street,

Wonkemntu Craft Centre

Randfontein

Nelson Mandela Drive (Next to Shell Garage)

Tel: 087 283 0724

Mtata
Sedibeng Full Service Branch
Port Elizabeth Full Service Branch

Mafatsane Thusong Service Centre

Kwantu Towers, Market Square,

Evaton

Goven Mbeki Avenue

Contact: Michael Phokela: michael.phokela@nyda.

Port Elizabeth

gov.za

Tel: 041 503 9100
Tshwane Full Service Branch
FREE STATE

Middestad Mall, 1st Floor
522 Thabo Sehume Street

Bloemfontein Full Service Branch

Pretoria

Shop GF 125, Sanlam Plaza

Tel: 087 158 7991

Cnr Charlotte Maxeke & East Burger Streets
Bloemfontein
Tel: 087 158 7606
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BRANCHES

KWAZULU-NATAL

MPUMALANGA

Durban Full Service Branch

Mbombela Full Service Branch

Smart Exchange Building, Ground Floor,

Office Number 7 & 8, Imbizo Place

5 Walnut Road

Samora Machele Drive (N4)

Durban

Mbombela

Tel: 031 327 9900

Tel: 087 158 7829

eMpangeni Full Service Branch

eMalahleni Full Service Branch

Central Business District

Stand No 174 Smuts Avenue

Cnr Main and Turnbull Road

Emalahleni

Empangeni

Tel: 087 158 7958

Tel: 010 880 1887
Secunda Full Service Branch
Newcastle Full Service Branch

Block D (Third Door)

Civic Centre Newcastle

Kiwiet Office Park

38 Murchison Street

Secunda

Newcastle

Tel: 087 158 7936

Tel: 010 590 8358
NORTH WEST
LIMPOPO
Rustenburg Full Service Branch
Polokwane Full Service Centre

39 Heystek Street, (next to SARS)

69 Schoeman Street

Rustenburg

Moolman Building

Tel: 087 158 7915

Polokwane
Tel: 087 158 7873

NORTHERN CAPE

Thulamela Full Service Branch

Kimberly Full Service Branch

Thulamela Information centre

Old Telkom Building

Punda Maria Road

64 - 70 De Toit Span

Thohoyandou

Tel: 087 158 7799

Tel: 087 158 7611
WESTERN CAPE
Cape Town Full Service Branch
Shop P18A Golden Acre
9 Adderley Street
Cape Town
Tel: 021 415 2040
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DISTRICT CENTRES

EASTERN CAPE

NYDA Sekhukhune District Centre
529 Van Reebeck Street

NYDA Alfred Nzo NYDA District Centre

Groblersdal

Hospital Road

Contact Details: Alpheus Mosoma

Mount Aylif

Alpheous.mosoma@nyda.gov.za

4735
MPUMALANGA
NYDA Sarah Baartman District Centre
DRDAR Office, 2 Whytes Road

NYDA Bohlabelo District Centre

Kirkwood

Thulamahashe Municipal Offices

Contact Details: Nosidima Maneli

R533 Graskop Road

Nosidima.Maneli@nyda.gov.za

Thulamahashe
Contact: Churchill Mhlaba

FREE STATE

Churchill.mhlaba@nyda.gov.za

NYDA Fezile Dabi District Centre

NYDA Waterberg District Centre

Pink Monaune Youth Development Centre

11 Jourdan Street

Tweeling

Mollies Building

Contact: Daniel Mokoena

Thabazimbi

Daniel.mokoena@nyda.gov.za

Contact: Mpho Thubakgale – Mpho.thubakgale@nyda.
gov.za

GAUTENG
NORTH WEST
NYDA Ekurhuleni Service Centre
Old Boksburg Law Court

NYDA Ngaka Modiri Molema District Centre

13 Church Street

30 James Watt Crescent, Industrial Site

Boksburg

Mahikeng

Contact: Obed Letsoho

Contact: Jeremiah Luka – jeremiah.lukas@nyda.gov.za

Obed.letshoho@nyda.gov.za
Western Cape
KWAZULU-NATAL
NYDA Garden Route District Centre
NYDA Uthukela District Municipality

Beacon Place

25 Keate Street

125 Meade Street

Ladysmith

George

Contact Details: Thembeka Mavundla
thembeka.mavundla@nyda.gov.za
Limpopo
NYDA Mopani District Centre
Mopani District Office,
27 Agatha Street, Elita Flat no 5, Central Park
Tzaneen
Contact Details: Castelia Mabilo
castelia.mabilo@nyda.gov.za
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